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For purposes of this Annual Report, unless otherwise indicated, the terms “Company,” “Parametric,” “Parametric Sound,” “we,” “us,” or
“our” means Parametric Sound Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries, PSC Licensing Corp. (“PSC”) and HyperSound Health, Inc.
(“HHI”).
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
AND OTHER INFORMATION
This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or
the “Securities Act,” and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the “Exchange Act.” All statements other than
statements of historical facts contained in this report are forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements
by terminology such as “may,” “could,” “will,” “would,” “should,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “intend,” “predict,”
“seek,” “contemplate,” “potential” or “continue” or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. These forward-looking
statements include, but are not limited to, statements about:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Risks related to our proposed merger with VTB Holdings, Inc. (“Turtle Beach”), as described in more detail later in this report under
the heading “Risk Factors”;
The status and timing of our proposed merger with Turtle Beach and related transactions;
Our history of losses;
The limited number of suppliers for some of our components;
Our market being characterized by rapidly advancing technology;
The impact of competitive products, technologies and pricing;
Manufacturing capacity constraints and difficulties;
Local, regional, national and international economic conditions and events and the impact they may have on us and our customers;
Continued volatility in the credit and equity markets and the resulting effect on the general economy;
Our success at managing the risks involved in the foregoing items;
The commercialization of our proprietary technologies;
The implementation of our business model and strategic plans for our business and technology;
The scope of protection we are able to establish and maintain for intellectual property rights covering our technology;
Our belief that existing resources and planned product revenues will provide sufficient liquidity to meet our funding requirements
over the next year;
Our belief that we have strong commercial, consumer and healthcare market opportunities worldwide;
Our expectation of increased product sales for the balance of fiscal 2013 and 2014 and future licensing revenue;
Estimates of our expenses, future revenues, capital requirements and our needs for additional financing;
The timing or likelihood of regulatory filings and approvals including with respect to HSS products as medical devices;
Our financial performance; and
Developments relating to our competitors and our industry.

Forward-looking statements relate to future events or to our future financial performance and involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Factors that may cause actual results to differ materially
from current expectations include, among other things, those listed under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this report.
All forward-looking statements in this report reflect our views as of the date of this report based on information with respect to future
events and are subject to the above referenced and other risks, uncertainties and assumptions relating to our operations, results of operations,
industry and future growth. Given these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, we caution you not to place undue reliance on these forwardlooking statements. Except as required by law, we assume no obligation to update or revise these forward-looking statements for any reason,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview
We are a technology company with a substantial body of intellectual property focused on delivering novel audio solutions. Our
HyperSound® (“HSS®”) technology creates sound in a new way - “in-the-air” along a directional ultrasonic beam - a significant departure from
traditional speaker technology. Our ability to beam, focus and control sound empowers solutions for commercial applications, consumer audio
and health care (amplifying sound for persons with normal and impaired hearing). We are establishing HyperSound as the brand for our novel
sound reproduction method that enhances standard stereo content producing a robust and distinct 3D sound image from just two thin emitters.
Our commercial product line, HSS-3000, delivers directed audio solutions primarily targeting commercial customers for digital signage,
kiosk and related applications that benefit from focused sound targeted to specific locations. In addition to our commercial product business, we
are targeting our technology for new uses in consumer markets, including computers, video gaming, televisions and home audio along with other
commercial markets including casino gaming and cinema. We are also researching and developing health applications for persons with hearing
loss.
We are seeking to expand into new markets through both product sales and licensing. Our licensing strategy is focused on large or highgrowth markets where we are identifying and developing new technology solutions by working with established industry participants and
original equipment manufacturers (OEMs). Our goal is to make products incorporating our technologies widely available to consumers. Our
principal markets are North America, Europe and Asia.
On August 5, 2013, we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “merger agreement”) with VTB Holdings, Inc. (“Turtle
Beach”). The merger agreement provides, that upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the merger agreement our wholly-owned
subsidiary will merge with and into Turtle Beach resulting in Turtle Beach becoming our wholly-owned subsidiary (the “merger”). Turtle Beach
is a leading designer and producer of premium audio peripherals for video game, personal computer, and mobile platforms, including gaming
headphones and headsets crafted for Microsoft Xbox®, Sony PlayStation®, Nintendo Wii® and PC-based gaming. We believe combining the
two companies will create more value for our stockholders in the long-term than we could achieve as an independent, stand-alone company. We
believe that the resultant combined company will be positioned as an audio technology innovator with established brands and global retail
relationships for pursuing growth opportunities from new audio technologies. Although the exact timing of completion of the merger cannot be
predicted with certainty, we are planning to convene a special meeting of stockholders to approve the merger in late December 2013 or early
January 2014. If the merger is approved by our stockholders and the other conditions to closing are satisfied, it is anticipated that the merger will
be completed as soon as reasonably practicable after our special meeting of stockholders. The merger and related transactions are described in
more detail below under the heading “Pending Merger with Turtle Beach” and elsewhere in this report.
We were incorporated in Nevada on June 2, 2010 as a new, wholly owned subsidiary of LRAD Corporation in order to effect the
separation and 100% spin-off of our HSS business (“Spin-Off”) . On September 27, 2010, the Spin-Off was completed and we became a standalone, independent, publicly traded company. Our corporate office is located at 13771 Danielson Street, Suite L, Poway, California 92064. Our
telephone number is (888) 477-2150 and our website can be accessed at www.parametricsound.com. The reference to our website is intended to
be an inactive textual reference and the contents of our website are not intended to be incorporated into this report.
Our Proprietary Technology Platform
We established many of the foundational patents allowing the commercial and economical use of audio generated using concepts known
as parametric or nonlinear acoustics. We pioneered the practical applications of these concepts to generate audio and have amassed a patent
portfolio of 26 issued United States and foreign patents and we have 32 patent applications pending, many of which we consider foundational to
commercial, consumer and hearing applications of nonlinear acoustics.
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Our patented and patent pending technology employs ultrasonic frequencies to carry content, such as music and voice, into the air.
Proprietary ultrasonic emitters, or transducers, convert electrical energy to high frequency acoustical energy, producing ultrasonic frequencies
beyond the range of hearing. These ultrasonic emitters are used in lieu of loudspeakers to emit a custom-generated ultrasonic wave with the
proper difference frequency characteristics to produce audible sound within, throughout and along a tightly formed beam. Audible sound is
generated in the air itself and is focused and directed.
We believe we are the first to develop technology and methods to economically generate directional audio from one or more emitters and
three-dimensional (3D) sound from two emitters. We are advancing the science behind the application of our HSS technology in health care to
help those with various levels of impaired hearing. We continue to devote significant resources towards improving performance of our
technology, systems and methods.
History
HSS pioneered a new paradigm in sound production based on well-known principles of physics. Parametric or nonlinear acoustics use
changing pressures in air to produce sound indirectly by creating audio output in the air along a beam of ultrasonic frequencies.
Parametric sound technology has gone through various iterations of emitter designs and amplifier and processing electronics since
development began in 1995. Mr. Elwood G. Norris, our President and Chief Scientist, was the original inventor of the core HSS technology.
From 2004 to 2010, LRAD Corporation (formerly known as American Technology Corporation), our former parent corporation, sold early
generation HSS systems. In 2005, Mr. Norris was awarded the Lemelson-MIT Prize for the HSS acoustics innovation. In September 2009, he
retired from an active role at LRAD Corporation. In 2004, LRAD Corporation began focusing most of its financial, technical and marketing
resources on other acoustic products with limited HSS development. Seeking to rejuvenate HSS, Mr. Norris along with co-founder Mr. James A.
Barnes, our Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary, proposed a plan to spin-off the HSS business that was approved by LRAD
Corporation’s Board of Directors and by a vote of its stockholders in early 2010. Messrs. Norris and Barnes then managed and funded the costs
related to the 100% spin-off of HSS that was completed on September 27, 2010 when we became an independent publicly traded company.
Following the Spin-Off, based on new innovations by Mr. Norris, we developed our HSS-3000 commercial product series. HSS-3000
features new customer utility improved performance at a reduced manufacturing cost. We consider this to be the third generation of the HSS
technology. After initial customer evaluations and testing, in July 2011, we commenced sales of HSS-3000 products. In January 2012, we
introduced improved electronics employing new digital signal processor (DSP) and software upgrades that we believe improved performance
and reduced distortion. The product platform now produces a more crisp, clean and unique sound image demonstrating an immersive robust 3D
sound from just two thin emitters .
In March and April 2012, we completed a $9.24 million secondary offering and in March 2012 listed our common stock on the NASDAQ
Capital Market and appointed Mr. Kenneth F. Potashner as our executive chairman and principal executive officer. During fiscal 2012 we added
management, engineering and technical personnel to support our licensing initiative and grow commercial product sales. Technology
enhancements further increased volume from a given emitter surface area. Accessories were developed to support a wider range of commercial
sales and installations. We identified health care as an additional target market for HSS applications as a result of consumer preference surveys
indicating that persons with normal and impaired hearing reported greater clarity of sound from HSS compared to standard speakers. We
performed consumer preference studies that were supportive of early observations and we began investigative research into the applicable
science .
During fiscal 2013, we conducted scientific research to identify the mechanisms contributing to improved hearing and clarity. In May
2013, we announced results from clinical testing that confirmed consumer preference testing outcomes with more than 70% of persons with
hearing loss preferring the clarity of HSS, with many reporting dramatic improvement in hearing and clarity. We are developing product designs,
continuing research in this area and, in November 2013, we filed a pre-market notification with the FDA seeking clearance to sell HSS-based
product as an over-the-counter medical device for the hearing impaired.
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In March 2013, we engaged the investment bank Houlihan Lokey as our financial advisor with respect to potential strategic alternatives,
including that from Turtle Beach that later led to the merger agreement. Certain licensing activities with other parties were suspended during
portions of the extended negotiation and due diligence period with Turtle Beach from April to August 2013. This included delaying further
development of a strategic partnership we announced in March 2013 with Shanghai Industrial Investment Group (SIIG) and Aviation Industry
Corporation’s (AVIC) US trade representative Optek Electronics. While we continue to discuss licensing in China and certain manufacturing
opportunities with these parties we have delayed furthering this relationship pending the merger with Turtle Beach or termination thereof.
Coincident with the merger, in August 2013 and prior to any manufacturing term, we terminated the license entered into in July 2012 with
Epsilon Electronics.
Also during fiscal 2013 we invented, developed and demonstrated new emitter technology that we believe can expand the applications for
HSS audio systems. The new technology offers improved fidelity performance over our prior products and in a wider range of very thin form
factors applicable to consumer and health care products. In the last year we increased our patent activity increasing from ten pending patents to
32 as of the date of this report. We continue to seek to expand our intellectual property coverage both as to the core technology and novel
product application features. We intend to continually improve and update our technology to improve output and performance.
Pending Merger with Turtle Beach
On August 5, 2013, we entered into a merger agreement with Turtle Beach. The merger agreement provides, that, upon the terms and
subject to the conditions of the merger agreement, our wholly-owned subsidiary will merge with and into Turtle Beach resulting in Turtle Beach
becoming our wholly-owned subsidiary (the “merger”). Turtle Beach is a leading designer and producer of premium audio peripherals for video
game, personal computer, and mobile platforms, including gaming headphones and headsets crafted for Microsoft Xbox®, Sony PlayStation®,
Nintendo Wii® and PC-based gaming. We believe combining the two companies will create more value for our stockholders in the long-term
than we could achieve as an independent, stand-alone company. We believe that the resultant combined company will be positioned as an audio
technology innovator with established brands and global retail relationships for pursuing growth opportunities from new audio technologies.
Although the exact timing of completion of the merger cannot be predicted with certainty, we are targeting a stockholder vote to approve the
merger in late December 2013. If the merger is approved by our stockholders and the other conditions to closing are satisfied, it is anticipated
that the merger will be completed as soon as reasonably practicable after our special meeting of stockholders.
At the effective time of the merger, we will issue shares of common stock to the former Turtle Beach stockholders which, together with
options to purchase shares of Turtle Beach common stock that will be converted into options to purchase shares of our common stock (and will
be assumed by us at the effective time of the merger), will represent approximately 80% of our common stock on a fully-diluted basis after the
merger, subject to adjustment pursuant to the merger agreement. Certain redeemable, non-convertible preferred stock of Turtle Beach with a
stated value of $12,000,000, plus dividends accrued but unpaid thereon, as well as certain phantom stock units of Turtle Beach, will remain
outstanding following the merger and will not be exchanged for our common stock.
The merger agreement requires us to cause, as of the effective time of the merger, the size of our Board of Directors to consist of a total
nine members, initially to be comprised of five individuals identified by Turtle Beach, two individuals identified by us and two vacancies. Our
Board of Directors have designated our Executive Chairman, Kenneth P. Potashner, and independent director, Andrew Wolfe, Ph.D., as our two
designees should the merger be completed.
Although we will be the legal acquirer, the merger will be accounted for as a “reverse acquisition” pursuant to which Turtle Beach will be
considered the acquiring entity for accounting purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, referred to as
“GAAP.” As such, Turtle Beach will allocate the total purchase consideration to our tangible and identifiable intangible assets and liabilities
based on their respective fair values at the date of completion of the merger. Turtle Beach’s historical results of operations will replace our
historical results of operations for all periods prior to the merger. After completion of the merger, the results of operations of both combined
companies will be included in our (Parametric’s) financial statements, which will also reflect the Series B Preferred Stock of Turtle Beach that
will remain outstanding after the merger.
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The consummation of the merger is subject to a number of conditions, including, but not limited to, (i) adoption and approval of the
merger agreement and the merger by our stockholders in accordance with NASDAQ rules, (ii) the approval of the continued listing application
by NASDAQ, (iii) the completion of a “Qualified Offering”, as defined in the merger agreement, through the incurrence of debt or the issuance
of equity by us, with net proceeds of at least $5 million, and (iv) and certain other closing conditions. The percentage of common stock owned
by us on a fully-diluted basis is subject to adjustment depending upon the amount of qualifying equity proceeds (minimum of $5 million to
maximum of $15 million) obtained by us prior to closing of the merger. In November 2013, we obtained $5.1 million of gross proceeds from the
registered direct sale of common stock that we believe satisfies the closing condition.
Important Merger Information and Additional Information and Where to Find It
This report does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities of Parametric or the solicitation of any
vote or approval. In connection with the merger, we filed with the SEC on November 4, 2013 a preliminary proxy statement. Neither this report
or the preliminary proxy statement are a substitute for the definitive proxy statement that we intend to file with the SEC related to the merger.
Investors and security holders are urged to read the definitive proxy statement (including any amendments or supplements) and other documents
filed with the SEC carefully in their entirety because they contain important information about Parametric, Turtle Beach and the proposed
transaction. The definitive proxy statement will be mailed to our stockholders.
Investors and security holders may obtain free copies of the definitive proxy statement and other relevant documents filed with the SEC
by us at the SEC´s web site at www.sec.gov. Free copies of the definitive proxy statement and other documents filed with the SEC also can be
obtained by directing a request to Parametric, Attention: Investor Relations, telephone: (888) 477-2150. In addition, investors and security
holders may access copies of the documents filed with the SEC by us on our website at www.parametricsound.com.
Parametric and its directors and executive officers and other persons may be deemed to be participants in the solicitation of proxies in
respect of the proposed transaction described in this release. Information regarding our directors and executive officers is available in the
preliminary proxy statement related to the proposed merger, which was filed with the SEC on November 4, 2013. If and to the extent that any of
the Parametric participants will receive any additional benefits in connection with the proposed transaction that are unknown as of the date of
this release, the details of those benefits will be described in the definitive proxy statement relating to the proposed transaction. Investors and
stockholders can obtain more detailed information regarding the direct and indirect interests of our directors and executive officers in the
proposed transaction by reading the definitive proxy statement when it becomes available.
Technology
Common speaker types in use today such as dynamic, electrostatic, ribbon and other transducer-based designs, are direct radiating, and
are fundamentally a piston action, directly pumping air molecules into motion to create audible sound waves the listener hears. Parametric, or
nonlinear acoustics, on the other hand, create sound “in the air.” Audible sound is generated along an ultrasonic column using frequencies above
the normal range of hearing. This parametric sound beam is highly directional and maintains sonic clarity and intelligibility over longer distances
than traditional loudspeakers. Our technology is compatible with any media input and it beams directed audio where you want it while limiting
ambient noise.
Parametric sound employs ultrasonic frequencies to carry content, such as music and voice, into the air where it is demodulated into audio
you can hear. Proprietary ultrasonic emitters, or transducers, convert electrical energy to high frequency acoustical energy, producing ultrasonic
frequencies beyond the range of hearing. These ultrasonic emitters are used in lieu of loudspeakers to emit a custom-generated ultrasonic wave
with the proper difference frequency characteristics to produce audible sound within, throughout and along a tightly formed beam. Audible
sound is not created on the surface of the ultrasonic emitter—a significant departure from a direct radiating loudspeaker. Instead, the audible
sound is generated in the air itself and is focused and directed. For example, if the acoustic beam is directed towards a wall, the sound first
emanates from the surface of the wall, not from the emitter, as would be with a conventional loudspeaker. Or, if the acoustic beam is directed to
a person, the sound is created at the person. This directionality allows sound to be focused or “beamed” in space or diffused from a surface in a
variety of ways to produce desired and controllable effects. Also, the sound does not spread or dissipate at the same rate over distance as sound
does with traditional speakers. We believe this unique feature provides improved intelligibility at selected distant points with less energy than
traditional speakers, creating the ability to communicate directed sound at longer distances.
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A typical conventional sound solution includes (a) inputs able to accept any user media source (typically a computer, internet device, a
DVD player, mp3 player, radio, TV or microphone), (b) an amplifier and related control electronics, and (c) direct- radiating speakers. In
comparison, a parametric audio solution (HSS) includes (a) inputs also able to accept any user media sources, (b) custom processing and control
electronics allowing an amplifier to drive emitters and (c) ultrasonic emitters that produce sound in the air.
Traditionally parametric sound reproduction, while offering high directivity, suffered from lower sound volume, higher distortion and
higher costs than conventional direct radiating speakers. Since our organization we have made technical progress to improve sound volume from
a given emitter size, reduce distortion and reduced manufacturing costs. We believe our designs offer users higher volume with wider frequency
response and reduced distortion while being simpler to install and more economical to produce . We strive to continue to improve output volume
and clarity for our target markets . While electronic devices employing automatic microphone level adjustment can be affected when in the HSS
beam, we have designed and intend to employ in consumer applications steps to mitigate this effect.
Our very thin emitters produce no interfering backwave common to traditional speakers and can be positioned directly against a wall
without an enclosing box. A key feature of HSS audio reproduction is its exceptional transient response that we believe delivers a more accurate
reproduction of original content and contributes to improved clarity.
The ability to direct audio to each ear allows HSS to create an effect that we believe is distinct from both headphones and two-speaker
stereo systems (often referred to as 2.1 systems when combined with a woofer speaker). Speaker crosstalk is significantly diminished when HSS
is positioned properly (for example in front of a listener at a computer or TV screen) and location information within a recording is reproduced at
each ear. With HSS the listener is able to detect sound in front, to each side beyond and outside the location of each emitter, near the ears and
behind, all depending on how audio is recorded and mixed. A two-emitter system (or an HSS 2.1 system with woofer) creates a rich, spatial and
robust 3D sound image not possible with headphones and also distinct from costly and complex surround sound systems (5.1 or 7.1 systems).
Location information mixed in existing stereo recordings or stereo compilations of multi-channel recordings is reproduced with enhanced spatial
3D effects distinct from the same content replayed through conventional speakers. While special recordings are not required and stereo or other
mixing creates the spatial 3D sound, our experiments indicate that recording techniques can be employed to enhance the effect and such
techniques could be employed in video gaming and other applications. We believe this effect from only two thin emitters offers an alternative to
complex multi-speaker surround systems while producing a unique spatial, in-the-room effect.
We continue to develop improvements to enhance performance and expect to introduce in fiscal 2014 products based on our new emitter
design featuring improved fidelity and performance with lower power consumption than the current model (important for portable devices).
Target Markets
We are currently focusing our efforts on applications of our parametric HSS technology platform in three areas:
Commercial Applications
Our initial focus since our HSS-3000 product was introduced in 2011 has been on the use of directed sound in the digital signage, kiosk
and related markets and applications. We believe our HSS-3000 product line meets the requirements of these customers seeking directed audio
solutions. Our digital signage solutions are designed to deliver sound to targeted listeners, reduce ambient noise clutter, with minimal disruption
of commerce. We believe our kiosk solution enhances interactive kiosks and similar devices by directly and clearly communicating to the user,
increasing privacy and reducing the effect of ambient noise. Our technology also addresses other commercial applications including point-of-sale
(POS) terminals and casino slot machines, and we are developing new form factors for our emitters and accessories to better meet the
requirements to serve these customers. We have also identified future commercial uses of our technology in cinema, concert halls and other
venues.
We are currently selling our HSS-3000 products directly to end user commercial customers and through distributors, commercial
integrators and agents. Commercial integrators are typically audio visual specialty firms that design, integrate and sell audio and video solutions
to a diverse range of commercial customers. We anticipate selling products to OEMs for integration in kiosks, point-of-sale (POS) terminals and
slot machines.
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Consumer Applications
We believe the increased sophistication of video gaming and television including higher resolution images, more realistic and interactive
content and the use of 3D displays creates a growing opportunity for our enhanced audio. With the advent of flat panel display, manufacturers
have been focused on creating the thinnest form factor often at the expense of sound quality. We believe our ability to create a 3D sound image
from just two thin emitters complements many gaming platforms, computers, television and home theater applications. Our enhanced audio
solution complements these devices by delivering a more robust sound image and directing and focusing sound to an individual user or by
spreading the audio image targeting a broader listening audience in a room or other locale.
We established a wholly-owned licensing subsidiary, PSC Licensing Corp., through which we seek to license our solutions to established
industry partners and OEMs to make products incorporating our technologies widely available to consumers in high-growth markets. We have
developed functional prototypes in several market verticals in cooperation with prospective OEMs to demonstrate the viability of our
technology. We are currently discussing with consumer OEMs regarding the incorporation of our technology into product applications such as
video gaming speakers and television soundbars. We recently announced a co-development arrangement addressing using our technology in a
noise cancellation application and we are seeking and expect other development and licensing arrangements in fiscal 2014. We intend to license
our technology and work with partners to commercialize products, although we have no current licenses and there is no assurance that we will be
able to generate licensing revenue in the future.
Should the merger be completed, our current target markets and strategies related to HSS products could change and we may elect to
design and produce consumer products for certain categories in addition to pursuing licensing for other categories.
Health Care
During fiscal 2012, we identified health care and the hearing loss population as a target market for HSS applications. Individuals with
normal and impaired hearing have reported greater comprehension and clarity of sound compared to standard speakers in our consumer
preference studies. In March 2013, we sponsored a clinical study managed by Dr. Ritvik Mehta of the California Hearing & Balance Center in
La Jolla, California, to assess whether HSS improves sound clarity compared to a conventional acoustic speaker in those with mild to severe
hearing loss. The ten patient study was completed in May 2013 and its results demonstrated a highly significant and statistically relevant
improvement in clarity scores using standardized tests. This study confirmed our earlier nonclinical preference testing of more than 90 persons
with varying hearing loss resulting in more than 70% preferring the clarity of HSS, with reports of dramatic improvement in hearing and clarity
from HSS audio.
We believe the delivery of sound in the air closer to the ear contributes to these observations and clinical results. We also believe from our
research and studies that HSS audio is recognized in the inner ear better than conventional audio. We continue to study and investigate to
understand the mechanisms at work with HSS on those with hearing loss. We believe there are opportunities to develop, produce or license
products targeted for those with hearing loss and for general sound amplification and/or assisted listening. We also believe there are
opportunities to develop new products targeting specific hearing loss profiles or maladies.
In most jurisdictions in which we hope to market product, certain claims or statements that products may mitigate hearing impairment or
improve hearing may require that such products receive medical device classification, which would require regulatory clearance from the U.S.
Food and Drug Administration and similar regulatory agencies in other jurisdictions prior to product sales and marketing. We are analyzing
market feasibility in various jurisdictions and, in November 2013, we filed a pre-market notification with the FDA seeking clearance to sell our
HSS product as an over-the-counter medical device for the hearing impaired. There is no assurance such applications will be cleared for sale in
the U.S. or that we can obtain similar authority in any other jurisdiction.
In October 2012, we formed a wholly-owned subsidiary, HyperSound Health, Inc. (“HHI”), to pursue health care applications of HSS.
Although we currently control and manage the operations of HHI, we anticipate that HHI could have separate management personnel in the
future due to the nature of its business in regulated markets.
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In April 2013 we granted an exclusive, worldwide, royalty-bearing license to use certain HSS-related intellectual property to HHI. In July
2013, we entered into an amended and restated license agreement with HHI to narrow the scope of the license such that the intellectual property
and technology licensed thereunder may be used by HHI solely for, and in connection with, the use, testing, manufacture, marketing, sale,
offering for sale, commercialization, distribution and servicing of products in the medical device field and no longer for the “personal sound
amplification product” field. The license term runs until the expiration of the last patent owned or licensed. HHI is required to pay royalties to
Parametric of (i) 15% of all cash and non-cash revenues from any source, including net sales, of the licensed products and (ii) 30% of all cash
and non-cash consideration received by HHI from third party license agreements, joint ventures and co-development agreements. If the amount
of royalties is less than $1,000,000 before the earlier to occur of (i) April 4, 2017 and (ii) HHI’s procurement of aggregate equity based financing
of $20,000,000, then HHI must pay the Company $1,000,000 in royalties; and if the amount of royalties is less than $500,000 in any year
following the fourth year of the term, then HHI must pay $500,000 in royalties for each such year.
We currently intend to develop consumer products for sale targeting the personal sound amplification product market (“PSAP”), a nonregulated market, through Parametric and, when and if we obtain regulatory approval, we intend to target products for those persons with hearing
impairment through HHI.
Size of Target Markets
We are targeting our solutions, both products and licensing, at large and growing markets. The following market data and discussion is
intended to illustrate the size and nature of the target markets we have identified and are currently pursuing with product or licensing
applications for our audio technology:
Digital Signage - - Digital signage is a growing form of direct advertising capturing an increasing share of advertising spending.
Restaurants, banking, retail outlets, museums and other outlets and organizations employ commercial displays to communicate with
patrons. According to a report from IMS Research, the market for digital signage worldwide – based on the total revenue to manufacturers
(primarily displays , media players, set top boxes, computers, networks and software) – reached $5 billion at the end of 2010. Intel
predicts that there will be 22 million digital signs worldwide by 2015. We believe directed audio provides a number of advantages over
standard speakers or the many displays in use that have no audio.
Kiosks and Related Devices -- Interactive kiosks and related computer terminals and ATMs power applications for communication,
commerce, entertainment, and education. According to ABI Research the number of interactive kiosks deployed globally will rise from
1.6 million in 2011 to over 3 million in 2016 in part as a result of the growing self-service convenience movement. According to the ATM
Industry Association the number of ATMs worldwide is expected to increase to over 3.1 million by the end of 2016. We believe the
ability to focus sound to the user in front of such devices offers utility unavailable with traditional speakers.
Video Gaming -- We believe our ability to create a 3D sound image from just two thin emitters without headphones complements many
gaming platforms, whether computers or consoles. According to a 2013 report entitled Essential Facts about the Computer and Video
Game Industry by the Electronic Software Association, consumers spent an estimated $20.77 billion in the United States on video game
hardware, accessories and content in 2012. The August 2013 International Development Group (IDG) Global Forecast Update estimates
there will be a projected installed base of more than 130 million Xbox 360 and PlayStation 3 consoles as of 2013 with a 46% unit increase
expected in 2014.
Televisions and Home Theater – We believe enabling directed sound for use with increasingly thin televisions delivers an enhanced audio
experience. According to the Consumer Electronics Association (CEA), sales of flat panel TVs in the U.S. are projected at over 32 million
units in 2013 at a wholesale value exceeding $16.5 billion. Sales of soundbars, a popular home theater accessory to flat panel TVs, are
projected at approximately 3 million units in the U.S. in 2013 according to CEA. The NPD Group, Inc. (NPD) reported that the soundbar
market grew 68% between mid-2012 and mid-2013. Home theater in a box sales are projected at over 1.7 million units in 2013 according
to CEA.
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Hearing Impaired – We believe our research and preference studies evidence that our technology offers improved comprehension for
persons with hearing loss. According to a fact sheet updated in February 2013, the World Health Organization estimates that over 360
million people worldwide live with disabling hearing loss. Approximately 48 million persons in the U.S. have some impairment of
hearing according to a 2011 report in the Archives of Internal Medicine. The global wholesale hearing aid market was $5.4 billion with
10.8 million units sold in 2012 according to Bernstein Research. We intend to develop and produce general consumer products for
personal sound amplification and, when and if regulatory clearance is obtained, produce a medical product that can be promoted and sold
to those suffering from hearing loss.
Personal Computers - - Our ultra-thin emitter accompanies flat and thin computer monitors offering a novel audio solution with 3D sound
or focused contained audio. According to the Consumer Electronics Association, sales of desktop personal computers in the U.S. are
projected at over 10.6 million units in 2013 at a wholesale value exceeding $6.7 billion. The Computer Industry Almanac reports that as
of 2011 there were over 310 million personal computers in use in the U.S. and 1.6 billion globally.
Electronic Gaming (Slot) Machines -- Electronic gaming or casino slot machines are becoming increasingly sophisticated computerized
entertainment devices and we believe our ability to direct sound to the user offers advantages over traditional speakers. According to
research by Taylor Nelson Sofres Plc, there were over 4.2 million casino style electronic gaming machines operating globally in 2010
with over 840,000 in North America. Similarly estimates by manufacturer International Game Technology in 2012 indicated there were
900,000 units in North America.
Cinema -- We also plan to scale our technology for larger environments for use in cinemas. There are approximately 40,000 movie
screens in the United States according to the National Association of Theater Owners.
Other Applications
Other audio applications not currently being targeted for our existing technology and products include automotive applications and mobile
devices. We have filed a patent application and are experimenting on techniques to make our emitters transparent. We have identified a technical
development roadmap for this project but there is no assurance we can achieve commercially viable results or regarding the timing thereof.
Should we be successful in developing this technology, we believe it could be employed to enable screens of tablets, personal computers, mobile
devices and television screens to also provide audio output in place of conventional speakers.
Products
Our commercial HSS-3000 HyperSound Audio System consists of a HSS-3000 Amplifier and one or more HSS-3000 Emitters. A twoemitter system can also accommodate an optional woofer for lower frequencies and demonstrates both directionality and 3-D output.
The HSS-3000 Emitter features a 5-inch by 10-inch emitter surface and is separate from the amplifier, offering varied installation options.
One or more emitters is connected to an HSS-3000 Amplifier with standard speaker wire providing installation flexibility separate from the
media sources. Generally emitters are installed on or in a wall, on or in a ceiling or ceiling tile, on or in a kiosk or other video device, on a
separate stand, or by other methods that allow sound to be targeted at a specific audience. We offer a variety of supporting installation hardware
for customers.
Our HSS-3000 products are targeted primarily at the digital signage market where our product solutions are designed to mitigate the
effects of sound clutter often attributable to direct advertising products. In-store display advertising tends to irritate customers if too intrusive or
loud and annoy workers due to repetition. While there are applications for our products that do not rely on video screens (for example above a
museum display), and there are many screens intended for static display without sound, we believe the majority of existing and future digital
signage screen installations are potential outlets for our directed audio solutions.
Our products are designed to achieve focused, controlled sound that targets only those customers situated in specified locations such that
nearby customers and store clerks do not hear the message or hear it more muted than with traditional speakers. We believe the ability to focus
sound is a driving feature of our audio solution. We believe our technology offers a number of advantages:
•

delivery of more effective advertisements to store patrons;

•

ability to create a beam of sound and place it only where it is intended;

•

ability to direct advertising to patrons in sound zones while limiting the noise that interferes with workers or the conduct of
commerce at checkout or other locations;
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•

ability to manipulate or selectively position or diffuse the source of sound;

•

ability to deliver a beam of sound over longer distances than conventional speakers, such as down a grocery store aisle or from a tall
box store ceiling; and

•

ability to penetrate other competing ambient sounds to more effectively communicate.

Strategy
Our strategy is to grow our commercial product sales business and to leverage our intellectual property by partnering with large OEMs,
commercial integrators and kiosk manufacturers to accelerate product acceptance into our target consumer market areas. We intend to continue
to strengthen our position as a leader in directed audio by improving our technology, broadening our product line, identifying new directed audio
applications, acquiring new development and OEM partners, recruiting new commercial integrators, expanding relationships with existing
partners, and developing worldwide awareness of the benefits of directed audio and awareness of our HyperSound brand.
Marketing Strategy
We are developing a market position for our technology as a method to enhance stereo content to produce a clear, distinct and robust
sound image from just two thin emitters. While applicable to many consumer products, we are targeting 3D sound applications for computers,
video gaming, homes and theaters. We are developing awareness of the immersive, spatial sound experience produced by HyperSound
technology and we are focusing development and prototyping activities on identified commercial and consumer applications as we develop new
applications and develop our licensing business.
Product Development and Licensing Strategy
We believe that continued development and enhancement of our HSS technology is important to our success. Our business strategy is to
develop needed technology solutions and features through internal efforts and collaboration with partners. While we have achieved significant
milestones in technology and product development, we believe we must productize our new emitter technology and related electronics during
fiscal 2014 to meet the needs of consumer markets. Given current performance of prototypes, we believe this effort is mostly industrial design
and development of volume production processes. However, additional unknown obstacles could be encountered prior to commercialization.
We seek to license our solutions to established industry partners and OEMs to make products incorporating our technologies widely
available to consumers in high-growth markets. We intend to develop functional prototypes in each market vertical to demonstrate the viability
of our products, and leverage the prototypes to attract key joint development partners. We intend to license our technology and work with
partners to help develop and commercialize products. Although we may be required to provide certain manufacturing services or arrange
manufacturing of components for certain licensees, our main focus is to obtain revenues through licensing. We believe that we can develop a
position as an audio innovator by employing the strategy of designing a stream of patented audio products, penetrating new licensing accounts
and developing strong brand awareness.
Manufacturing Strategy
We have established in-house production capability for our HSS-3000 product line and believe we have proven manufacturability and met
the technical requirements for the digital signage market. We also are working to develop contract manufacturing to provide greater capacity for
our product sales in commercial markets and as a resource for future licensees, OEMs and VARs who may desire to access capacity for the
expanded consumer markets that we are pursuing. We believe that the manufacturing protocols we have established to address the digital signage
market will translate to the other market verticals that we are pursuing.
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Merger with Turtle Beach
We are in the early stage of transition strategies with Turtle Beach. Should the merger be completed, we expect target markets and
strategies related to our technology may change. We expect that post-merger we may elect to pursue development and introduction of certain
consumer HSS products for distribution through Turtle Beach’s global retail network rather than seek to license. We cannot currently identify the
specific strategic changes that may occur because the Board of Directors and management will change at the closing of the merger.
Manufacturing and Suppliers
Our current HSS-3000 product employs proprietary emitter technology employing custom thin piezo film manufactured pursuant to our
formulation. Our intellectual property includes the film formulation and methods to reliably produce emitters using this custom film. We depend
on a single piezo-film supplier, Measurement Specialties Inc. (“MSI”), to provide expertise and materials used in our proprietary emitters. One
supplier provides plastic and metal parts from tooling owned by us and any change to this source could possibly result in delays. We believe that
the other components incorporated in our products can be obtained from multiple supply sources.
Currently our in-house manufacturing and assembly capability consists of custom robotic manufacturing equipment used to automate the
production of our emitter sub-assemblies reducing the labor component and permitting higher volume production. Our electronics are produced
by a contract manufacturer from part kits we supply that are sourced from a variety of suppliers. We purchase film from MSI, molded plastic and
stamped metal parts from a supplier, electronic parts from a variety of suppliers and assemble and test our final products at our assembly facility
located in San Diego County, California. The loss of any of our suppliers could have a material impact on our results of operations or financial
condition.
Our technology is substantially different from proven, mass-produced sound transducer designs, and manufacturing and assembly
involves new processes and specialty materials. We believe the production processes we have established and tested are scalable to high quantity
mass production by contractors or licensees. Consistent with our manufacturing strategy, we expect to assist licensees to develop manufacturing
or arrange contract manufacturers to provide components to our licensing partners. We believe quality manufacturing is essential to the
performance of our products and the growth of our product business and the success of any future licensees.
Should the merger be consummated, we expect to leverage their supply chain as our production grows. We cannot currently predict the
impact or nature of changes in manufacturing and suppliers following the merger, when and if consummated.
Selling, Marketing and Customers
Product Sales
We employ four business development and sales personnel for product sale and licensing activities. We also engage outside sales agents
from time to time to target specific vertical markets. We sell products directly to commercial customers, through commercial integrators and
OEMs and value added resellers (VARs) to use our sound solution in their products and services. Commercial integrators are typically
audiovisual specialty firms that design, integrate and sell audio and video solutions to a diverse range of commercial customers. We also sell to
distributors and may in the future engage independent selling representatives.
A typical multi-unit digital signage sale requires coordination with other hardware and software providers and/or integrators followed by a
one or more pilot tests prior to rollout. Thus the sales process for multi-unit retail or other sales can be 3-6 months or longer.
During fiscal 2013, we focused on developing a pipeline of digital signage opportunities. After developing several successful commercial
pilot demonstrations and installations, including McDonalds and Build-A-Bear Workshop, we announced in May 2013 an expanded rollout to
Build-A-Bear Workshop outlets. In July 2013, we hired a sales and marketing officer to focus on leveraging these direct sale successes to
accelerate distribution through audio visual commercial integrators, distributors and OEMs, primarily kiosk manufacturers. We have recently
added 12 commercial integrators to represent HSS products and we are targeting additional leading integrators in various vertical markets
worldwide. Many commercial integrators specialize by vertical markets including corporate, retail, education, health care, hotel, restaurant/bar,
government, transportation, museums, large venues and other markets. We believe HSS is applicable across a wide range of such vertical
markets.
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Ingram Micro, Inc. is currently a distributor of HSS products in the U.S. and we have stocking distributors in Europe and Japan. We are
seeking to add additional distributors and resellers both domestically and international.
Licensing
Our executive management along with our business development and sales personnel execute our licensing sales strategy. We believe we
have been successful in identifying and engaging leaders in major targeted vertical market segments. Generally the licensing process requires an
initial introduction and demonstration followed by non-disclosure (NDA) agreements. Thereafter more targeted discussions focus on specific
applications with the goal of prototype collaboration and/or licensing.
Marketing
We intend to expand our marketing efforts to build awareness of our directed audio solutions through internet marketing, social media and
print advertising along with industry trade shows and exhibitions. We also expect to expend efforts to train and inform commercial integrators,
distributor and their staff of the benefits and attributes of our directed audio solutions.
We intend to actively promote the use of our trademarks and logos and require customers to display appropriate branding on products and
packaging and in advertising. We plan to work closely with our customers to enhance their success through a variety of support efforts. These
efforts include engineering support, tradeshow support, publicity and media relations programs, customized marketing materials, advertising,
and support at speaking engagements and industry conferences, as well as conducting in-person technology demonstrations or presentations for
the press and others to promote our technologies and products.
We participate in tradeshows and conferences from time to time to increase awareness of who we are and what we do and to market our
technology and products.
Merger with Turtle Beach
We believe that the merger will result in acceleration of the design, development, commercialization and distribution of our products and
technology because of Turtle Beach’s experience, financial resources, technical expertise, sales and marketing resources, scalable supply chain
and global distribution network and that, therefore, the merger will help drive future growth of our current business. While we have only
commenced transition planning, if and when the merger closes we would anticipate that additional resources would be applied to grow our
commercial product sales through the addition of sales and marketing resources.
Customer Concentration
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, revenues from two customers accounted for 43% and 24% of total revenues . For the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2012, revenues from three customers accounted for 30%, 16% and 16% of our total revenues. No other single
customer represented more than 10% of total revenues. We may continue in the future to be reliant on a few large customers or distributors and
the loss of customers could have a material impact on our financial results.
Research and Development Expenses
For the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, we expended $2,056,364 and $1,340,054, respectively, on research and development.
We continue to innovate, make improvements to our technology and develop new products and accordingly anticipate that we will continue to
devote substantial resources to research and development activities.
Warranties
We warrant our products to be free from defects in materials and workmanship for a period up to one year from the date of purchase. Our
product warranties generally are limited warranties, and in some instances impose certain shipping costs on the customer. We expect in most
cases it may be more economical and effective to replace a defective part, whether amplifier or emitter, rather than repair, but in the future we
may establish repair warranty service directly or through others.
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Competition
Our technologies and products compete with those of other companies. The consumer, commercial and government audio industry
markets are fragmented and competitive and include numerous manufacturers with audio products varying widely in price, quality and
distribution channels. Many of our present and potential future competitors have substantially greater resources to devote to further technological
and new product developments.
We believe our HSS-3000 product series is the leading parametric sound system with limited direct competition offering comparable
directivity. Companies with non-parametric products promoted as directed sound applications include Brown Innovations, Inc., the producer of
Sound Domes, and Panphonics, producer of the Sound Shower large panel speaker. Other companies produce or have in the past attempted to
introduce parametric speaker concepts for directed sound applications. Holosonic Research Labs, Inc. produces a parametric speaker called the
Audio Spotlight and Mitsubishi has sold a parametric speaker product in Japan. These companies and others employ or have employed
electrostatic and piezoelectric emitter devices or other concepts that we believe have lower output and are more expensive than our proprietary
solution. However, these competitors or others may introduce products with features and performance competitive to our products and some also
have significant advantages over us including name or brand recognition and financial resources. We believe we compete favorably against the
aforementioned products based on factors including our ease of use, greater directivity, reduced cost and overall performance.
The digital signage market also uses numerous traditional commercial direct-radiating sound products where directed or focused audio is
not required or desired or where customers have not been exposed to the advantages of directed audio to communicate. Accordingly we compete
with a diverse range of traditional commercial sound manufacturers worldwide, many with substantially greater resources and distribution.
As we enter the consumer market for speakers in computers, gaming devices and home audio, we will compete within an audio industry
that is fragmented and competitive and includes numerous manufacturers offering audio products that vary widely in price, quality and
distribution methods. Manufacturers such as Harmon International Industries, Bose, Klipsch, Polk Audio, Pioneer, Sony, Boston Acoustics, LG,
Samsung and many other large competitors have substantially greater resources to devote to advancing their technologies and developing and
marketing new products and technologies. While we seek to license these and others, we will compete for revenues in a market with declining
prices and slim margins. We believe that we can compete based primarily on the quality and performance of our proprietary technology and our
ability to meet OEMs’ needs to differentiate their products.
Seasonality
We do not currently expect to experience any significant seasonality trends, although seasonality trends may occur in the future.
Government Regulation
Our electronic products are subject to various regulations and are required to meet the specifications of agencies in the United States and
in countries where we export our products. We believe we are in substantial compliance with all current applicable regulations, and we have all
material governmental permits, licenses, qualifications and approvals required for our operations in the United States and elsewhere.
Our parametric sound technology is subject to control under the Radiation Control for Health and Safety Act of 1968, and the associated
regulations promulgated by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA), as an electrical emitter of ultrasonic vibrations. Under the terms of such
regulations, we have provided an abbreviated report to the FDA describing the technology. The FDA may respond to the report and request
changes or safeguards to the technology, but it has not done so to date. We also are required to notify the FDA in writing should a product be
found to have a defect relating to safety of use due to the emission of electronic product radiation. We do not believe our technology poses any
human health risks. However, it is possible that we, or one of our customers, could be required to modify the technology, or a product
incorporating the technology, to comply with requirements that may be imposed by the FDA.
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In the United States, our products must comply with various regulations and standards defined by the Federal Communications
Commission and the Consumer Products Safety Commission. Internationally, our products must comply with regulations or standards
established by authorities in the countries into which we sell our products, as well as various multinational or extranational bodies. The European
Union, or EU, has issued a directive on the restriction of certain hazardous substances in electronic and electrical equipment, known as RoHs,
and has enacted the Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment directive, or WEEE, applicable to persons who import electrical or electronic
equipment into Europe. We believe our products are compliant with these emerging regulations. We are implementing measures to comply with
each of these directives but as individual EU nations adopt implementation guidelines these rules could become more stringent which could
require us to both redesign our products to comply with the standards and develop compliance administration systems. Although we believe our
products are in compliance with domestic and international standards and regulations in countries to which we export, we can offer no
assurances that our product offerings will remain compliant with evolving standards and regulations.
We are subject to various federal, state, local, and foreign environmental laws and regulations, including those governing the use,
discharge and disposal of hazardous substances in the ordinary course of our manufacturing process. We believe that our current manufacturing
and other operations comply in all material respects with applicable environmental laws and regulations; however, it is possible that future
environmental legislation may be enacted or current environmental legislation may be interpreted to create an environmental liability with
respect to our facilities, operations, or products.
Our pursuit of clearance for sales of HSS products as a medical device for the hearing impaired will subject us to substantial additional
regulation. Unless an exemption applies, each medical device distributed commercially in the United States requires either prior 510(k) clearance
or pre-market approval (“PMA”) from the FDA. The FDA classifies medical devices into one of three classes. Class I devices are subject to only
general controls, such as establishment registration and device listing, labeling, medical device reporting, and prohibitions against adulteration
and misbranding. Class II medical devices generally require prior 510(k) clearance before they may be commercially marketed in the United
States. The FDA will clear marketing of a medical device through the 510(k) process if the FDA is satisfied that the new product has been
demonstrated to be substantially equivalent to another legally marketed device, or predicate, device, and otherwise meets the FDA’s
requirements. Class II devices are also subject to general controls and may be subject to performance standards and other special controls.
Devices deemed by the FDA to pose the greatest risk, such as life-sustaining, life-supporting or implantable devices, or devices deemed not
substantially equivalent to a predicate device, are placed in Class III, generally requiring submission of a PMA supported by clinical trial data.
To obtain 510(k) clearance, we recently submitted a notification to the FDA seeking to demonstrate that our device is substantially equivalent to
a predicate device, i.e., a device that was in commercial distribution before May 28, 1976, a device that has been reclassified from Class III to
Class I or Class II, or a 510(k)-cleared device. The FDA’s 510(k) clearance process generally takes from three to twelve months from the date
the application is submitted, but can take significantly longer. If the FDA determines that the device, or its intended use, is not substantially
equivalent to a previously-cleared device or use, the device is automatically placed into Class III, requiring the submission of a PMA. Any
modification to a 510(k)-cleared device that would constitute a major change in its intended use, design or manufacture, requires a new 510(k)
clearance and may even, in some circumstances, require a PMA, if the change raises complex or novel scientific issues. And once a medical
device is cleared for marketing there are pervasive and continuing regulations governing the manufacture and marketing of a product. There can
be no assurance we will obtain clearance to sell HSS as a medical device.
Intellectual Property
We have a substantial base of intellectual property assets including patents, pending patents, trademarks and tradecraft and trade secrets
such as know-how. We operate in an industry where innovations, investment in new ideas and protection of resulting intellectual property rights
are important to success. We expect to rely on a variety of intellectual property protections for our products and technologies, including
contractual obligations, and we intend to pursue a policy of vigorously enforcing such rights.
In connection with the spin-off, LRAD Corporation contributed to us 28 U.S. patents, three foreign patents and several pending patents.
We reviewed the patents in connection with our technology strategy and abandoned some by not paying renewal fees or continuing prosecution
of pending applications. We currently own 24 U.S. patents, two foreign patents and 32 pending patents. We consider eight U.S. patents and our
pending patents as directly supporting our technology platform and consider our other patents to be defensive or blocking in nature. We
continually evaluate our patent strategy based on new developments and information and may reclassify certain patents in the future depending
on such information. We also believe we own important tradecraft and trade secrets related to our technology and in the design and production of
our emitters.
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In addition to such factors as innovation, technological expertise and experienced personnel, we believe that a strong patent position is
important to compete effectively and engage in licensing in the sound reproduction industry. We have an ongoing policy of filing patent
applications to seek protection for novel features of our products and technologies. Prior to the filing and granting of patents, our policy is to
disclose key features to patent counsel and maintain these features as trade secrets prior to product introduction. Patent applications may not
result in issued patents covering all important claims and could be denied in their entirety.
The electronics industry is characterized by frequent litigation regarding patent and other intellectual property rights. Others, including
academic institutions and competitors, hold numerous patents in electronics and sound reproduction. Although we are not aware of any existing
patents that would materially inhibit our ability to continue to commercialize our technology; others may assert claims in the future. Such claims,
with or without merit, may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
The validity of our existing patents has not been adjudicated by any court. Competitors may bring legal action to challenge the validity of
our existing or future patents or may attempt to circumvent the protection provided by such patents. The failure to obtain patent protection or the
loss of patent protection on our existing and future technologies or the circumvention of our patents by competitors could have a material
adverse effect on our ability to compete successfully.
We retain three U.S. trade names along with additional foreign rights to some of the names. We intend to file for trade name and
trademark protection when appropriate. Trade names or trademarks may not be successfully maintained, defended or protected.
Our policy is to enter into nondisclosure agreements with each employee and consultant or third party to whom any of our proprietary
information is disclosed. These agreements prohibit the disclosure of confidential information to others, both during and subsequent to
employment or the duration of the working relationship. These agreements may not prevent disclosure of confidential information or provide
adequate remedies for any breach.
Employees and Executive Officers
We have four executive officers, Kenneth F. Potashner, our Executive Chairman, Elwood G. Norris, our President and Chief Scientist,
James A. Barnes, our Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary and Todd Savitt our Vice President of Sales and Marketing. We have
eleven other full-time employees. We engage outside consultants for business development, product design, electronics and manufacturing
expertise or other functions from time to time. We also lease assembly personnel as required for production, currently three full-time equivalent
persons.
Available Information
Our Internet address is www.parametricsound.com . Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports, are available free of charge on our website as soon as reasonably practicable after we
electronically file such material with or furnish it to the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Our SEC reports can be accessed
through the investor relations section of our website. Additionally, our Code of Ethics, Compensation Committee Charter and Audit Committee
Charter are available on our website. The information found on, or accessible through, our website is not incorporated by reference into and is
not part of this or any other report we file with or furnish to the SEC.
Alternatively, the public may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the its Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE.,
Washington, DC 20549, on official business days during the hours of 10 a.m. to 3 p.m. The public may obtain information on the operation of
the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC and state the address of that site
(http://www.sec.gov).
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
In addition to the information contained elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, you should consider carefully the following risk factors
related to Parametric Sound, the merger agreement and the merger. You should also consider the risk factors pertaining to Turtle Beach under
“Risk Factors – Risks Related to Turtle Beach’s Business” which are set forth in the preliminary proxy statement we filed with the SEC on
November 4, 2013 and are incorporated herein by reference. If any of such risks actually occur, our business, financial condition, results of
operations, cash flows and stock price could be materially adversely affected. This Annual Report on Form 10-K also contains forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking
statements as a result of certain factors, including the risks faced by us described below and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
RISKS RELATED TO THE MERGER BETWEEN PARAMETRIC AND TURTLE BEACH
Although Parametric and Turtle Beach expect that the merger will result in benefits to the combined company, the combined company may
not realize those benefits because of various challenges.
Parametric and Turtle Beach believe that the merger will result in Turtle Beach’s experience, financial resources, technical expertise, sales
and marketing resources, scalable supply chain and global distribution network helping to accelerate the design, development, commercialization
and distribution of pit products and technology, including our HyperSound-based products, in particular in our three target market segments, and
that the merger will drive future growth across the businesses of the combined company. However, the integration of a new company is a
complex, costly and time-consuming process. This process may disrupt the business of either or both of the companies, and there can be no
assurance that the combination will result in the realization of the anticipated benefits from the merger.
The announcement and pendency of the merger could have an adverse effect on our stock price and/or our business, financial condition,
results of operations or business prospects.
The announcement and pendency of the merger has had and could continue to have an adverse effect on our stock price and increase the
price volatility and risk of trading in our stock. Our business, financial condition, results of operations or business prospects could also be
adversely affected. For example, third parties may seek to terminate and/or renegotiate their relationships with us as a result of the merger,
whether pursuant to the terms of their existing agreements or otherwise. Potential licensees and commercial customers may decide not to
continue discussions with us. In addition, the attention of our management may be directed toward the completion of the merger and related
matters and may be diverted from the day-to-day business operations, including from other opportunities that otherwise might be beneficial to
us.
Failure to complete the merger could impact negatively our business, financial condition or results of operations or our stock price.
The completion of the merger is subject to a number of conditions and there can be no assurance that the conditions to the completion of
the merger will be satisfied. If the merger is not completed, we will be subject to several risks, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

the current trading price of our common stock may reflect a market assumption that the merger will occur, meaning that a failure to
complete the merger could result in a decline in the price of our common stock;
certain of our executive officers and/or directors may seek other employment opportunities, and the departure of any of our executive
officers and the possibility that we would be unable to recruit and hire a replacement executive could impact negatively our business
and operating results;
our Board of Directors would need to reevaluate our strategic alternatives, which alternatives may include a sale of the company,
liquidation of the company, a return to pre-merger strategies of seeking licensing candidates and growing commercial sales, or other
strategic transactions;
we may be required to pay Turtle Beach a termination fee of $1,000,000 and/or enter into a license agreement to Turtle Beach for
certain of our intellectual property for use in console audio products on an exclusive basis and computer audio products on a nonexclusive basis if the merger agreement is terminated under certain circumstances;
we have incurred and expect to incur substantial additional transaction and litigation costs in connection with the merger whether or
not the merger is completed;
we would not realize any of the anticipated benefits of having completed the merger; and
under the merger agreement, we are subject to certain restrictions on the conduct of our business prior to the completion of the
merger, which restrictions could adversely affect our ability to realize our business strategies or take advantage of certain business
opportunities in the event the merger is not completed.

If the merger is not completed, these risks may materialize and materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of
operations or stock price.
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The issuance of shares of our common stock to Turtle Beach stockholders in connection with the merger will dilute substantially the voting
power of our current stockholders.
Pursuant to the merger agreement, at the effective time of the merger, we will issue shares of common stock to the former Turtle Beach
stockholders which, together with options to purchase shares of Turtle Beach common stock that will be converted into options to purchase
shares of our common stock (and will be assumed by us at the effective time of the merger), will represent approximately 80% of our common
stock on a fully-diluted basis after the merger, subject to adjustment pursuant to the merger agreement. Accordingly, the issuance of shares of
our common stock to Turtle Beach stockholders in connection with the merger will reduce significantly the relative voting power of each share
of our common stock held by our current stockholders. Consequently, our stockholders as a group will have significantly less influence over the
management and policies of the combined company after the merger than prior to the merger.
The Per Share Number and Per Share Exchange Ratio are not adjustable based on the market price of our common stock and if the market
price of our common stock fluctuates, the market value of the shares of each party to the merger can change prior to the completion of the
merger.
The Per Share Number and Per Share Exchange Ratio, as calculated in the merger agreement, which determine the number of shares to be
issued to the former Turtle Beach stockholders pursuant to the merger and the number of Parametric options to be granted to former Turtle
Beach option holders, respectively, is based on the fully-diluted number of shares of our common stock and Turtle Beach capital stock
outstanding as of immediately prior to the completion of the merger, subject to adjustment as provided in the merger agreement. No adjustments
to the Per Share Number or Per Share Exchange Ratio will be made based on changes in the trading price of our common stock or the value of
Turtle Beach capital stock prior to the completion of the merger. Changes in the trading price of our common stock or the value of Turtle Beach
capital stock may result from a variety of factors, including, among others, general market and economic conditions, changes in our or Turtle
Beach’s respective businesses, operations and prospects, market assessment of the likelihood that the merger will be completed as anticipated or
at all, and regulatory considerations. Many of these factors are beyond our control or Turtle Beach’s control. As a result, the value of the shares
of our common stock issued to Turtle Beach stockholders in connection with the merger could be substantially less or substantially more than the
current market value of our common stock. Likewise, such factors including those related to Turtle Beach could affect the value of our common
stock prior to closing of the merger.
The “Parent Percentage” (as defined in the merger agreement) is not adjustable based on issuances by us of additional shares of our
common stock either upon the exercise of options or warrants or issuance of certain new securities or otherwise, and any new issuances
could result in additional dilution to our current stockholders.
Subject to certain conditions in the merger agreement, we are not prohibited from issuing additional equity securities, including securities
issued pursuant to the exercise of outstanding options or warrants or the granting of new stock options or the issuance of new securities related to
a qualified offering or otherwise. It is possible that prior to the completion of the merger, we may grant additional stock options or issue
additional equity securities including in connection with a Qualified Equity Offering. The Parent Percentage, as defined in the merger agreement,
which determines in part the number of shares to be issued to the former Turtle Beach stockholders pursuant to the merger and the number of
Parametric options to be granted to former Turtle Beach option holders, respectively, is not adjustable based on issuances by us of additional
shares of our common stock, or an increase in our fully-diluted shares by issuance of additional stock options or warrants as such (but may be
adjusted in the event of a Qualified Equity Offering). Therefore, any such new issuances by us could result in additional dilution to our current
stockholders.
We have incurred and will continue to incur significant transaction and litigation costs in connection with the merger, some of which will be
required to be paid even if the merger is not completed.
We have incurred and will continue to incur significant transaction and litigation costs in connection with the merger. These costs are
primarily associated with the fees of attorneys and accountants and our financial advisors. Many of these costs will be paid even if the merger is
not completed. In addition, if the merger agreement is terminated due to certain triggering events specified in the merger agreement, we may be
required to pay Turtle Beach a termination fee of $1,000,000 and may be required to enter into the break-up fee license agreement.
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The merger agreement and certain related voting agreements contain provisions that could discourage or make it difficult for a third party to
acquire us prior to the completion of the merger.
The merger agreement contains provisions that may make it difficult for us to entertain a third-party proposal for an acquisition. These
provisions include:
•
•

certain prohibitions on our soliciting or engaging in discussions or negotiations regarding any alternative acquisition proposal outside
a limited 30-day go shop period that expired on September 5, 2013; and
the requirement that we pay Turtle Beach a termination fee of $1,000,000 and/or enter into the break-up fee license agreement if the
merger agreement is terminated under certain circumstances.

In addition, pursuant to agreements entered into between Turtle Beach and our three executive officers, each executive officer is subject to
a voting agreement, pursuant to which he has agreed to vote in favor of the approval and adoption of the merger agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereby and vote against other acquisition proposals defined in the agreement. These provisions might discourage an otherwise
interested third party from considering or proposing an acquisition of us, even one that may be deemed of greater value than the merger to our
stockholders. Furthermore, even if a third party elects to propose an acquisition, the potential termination and the break-up fee license agreement
may result in that third party offering a lower value to our stockholders than such third party might otherwise have offered.
Because the lack of a public market for Turtle Beach’s outstanding shares makes it more difficult to evaluate the value of such shares, Turtle
Beach stockholders may receive consideration in the merger that is greater than the fair market value of the Turtle Beach shares.
Turtle Beach is privately held and its outstanding capital stock is not traded in any public market. The lack of a public market makes it
difficult to determine the fair market value of Turtle Beach or its shares of capital stock. Since the percentage of our equity to be issued to the
Turtle Beach stockholders was determined based on negotiations between the parties, it is possible that the value of the our common stock to be
issued in connection with the merger will be greater than the fair market value of Turtle Beach.
The NASDAQ Capital Market considers the anticipated merger of Parametric and Turtle Beach to be a business combination with a nonNASDAQ entity, resulting in a change in control of Parametric; and therefore, has required that Parametric submit a new initial listing
application, which requires certain actions on the part of the combined company which may not be successful and, if unsuccessful, could
make it more difficult for holders of shares of the combined company to sell their shares.
The NASDAQ Capital Market considers the merger between Parametric and Turtle Beach to be a business combination with a nonNASDAQ entity, resulting in a change in control of Parametric and has required that Parametric submit a new initial listing application. The
NASDAQ Capital Market may not approve Parametric’s new initial listing application for The NASDAQ Capital Market on a timely basis, or at
all. If this occurs then the merger may not be completed and if the merger is still completed, stockholders may have difficulty converting their
investments into cash effectively.
The merger will result in changes to the our Board and we may pursue different strategies after the merger than we may have pursued
independently.
If the merger is completed, the composition of our Board will change in accordance with the merger agreement. Following completion of
the merger, our Board is expected to consist of nine members initially to be comprised of two directors appointed by us, five directors appointed
by former Turtle Beach stockholders and two vacancies. Currently, it is anticipated that after the merger we will continue to advance the current
product development efforts and business strategies of both Parametric and Turtle Beach. However, because a majority of the the Board after the
merger will initially be comprised of directors selected by Turtle Beach, following the merger we may pursue certain business strategies that we
would not have pursued had the merger not taken place.
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Ownership of the combined company's common stock will be highly concentrated, and it will prevent our stockholders from influencing
many significant corporate decisions and may result in conflicts of interest that could cause the combined company's stock price to decline.
Upon completion of the merger, certain Turtle Beach stockholders acting as a group are expected to beneficially own or control a
significant majority of the combined company. Accordingly, these stockholders, acting as a group pursuant to a stockholder agreement, will have
substantial influence over the outcome of corporate actions requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors, any merger,
consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of our assets or any other significant corporate transaction. These stockholders also may exert
influence in delaying or preventing a change in control, even if such change in control would benefit the other stockholders. In addition, the
significant concentration of stock ownership may affect adversely the market value of our common stock due to investors' perception that such
conflicts of interest may exist or arise.
Following the merger, we expected to be a “controlled company” within the meaning of the corporate governance standards of NASDAQ
and, as a result, qualify for, and rely on, exemptions from certain corporate governance requirements.
Upon completion of the merger, it is anticipated that Parametric will be a “controlled company” under NASDAQ rules. A “controlled
company” under NASDAQ rules is a listed company more than 50 percent of the voting power of which is held by an individual, a group or
another company (and which elects to be treated as a “controlled company”). Following the merger, certain stockholders of Turtle Beach will
constitute a group controlling more than 50% of the voting power of our voting stock. As a “controlled company,” we will be permitted to, and
intend to, opt out of certain NASDAQ rules that would otherwise require (i) a majority of the members of the our Board to be independent, (ii)
that the compensation committee be comprised entirely of independent directors, and (iii) that we establish a nominating and governance
committee comprised entirely of independent directors, or otherwise ensure that director nominees are determined or recommended to the Board
by the independent members of the Board. Accordingly, after the merger, you will not have the same protections afforded to stockholders of
companies that are subject to all of the corporate governance requirements of NASDAQ.
Following the merger, sales of shares of our common stock into the market in the future could cause the market price of our common stock
to drop significantly, even if our business is doing well.
Concurrently with the execution of the merger agreement, Parametric and Turtle Beach entered into Stockholder Agreements and
Irrevocable Proxies, referred to as the “voting agreements,” with Messrs. Potashner, Barnes and Norris, as well as certain entities over which
they exercise voting and/or investment control, collectively referred to as the “management stockholders.” Under the voting agreements, the
management stockholders have agreed to a lock-up restriction whereby they have agreed not to sell or otherwise transfer the shares of Parametric
common stock beneficially owned by them (or subsequently acquired by them) until six months following the closing of the merger, subject to
certain exceptions including, without limitation, the right to sell shares in order to pay certain taxes which may arise in connection with the
merger.
Additionally, pursuant to the Stockholder Agreement, Turtle Beach stockholders have agreed to a lock-up restriction whereby they will
not sell or otherwise transfer the merger shares for a period of six months following the closing of the merger, subject to certain exceptions
including, without limitation, the right to sell shares in order to pay certain taxes which may arise in connection with the merger. Additionally,
the Stockholder Agreement provides for certain post-closing registration rights after the merger, which rights could facilitate the sale of the
shares held by Turtle Beach stockholders into the market.
If the shares held by the aforementioned stockholders are sold, or if it is perceived that they will be sold in the public market, the trading
price of our common stock could decline.
Several lawsuits have been filed against Parametric, Parametric’s directors, Merger Sub and Turtle Beach challenging the merger, and an
adverse judgment in such lawsuits may prevent the merger from becoming effective or from becoming effective within the expected
timeframe.
Parametric, our directors and Turtle Beach are named as defendants in class action lawsuits brought by stockholders challenging the
proposed merger, seeking, among other things, to enjoin the defendants from consummating the merger on the agreed-upon terms. If the
plaintiffs are successful in obtaining an injunction prohibiting the parties from completing the merger on the agreed-upon terms, the injunction
may prevent the completion of the merger in the expected timeframe (or altogether).
In connection with the consummation of the merger, Parametric and its subsidiaries will become subject to the terms and conditions of
Turtle Beach’s credit facility and, accordingly, will be required to grant to the lenders under such facility a first-priority lien against the
assets of Parametric and its subsidiaries.
Upon the closing of the merger, Parametric and its subsidiaries will become parties to Turtle Beach’s credit facility and
subject to the terms and conditions thereof. For more information about this credit facility and related risks, see the following sections in the
preliminary proxy statement we filed on November 4, 2013, which are incorporated herein by reference, entitled “Turtle Beach’s Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Liquidity and Capital Resources – Debt Obligations,” “Risk Factors
– Turtle Beach depends upon the availability of capital under its credit facility…” and “Risk Factors – Turtle Beach’s Credit Facility provides its
lenders with a first priority lien against substantially all of its assets…” If the combined company were to fail to comply with the affirmative and
negative covenants of the credit facility, the lenders under such facility could under certain circumstances foreclose on the assets of the
combined company, which would result in a material adverse effect on the combined company’s financial condition and results of operations.
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RISKS RELATED TO THE COMBINED COMPANY IF THE MERGER IS COMPLETED
The success of the merger will depend, in large part, on the ability of the combined company following completion of the merger to realize
the anticipated benefits from combining the businesses of Parametric and Turtle Beach.
The merger involves the integration of two companies that previously have operated independently with operating offices in two distinct
locations. Parametric and Turtle Beach are able to conduct only limited planning regarding the integration of the two companies prior to
completion of the merger. Significant management attention and resources will be required to integrate the two companies after completion of
the merger. The failure to integrate successfully and to manage successfully the challenges presented by the integration process may result in the
combined company’s failure to achieve some or all of the anticipated benefits of the merger.
Potential difficulties that may be encountered in the integration process include the following:
•

using the combined company’s cash and other assets efficiently to develop the business of the combined company;

•

appropriately managing the liabilities of the combined company;

•

potential unknown or currently unquantifiable liabilities associated with the merger and the operations of the combined company;

•

potential unknown and unforeseen expenses, delays or regulatory conditions associated with the merger; and

•

performance shortfalls at one or both of the companies as a result of the diversion of management’s attention caused by completing
the merger and integrating the companies’ operations.

Delays in the integration process could adversely affect the combined company’s business, financial results, financial condition and stock
price following the merger. Even if the combined company were able to integrate the business operations successfully, there can be no assurance
that this integration will result in the realization of the full benefits of synergies, innovation and operational efficiencies that may be possible
from this integration and that these benefits will be achieved within a reasonable period of time.
Future results of the combined company may differ materially from the unaudited pro forma financial statements presented in the
preliminary proxy statement and the financial forecasts prepared by Parametric and Turtle Beach in connection with discussions concerning
the merger.
The future results of the combined company may be materially different from those shown in the unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial statements presented in the preliminary proxy statement filed on November 4, 2013, which show only a combination of the
historical results of Parametric and Turtle Beach, and the financial forecasts prepared by each company in connection with discussions
concerning the merger. Parametric and Turtle Beach expect to incur significant costs associated with completion of the merger and combining
the operations of the two companies. The exact magnitude of these costs is not yet known, but is estimated to be approximately $9 million
between the two companies. Furthermore, these costs may decrease the capital that the combined company could use for continued development
of the combined company’s business in the future or may cause the combined company to seek to raise new capital sooner than expected.
The combined company’s ability to utilize Parametric’s net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards in the future is subject to substantial
limitations and may be further limited as a result of the merger.
Under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), if a corporation undergoes an “ownership
change” (generally defined as a greater than 50 percent change (by value) in its equity ownership over a three-year period), the corporation’s
ability to use its pre-change net operating loss carryforwards and other pre-change tax attributes to offset its post-change income may be limited.
Further, if the historic business of Parametric is not treated as being continued by the combined entity for the two-year period beginning on the
date of the merger (referred to as the “continuity of business requirement”), the pre-transaction net operating loss carryforward deductions
become substantially reduced or unavailable for use by the surviving corporation in the transaction. It is expected that the merger with Turtle
Beach will result in an “ownership change” of Parametric. Accordingly, the combined company’s ability to utilize Parametric’s net operating
loss and tax credit carryforwards may be substantially limited. These limitations, in turn, could result in increased future tax payments for the
combined company, which could have a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition or results of operations of the combined
company.
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Under Section 384 of the Code, available net operating loss carryovers of Parametric or Turtle Beach may not be available to offset
certain gains arising after the merger from assets held by the other corporation at the effective time of the merger. This limitation will apply to
the extent that the gain is attributable to an unrealized built-in-gain in the assets of Parametric or Turtle Beach existing at the effective time of the
merger. To the extent that any such gains are recognized in the five-year period after the merger upon the disposition of any such assets, the net
operating loss carryovers of the other corporation will not be available to offset such gains (but the net operating loss carryovers of the
corporation that owned such assets will not be limited by Section 384 although they may be subject to other limitations under Section 382 as
described above).
The price of Parametric common stock after the merger is completed may be affected by factors different from those currently affecting the
price of Parametric common stock.
The business of Parametric differs significantly from the business of Turtle Beach; and, accordingly, the results of operations of the
combined company and the trading price of Parametric common stock following completion of the merger may be affected significantly by
factors different from those currently affecting the independent results of operations of Parametric.
The combined company’s management will be required to devote substantial time to comply with public company regulations.
The combined company will incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses that Turtle Beach did not incur as a private company.
The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act as well as rules implemented by the SEC
and The NASDAQ Global Market, impose various requirements on public companies, including those related to corporate governance practices.
The combined company’s management and other personnel will need to devote a substantial amount of time to these requirements. Certain
members of Turtle Beach’s management, which will continue as the management of the combined company, do not have significant experience
in addressing these requirements. Moreover, these rules and regulations will increase the combined company’s legal and financial compliance
costs relative to those of Turtle Beach and will make some activities more time consuming and costly.
The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that the combined company maintain effective internal control for financial
reporting and disclosure controls and procedures. In particular, the combined company must perform system and process evaluation and testing
of its internal control over financial reporting to allow management and the combined company’s independent registered public accounting firm
to report on the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The
combined company’s compliance with these requirements will require that it incur substantial accounting and related expenses and expend
significant management efforts. The combined company will need to hire additional accounting and financial staff to satisfy the ongoing
requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The costs of hiring such staff may be material and there can be no assurance that such
staff will be immediately available to the combined company. Moreover, if the combined company is not able to comply with the requirements
of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, or if the combined company or its independent registered public accounting firm identifies
deficiencies in its internal control over financial reporting that are deemed to be material weaknesses, investors could lose confidence in the
accuracy and completeness of the combined company’s financial reports, the market price of the combined company’s common stock could
decline and the combined company could be subject to sanctions or investigations by The NASDAQ Capital Market, the SEC or other regulatory
authorities.
After completion of the merger, the combined company will possess not only all of the assets but also all of the liabilities of both Parametric
and Turtle Beach. Discovery of previously undisclosed or unknown liabilities could have an adverse effect on the combined company’s
business, operating results and financial condition.
Acquisitions involve risks, including inaccurate assessment of undisclosed, contingent or other liabilities or problems. After completion
of the merger, the combined company will possess not only all of the assets, but also all of the liabilities of both Parametric and Turtle Beach.
Although Parametric conducted a due diligence investigation of Turtle Beach and its known and potential liabilities and obligations, and Turtle
Beach conducted a due diligence investigation of Parametric and its known and potential liabilities and obligations, it is possible that
undisclosed, contingent or other liabilities or problems may arise after completion of the merger, which could have an adverse effect on the
combined company’s business, operating results and financial condition.
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Parametric and Turtle Beach do not expect the combined company to pay cash dividends.
Parametric and Turtle Beach anticipate that the combined company will retain its earnings, if any, for future growth and therefore not pay
any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Investors seeking cash dividends should not invest in the combined company’s common stock for
that purpose.
Anti-takeover provisions in the combined company’s charter and bylaws may prevent or frustrate attempts by stockholders to change the
board of directors or management and could make a third-party acquisition of the combined company difficult.
The combined company’s certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as amended, will contain provisions that may discourage, delay or
prevent a merger, acquisition or other change in control that stockholders may consider favorable, including transactions in which stockholders
might otherwise receive a premium for their shares. These provisions could limit the price that investors might be willing to pay in the future for
shares of the combined company’s common stock.
RISK FACTORS RELATING TO PARAMETRIC
Risks Related to Parametric’s Financial Condition and Future Capital Requirements
We have not generated significant revenues and we have a history of operating losses, expect additional losses and may not achieve or
sustain profitability.
Substantially all our revenues to date have been derived from sales of one product to a limited number of customers. We must expand our
customer base and introduce new products to generate additional revenues. We have incurred operating losses since our Spin-Off and expect
additional losses until we achieve revenues and resulting margins to offset our operating costs. We expect to expend significant resources on
personnel, consultants, intellectual property protection, research and development, marketing, production and administration. Our net loss for the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 was $7,670,424 and $4,462,182, respectively. Our ability to achieve future profitability is
dependent on a variety of factors, many outside our control. Failure to achieve profitability or sustain profitability, if achieved, may require us to
continue to obtain additional funding which could have a material negative impact on the market value of our common stock or be dilutive.
We have incurred and expect to continue to incur substantial merger related costs and until and unless our revenues grow sufficiently to
sustain operations, we must depend on financing to sustain operations.
Developing products and introducing new technology requires substantial amounts of capital. A merger such as that being undertaken by
us requires substantial expenditures for legal and related business transaction costs. Through September 30, 2013 we expended $1.3 million on
business transaction expenses and expect to incur substantial additional costs in the first quarter of 2014 and or until the merger is completed or
terminated. If the merger is not completed, we expect our cash resources to decrease as we continue to use cash to pay merger related transaction
costs and fund operations. While we believe that existing working capital resources and product revenues will be sufficient to meet our operating
requirements over the next year this estimate may prove incorrect or we, nonetheless, may choose to raise additional financing.
Our future capital requirements will depend upon numerous factors including:
•

the timing, cost and successful completion of the merger;

•

the success, progress, timing and costs of our business development efforts to obtain licensing arrangements and our efforts to
evaluate possible strategic alternatives with respect to the Company and our technology;

•

our ability to obtain value from our current products and technologies and our ability to sell or license new products and technologies
and the costs and expenses of such activities;

•

the perceived, potential and actual commercial success of the our products;

•

our operating expenses;

•

the progress, timing, cost and results of our regulatory efforts related to hearing applications of its technology;

•

the costs of preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining and enforcing patent claims and other intellectual property rights;

•

the emergence of competing products and technologies, and other adverse market developments; and

•

the resolution of the pending purported shareholder class action litigation and any amount we may be required to pay as deductible or
in excess of its directors’ and officers’ liability insurance.
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In the event we require additional working capital to fund operations or otherwise elect to raise additional funds, management may seek to
acquire any such additional funds through equity or debt financing arrangements. There is no assurance that any financing transaction will be
available on terms acceptable to us, or at all. If the we raise additional funds by issuing equity securities, our stockholders may experience
dilution. Debt financing, if available, may involve covenants restricting our operations or our ability to incur additional debt.
If we do not complete the merger and if adequate funds are not available in the future or are not available on acceptable terms, we may
need to reduce our operating costs which may have a material adverse effect on our financial position and results of operations.
We will need additional capital for future growth and raising additional funds by issuing additional equity securities may cause dilution to
existing stockholders, raising additional funds by issuing additional debt financing may restrict our operations and raising additional funds
through licensing arrangements may require us to relinquish proprietary rights.
If the merger is not completed we may need additional capital to support continued operations and our future growth. While we may be
able to generate some funds from operations, existing working capital may not be sufficient due to the significant merger costs and operating
losses. Principal factors affecting the availability of internally generated funds include:
•

failure of product sales and licensing proceeds sufficient to meet planned projections;

•

consumer spending levels impacting the sale of our products or those of any future licensees;

•

working capital requirements to support business growth;

•

our ability to control spending;

•

introduction of new competing technologies;

•

product mix and effect on margins; and

•

acceptance of our existing and future products and technologies in existing and new markets.

In the event we would be required to raise additional funds through the issuance of equity or convertible debt securities, the percentage
ownership of our stockholders could be diluted significantly, and these newly issued securities may have rights, preferences or privileges senior
to those of its existing stockholders. In addition, the issuance of any equity securities could be at a discount to the market price.
If we incur debt financing, the payment of principal and interest on such indebtedness may limit funds available for our business
activities, and we could be subject to covenants that restrict our ability to operate our business and make distributions to our stockholders. These
restrictive covenants may include limitations on additional borrowing and specific restrictions on the use of our assets, as well as prohibitions on
our ability to create liens, pay dividends, redeem stock or make investments. There is no assurance that any equity or debt financing transaction
will be available on acceptable terms, or at all.
As an alternative to raising additional financing by issuing additional equity or debt securities, we may choose to license one or more of
our products or technologies to a third party, sell certain assets or rights under license agreements or enter into other business collaborations or
combinations, including a possible sale or merger of our company. We have no license revenues to date and there is no assurance of our ability
to license or otherwise obtain funds through licensing or similar activity. If we obtain additional funds through licensing arrangements, we may
be required to relinquish greater or all rights to our products at an earlier stage of development or on less favorable terms than we otherwise
would choose.
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Risks Related to Parametric’s Current Business
Focusing a key component of our business model on realizing the value of our intellectual property through licensing may not result in
anticipated benefits.
During fiscal 2012 we announced that in addition to commercial product sales we were focusing efforts on leveraging the value of our
intellectual property by seeking to license our technology to established industry partners in target markets and growing our product business in
digital signage and related markets. We have a limited operating history and a limited track record with respect to our licensing strategy, making
it difficult to evaluate our current business and future prospects. We have encountered and will continue to encounter risks and difficulties
frequently experienced by companies with evolving business strategies. If we do not manage these risks successfully, our business and operating
results will be adversely affected. In addition, our intellectual property licensing strategy may place increased demands on our personnel and
divert resources from product sales and product operations adversely affecting future results. We also may not realize any or all of the
anticipated benefits of our strategies.
Our licensing strategy is untested, subject to risk and there is no assurance companies will license our technology or produce licensable
products or pay license fees sufficient to sustain our operations.
Our licensing strategy is untested and we have no licensing revenue to date. There can be no assurance that consumer electronic product
companies we have targeted or will target will license our technology or, if so, produce licensable products. Our plans and ability to license for
particular applications may require additional product development and there can be no assurance we can demonstrate performance acceptable to
prospective licensees. The markets for consumer electronic products in which our technology is intended are intensely competitive and price
sensitive. This could place pressure on licensing fees and limit our ability to exploit our technology. We also risk that licensees will inaccurately
report licensing royalties, if any, or that they or others will make unauthorized use of our intellectual property.
We are susceptible to general economic conditions, and continued difficult economic circumstances in our industry or a reduction in
spending by customers could adversely affect our operating results.
The electronics industry in general has historically been characterized by a high degree of volatility and is subject to substantial and
unpredictable variations resulting from changing business cycles. Our operating results will be subject to fluctuations based on general economic
conditions, in particular conditions that impact discretionary consumer spending. The audio products sector of the electronics industry has and
may continue to experience a slowdown in sales, which adversely impacts our ability to generate revenues and impacts the results of our future
operations. The current tight credit in financial markets may adversely affect the ability of our commercial customers to finance purchases and
operations and could result in an absence of orders or spending for our products as well as create supplier disruptions. We are unable to predict
the likely duration and severity of the adverse economic conditions and disruptions in financial markets and the effects they will have on our
business and financial condition.
We purchase a number of key components and subassemblies from foreign suppliers. Consequently, we are subject to the impact
economic conditions can have on such suppliers and subject to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. Increases in our cost of
purchasing these items could negatively impact our financial results if we are not able to pass these increased costs on to our customers.
A significant portion of our revenue has been derived from a few large customers and sales of one product category.
We are dependent on one core technology and product category and limited products to generate revenues. We cannot assure you that
these or other future products will achieve customer acceptance to attain a level of sales to support our operating costs. The vast majority of our
product sales are generated from a small number of customers and we have no reported licensing revenue to date. Two customers accounted for
43% and 24% of our total revenues in fiscal 2013 and three customers accounted for 30%, 16% and 16% of our total revenues in fiscal 2012. We
do not have long-term agreements with these or other customers and our agreements with these customers do not require them to purchase any
specific number or amount of our products. As a result, agreements with respect to pricing, returns, promotions, among other things, are subject
to periodic negotiation with each customer. No assurance can be given that these or other customers will continue to do business with us. The
loss of any of our significant customers could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and
liquidity. In addition, the uncertainty of product orders can make it difficult to forecast our sales and allocate our resources in a manner
consistent with actual sales, and our expense levels are based in part on our expectations of future sales. If our expectations regarding future sales
are inaccurate, we may be unable to reduce costs in a timely manner to adjust for sales shortfalls.
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We must develop a larger customer base or generate license revenues in order to grow our business.
To grow our business we must develop relationships with new customers and obtain and fulfill increased orders from both prior and new
customers. Our sales to date have been limited to a few customers. We cannot guarantee that we will be able to develop a larger customer base.
Further, even if we continue to retain prior customers and obtain new customers, we cannot guarantee that those customers will purchase
sufficient quantities of our products at prices that will enable us to recover our costs in acquiring those customers and fulfilling orders. We also
cannot guarantee that we will be able to generate any future license revenues. Our ability to increase sales of our products or generate license
revenues depends on a number of factors, including:
•

our ability to timely demonstrate or manufacture reliable products that have the features required by our customers;

•

our ability to develop relationships with new customers that will lead to sales of our products or licensing of our technology;

•

our ability to develop and expand into new markets for our audio products and technology; and

•

our ability to develop international product distribution or licensing directly or through partners.

Errors, limitations or defects contained in our products, failure to comply with applicable safety standards, product injury claims or a
product recall could result in delayed shipments or rejection of our products, increased warranty costs or damage to our reputation and
expose us to regulatory or other legal action.
Our technology is substantially different from proven, mass-produced sound transducer designs. Any performance limitations, defects or
errors in the operation of our products could result in the rejection of our products by our customers, damage to our reputation, lost sales,
diverted development resources, increased customer service, adverse regulatory actions and warranty claims, any of which could harm our
business. Complex components and assemblies used in our products may contain undetected defects that are subsequently discovered at some
point in the life of the product. Defects in our products may result in a loss of sales, injury or other loss to customers, and may injure our
reputation and increase our warranty or service costs. We may incur substantial and unpredictable warranty costs from post-production product
or component failures. Defects and/or warranty costs could adversely affect our financial position, results of operations and business prospects.
End-users of our products could sustain injuries from our products, and we may be subject to claims or lawsuits resulting from such
injuries including damage to hearing. There is a risk that these claims or liabilities may exceed, or fall outside the scope of, our insurance
coverage. We may also be unable to maintain adequate liability insurance in the future. Because we are a small company, a product recall would
be particularly harmful to us. We have limited financial and administrative resources to effectively manage a product recall, and it would detract
management’s attention from implementing our core business strategies. A significant product defect or product recall could materially and
adversely affect our brand image, cause a decline in our sales, and could reduce or deplete our financial resources adversely affecting our
financial results.
We may face personal injury and other liability claims that harm our reputation and adversely affect our sales and financial condition.
Since our products include ultrasonic emissions along with the acoustic output, customers or others could claim damage to human hearing
or human health irrespective of whether the product is used properly or improperly, such as when the product is used at extreme close ranges for
long periods of exposure. A person claiming injury in connection with the use of our products may bring legal action against us to recover
damages on the basis of theories including personal injury, negligent design, dangerous product or inadequate warning. We may also be subject
to lawsuits involving allegations of misuse of our products. While we have product liability insurance, it may be too costly for us or may be
unavailable and it may be insufficient to pay any claims. We may not have sufficient resources to satisfy any product liability claims not covered
by insurance which would materially and adversely affect our financial position. Significant litigation could also result in a diversion of
management’s attention and resources and negative publicity.
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If we are unable to keep up with rapid technological changes, our processes, products or services may become obsolete.
The audio market is characterized by significant and rapid technological change. Although we will continue to expand our technological
capabilities in order to remain competitive, research and discoveries by others may make our processes, products or services less attractive or
even obsolete.
Our efforts may never demonstrate the feasibility of our new electronics processing and emitter technology for broad-based product
applications.
Our research and development efforts remain subject to all of the risks associated with the development of new products based on
emerging and innovative technologies, including without limitation unanticipated technical or other problems and the possible insufficiency of
funds for completing development of these products. While we believe we have overcome many of the technical problems traditionally
associated with parametric sound reproduction, these technical problems or new technical problems may result in delays and cause us to incur
additional expenses that would increase our losses. If we cannot complete, or if we experience significant delays in completing development,
manufacturing and licensing of commercial or consumer applications using our new technology, particularly after incurring significant
expenditures, our business may fail.
We cannot predict our future operating results. Our quarterly and annual results will likely be subject to fluctuations caused by many
factors, any of which could result in our failure to achieve our expectations.
We expect our proprietary sound reproduction products and technologies will be the source of substantially all of our future revenues.
Revenues are expected to vary significantly due to a number of factors. Many of these factors are beyond our control. Any one or more of these
factors, including those listed below, could cause us to fail to achieve our revenue expectations. These factors include:
•

the resources expended on and the status and timing of our proposed merger with Turtle Beach and related transactions;

•

our ability to supply sound reproduction components to customers, distributors, VARs or OEMs or to license our technologies;

•

market acceptance of, and changes in demand for, our products or our customers’ products;

•

gains or losses of significant customers, distributors or strategic relationships;

•

unpredictable volume and timing of customer orders;

•

the availability, pricing and timeliness of delivery of components for our products;

•

fluctuations in the availability of manufacturing capacity or manufacturing yields and related manufacturing costs;

•

timing of new technological advances, product announcements or introductions by us, by OEMs or licensees and by our competitors;

•

product obsolescence and the management of product transitions and inventory;

•

unpredictable warranty costs associated with our products;

•

installation or order delays by customers, distributors, OEMs or production delays by us or our suppliers;

•

general consumer electronics industry conditions, including changes in demand and associated effects on inventory and inventory
practices;

•

general economic conditions that could affect the timing of customer orders and capital spending and result in order cancellations or
rescheduling; and

•

general political conditions in this country and in various other parts of the world that could affect spending for the products that we
intend to offer.

Some or all of these factors could adversely affect demand for our products or technologies and, therefore, adversely affect our future
operating results.
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Our expenses may vary from period to period, which could affect quarterly results and our stock price.
If we incur additional expenses in a quarter in which we do not experience increased revenue, our results of operations will be adversely
affected and we may incur larger losses than anticipated for that quarter. Factors that could cause our expenses to fluctuate from period to period
include:
•

the merger costs associated with our proposed merger with Turtle Beach;

•

the timing and extent of our research and development efforts;

•

tooling, manufacturing and production working capital costs;

•

investments and costs of maintaining or protecting our intellectual property;

•

the extent of marketing and sales efforts to promote our products and technologies; and

•

the timing of personnel and consultant hiring.

Our potential for rapid growth and our entry into new markets make it difficult for us to evaluate our current and future business prospects,
and we may be unable to effectively manage any growth associated with these new markets, which may increase the risk of your investment
and could harm our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flow.
We believe the development of our new technology, including electronics processing and emitter improvements, will enable us to enter
targeted new markets and to expand our presence in our current product markets. Because these improvements are relatively new, we may be
unable to evaluate our future prospects in our current market and in new markets, particularly in light of our goals to continually grow our
existing and new customer base, expand our product offerings, integrate complementary businesses and enter additional new markets. In
addition, our potential growth, recent product introductions and entry into new markets may place a significant strain on our resources and
increase demands on our executive management, personnel and systems, and our operational, administrative and financial resources may be
inadequate. We may also not be able to effectively manage any expanded operations, or achieve planned growth on a timely or profitable basis,
particularly if the number of customers using our products and services significantly increase or their demands and needs change as our business
expands. If we are unable to manage expanded operations effectively, we may experience operating inefficiencies, the quality of our products
and services could deteriorate, and our business and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.
Many potential competitors who have greater resources and experience than we do may develop products and technologies that make ours
obsolete.
Technological competition from other and more established electronic and sound system manufacturers is significant and expected to
increase. Most of the companies with which we expect to compete have substantially greater capital resources, research and development staffs,
marketing and distribution programs and larger facilities than us, and many of them have substantially greater experience in the production and
marketing of products. In addition, one or more of our competitors may have developed or may succeed in developing technologies and products
that are more effective than ours, rendering our technology and products obsolete or noncompetitive. The life cycles of our technologies are
difficult to estimate. If we cannot develop products in a timely manner in response to industry changes, or if our technologies do not perform
well, our business and financial condition will be adversely affected.
Our competitive position will be seriously damaged if we cannot maintain and obtain patent protection for important differentiating aspects
of our products or otherwise protect intellectual property rights in our technology.
We rely on a combination of contracts and trademark, patent and trade secret laws to establish and protect our proprietary rights in our
technology. However, we may not be able to prevent misappropriation of our intellectual property, our competitors may be able to independently
develop similar technology and the agreements we enter into to protect our proprietary rights may not be enforceable.
Our success, in part, depends on our ability to obtain and enforce intellectual property protection of our technology, particularly our
patents. There is no guarantee any patent will issue on any patent application that we have filed or may file. Claims allowed from existing or
pending patents may not be of sufficient scope or strength to protect the economic value of our technologies. Further, any patent that we may
obtain will expire, and it is possible that it may be challenged, invalidated or circumvented. If we do not secure and maintain patent protection
for our technology and products, our competitive position could be significantly harmed. A competitor may independently develop or patent
technologies that are substantially equivalent or superior to our technology.
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As we expand our product line or develop new uses for our products, these products or uses may be outside the protection provided by our
current patent applications and other intellectual property rights. In addition, if we develop new products or enhancements to existing products
we cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain patents to protect them. Even if we do receive patents for our existing or new products, these
patents may not provide meaningful protection, or may be too costly to enforce protection. In some countries outside of the United States where
our products may be sold or licensed, patent protection is not available. Moreover, some countries that do allow registration of patents do not
provide meaningful redress for violations of patents. As a result, protecting intellectual property in these countries is difficult and our
competitors may successfully sell products in these countries that have functions and features that infringe on our intellectual property.
We may initiate claims or litigation against third parties in the future for infringement of our proprietary rights or to determine the scope
and validity of our proprietary rights or the proprietary rights of our competitors. These claims could result in costly litigation and divert the
efforts of our technical and management personnel. As a result, our operating results could suffer and our financial condition could be harmed.
Our competitive position will be seriously damaged if our products are found to infringe on the intellectual property rights of others.
Other companies and our competitors may currently own or obtain patents or other proprietary rights that might prevent, limit or interfere
with our ability to make, use or sell our products. As a result, we may be found to infringe the intellectual property rights of others. The
electronics industry is characterized by vigorous protection and pursuit of intellectual property rights or positions, resulting in significant and
often protracted and expensive litigation. In the event of a successful claim of infringement against us and our failure or inability to license the
infringed technology, our business and operating results could be adversely affected. Any litigation or claims, whether or not valid, could result
in substantial costs and diversion of our resources. An adverse result from intellectual property litigation could force us to do one or more of the
following:
•

cease selling, incorporating or using products or services that incorporate the challenged intellectual property;

•

obtain a license from the holder of the infringed intellectual property right, which license may not be available on reasonable terms, if
at all; and

•

redesign products or services that incorporate the disputed technology.

If we are forced to take any of the foregoing actions, we could face substantial costs and shipment delays and our business could be
seriously harmed. Although we carry general liability insurance, our insurance may not cover potential claims of this type or be adequate to
indemnify us for all liability that may be imposed.
In addition, it is possible that our customers or end users may seek indemnity from us in the event that our products are found or alleged to
infringe the intellectual property rights of others. Any such claim for indemnity could result in substantial expenses to us that could harm our
operating results.
Our technology is subject to government regulation, which could lead to unanticipated expense or litigation.
Our sound technology emits ultrasonic vibrations and is regulated by the Food and Drug Administration, as well as the Federal
Communications Commission. Although we believe we are in compliance with applicable FDA and FCC regulations, in the event of certain
unanticipated defects in our products, a customer or we may be required to comply with governmental requirements to remedy the defect and/or
notify consumers of the problem. This could lead to unanticipated expense, and possible product liability litigation against a customer or us. Any
regulatory impediment to full commercialization of our parametric sound technology, or any of our other technologies, could adversely affect
our results of operations.
In our efforts to seek medical device marketing clearance we could face significant regulatory issues that could bar or delay product
marketing or limit indicated uses.
The process of obtaining regulatory clearances or approvals to market a medical device, particularly from the FDA, can be costly and time
consuming, and there can be no assurance that such clearances or approvals will be granted on a timely basis, if at all, or that there will not be
limitations imposed on indicated uses and claims. We recently submitted a notification seeking medical device marketing clearance from the
FDA under Section 510(k) of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act. This provision allows many medical devices to avoid human clinical
trials if the product is “substantially equivalent” to another device already on the market. Premarket notification requires a new device to be
compared for safety, effectiveness and technological characteristics to another device (or multiple devices) already on the market. A successful
510(k) submission results in FDA clearance for commercialization.
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If approved, regulatory agencies subject a product, its manufacturer and the manufacturer’s facilities to continual review, regulation and
periodic inspections. If a regulatory agency discovers previously unknown problems with a product, including adverse events of unanticipated
severity or frequency, or problems with the facility where the product is manufactured, a regulatory agency may impose restrictions on that
product, our collaborators or us, including requiring withdrawal of the product from the market.
To market any products internationally, we must establish and comply with numerous and varying regulatory requirements of other
countries regarding safety and efficacy. Approval procedures vary among countries and can involve additional product testing and additional
administrative review periods. The time required to obtain approval in other countries might differ from that required to obtain FDA clearance or
approval. The regulatory approval process in other countries may include all of the risks detailed above regarding FDA clearance or approval.
Regulatory approval in one country does not ensure regulatory approval in another, but a failure or delay in obtaining regulatory approval in one
country may negatively impact the regulatory process in others. Failure to obtain regulatory approval in other countries or any delay or setback
in obtaining such approval could have the same adverse effects detailed above regarding FDA clearance or approval, including the risk that our
products may not be approved for use under all of the circumstances requested, which could limit the uses of our products and adversely impact
potential product sales, and that such clearance or approval may require costly, post-marketing follow-up studies. If we fail to comply with
applicable foreign regulatory requirements, we may be subject to fines, suspension or withdrawal of regulatory approvals, product recalls,
seizure of products, operating restrictions and criminal prosecution.
We rely on outside suppliers to provide a large number of components and sub-assemblies incorporated in our products and failure to
forecast demand could cause us to lose business or be obligated for excess inventory.
Our products have a number of components and subassemblies produced by outside suppliers. In addition, for certain of these items, we
qualify only a single source with long lead times, which can magnify the risk of shortages or result in excess supply and also decreases our
ability to negotiate with our suppliers on the basis of price. In particular, we depend on one piezo-film supplier to provide expertise and materials
used in our proprietary emitters and one supplier for a majority of our plastic and metal parts from tooling owned by us. Our sales have varied
from quarter to quarter and are not subject to reliable forecast. If shortages occur we could lose sales or if we purchase excess inventory, we
could be subject to loss from lack of sales or if models change. Also if we experience quality problems with suppliers, then our production
schedules could be significantly delayed or costs significantly increased, which would have a material adverse effect on our business, liquidity,
results of operation and financial position.
Changes in laws or regulations or the manner of their interpretation or enforcement could adversely impact our financial performance and
restrict our ability to operate our business or execute our strategies.
New laws or regulations, or changes in existing laws or regulations or the manner of their interpretation or enforcement, could increase
our cost of doing business and restrict our ability to operate our business or execute our strategies. This includes, among other things,
compliance costs and enforcement under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act. For example, under Section 1502 of
the Dodd-Frank Act, the SEC has adopted additional disclosure requirements related to the source of certain "conflict minerals" for issuers for
which such "conflict minerals" are necessary to the functionality or production of a product manufactured, or contracted to be manufactured, by
that issuer. The metals covered by the rules include tin, tantalum, tungsten and gold, commonly referred to as "3TG." Our suppliers may use
some or all of these materials in their production processes. The rules require us to conduct a reasonable country of origin inquiry to determine if
we know or have reason to believe any of the minerals used in the production process may have originated from the Democratic Republic of the
Congo or an adjoining country. If we are not able to determine the minerals did not originate from a covered country or conclude that there is no
reason to believe that the minerals used in the production process may have originated in a covered country, we would be required to perform
supply chain due diligence on members of our supply chain. Global supply chains can have multiple layers, thus the costs of complying with
these new requirements could be substantial. These new requirements may also reduce the number of suppliers who provide conflict free metals,
and may affect our ability to obtain products in sufficient quantities or at competitive prices. Compliance costs and the unavailability of raw
materials could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.
Current environmental laws, or laws enacted in the future, may harm our business.
Our operations are subject to environmental regulation in areas in which we conduct business. Our product design and procurement
operations must comply with new and future requirements relating to the materials composition of our products, including restrictions on lead,
cadmium and other substances. We do not expect that the impact of these environmental laws and other similar legislation adopted in the U.S.
and other countries will have a substantial unfavorable impact on our business. However, the costs and timing of costs under environmental laws
are difficult to predict.
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Loss of our key management and other personnel could impact our business.
Our business is substantially dependent on our Executive Chairman, Kenneth F. Potashner, and our President and Chief Scientist, Elwood
G. Norris, and other key personnel. The loss of either of Mr. Potashner or Mr. Norris or any of these key personnel could materially adversely
affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. In addition, competition for skilled and non-skilled employees
among companies like ours is intense, and the loss of skilled or non-skilled employees or an inability to attract, retain and motivate additional
skilled and non-skilled employees required for the operation and expansion of our business could hinder our ability to conduct research activities
successfully, develop new products, attract customers and meet customer shipments.
Failure to maintain an effective system of internal control over financial reporting could harm stockholder and business confidence in our
financial reporting, our ability to obtain financing and other aspects of our business.
Maintaining an effective system of internal control over financial reporting is necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports.
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the related rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC require us to include in our
Form 10-K a report by management regarding the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. While our management
concluded that out internal control over financial reporting was effective as of September 30, 2013, it is possible that material weaknesses will be
identified in the future. In addition, components of our internal control over financial reporting may require improvement from time to time. If
management is unable to assert that our internal control over financial reporting is effective in any future period, investors may lose confidence
in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports, which could have an adverse effect on its stock price.
Evolving regulation of corporate governance and public disclosure may result in additional expenses and continuing uncertainty.
Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, XBRL interactive SEC filings, new SEC regulations and NASDAQ
Stock Market rules are creating uncertainty for public companies and often, increased costs to comply. We continually evaluate and monitor
developments with respect to new and proposed rules and cannot predict or estimate the amount of the additional costs we may incur or the
timing of such costs. These new or changed laws, regulations and standards are subject to varying interpretations, in many cases due to their lack
of specificity, and as a result, their application in practice may evolve over time as new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies.
This could result in continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matters and higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure and
governance practices.
We are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance and public disclosure. If our efforts to comply with new or
changed laws, regulations and standards differ from the activities intended by regulatory or governing bodies due to ambiguities related to
practice, regulatory authorities may initiate legal proceedings against us and we may be harmed.
The reliability of market data included in our public filings is uncertain.
Since we operate in a rapidly changing market, we have in the past, and may from time to time in the future, include market data from
industry publications and our own internal estimates in some of the documents we file with the SEC. This data may be inaccurate, incomplete or
unreliable. Industry publications generally state that the information contained in these publications has been obtained from sources believed to
be reliable, but that its accuracy and completeness is not guaranteed. Although we believe that the market data used in our filings with the SEC is
and will be reliable, it has not been and will not be independently verified. Similarly, internal company estimates, while believed by us to be
reliable, have not been and will not be verified by any independent sources.
Risk Factors Relating to Ownership of Our Common Stock
Our common stock has traded sporadically and is expected to experience significant price and volume volatility in the future that
substantially increases the risk of loss to persons owning our common stock.
There was no public market for our common stock prior to our spin-off in September 2010. The market price of our common stock has
fluctuated significantly to date. Prior to March 22, 2012, our common stock was quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board, where the shares of our
common stock were historically sporadically or “thinly-traded”, meaning that the number of persons interested in purchasing our common stock
at or near bid prices at any given time may be relatively small or non-existent. On March 22, 2012, our common stock began listing on The
NASDAQ Capital Market, but there can be no assurances that our common stock will be actively traded. Because of the limited trading market
for our common stock, and the possible price volatility, you may not be able to sell your shares of common stock when you desire to do so. The
inability to sell your shares in a rapidly declining market may substantially increase your risk of loss because of such illiquidity and because the
price for our common stock may suffer greater declines because of its price volatility.
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In the future, the market price of our common stock could be subject to significant fluctuations due to general market conditions and in
response to quarter-to-quarter variations in:
•

our anticipated or actual operating results;

•

developments concerning our sound reproduction technologies;

•

technological innovations or setbacks by us or our competitors;

•

announcements of merger or acquisition transactions;

•

changes in personnel within our company; and

•

other events or factors and general economic and market conditions.

Our common stock has traded on The NASDAQ Capital Market as low as $3.49 and as high at $22.39 during the period from March 22,
2012 through September 30, 2013. In addition, the stock market in recent years has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have
affected the market price of many technology companies, and that have often been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of
companies. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the trading price of shares our common stock.
There is no guarantee that our shares will continue to be listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market.
Shares of our common stock became listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market on March 22, 2012. We may not be able to meet the
requirements for continued listing on The NASDAQ Capital Market, or there may not be enough brokers interested in making a market for our
stock to allow us to continue to list thereon. Failure to satisfy any continued listing requirements could lead to the receipt of a deficiency notice
from Nasdaq and ultimately to a delisting from trading of our common stock. If our common stock were delisted from Nasdaq, among other
things, this could result in a number of negative implications, including reduced liquidity in our common stock as a result of the loss of market
efficiencies associated with Nasdaq and the loss of federal preemption of state securities laws as well as the potential loss of confidence by
suppliers, customers and employees, the loss of analyst coverage and institutional investor interest, fewer business development opportunities,
greater difficulty in obtaining financing and possible breaches of certain contractual obligations. Therefore, it may be difficult to sell your shares
of common stock if you desire or need to sell them. It is possible that an active and liquid trading market in our securities may never develop or,
if one does develop, that the market will continue.
Sales of common stock by affiliates or sales of common stock issuable on the exercise of outstanding options and warrants, may depress the
price of our common stock.
From time to time, certain of our stockholders including affiliates may be eligible to sell all or some of their shares of common stock by
means of ordinary brokerage transactions in the open market pursuant to Rule 144, promulgated under the Securities Act, subject to certain
limitations. As of September 30, 2013, we had outstanding options granted to our employees, directors and consultants to purchase 1,348,354
shares of our common stock, and had outstanding warrants issued to investors to purchase 137,345 shares of our common stock. At
September 30, 2013, the exercise prices for the options and common stock warrants ranged from $1.50 to $16.92 per share. The issuance of
shares of common stock upon the exercise of outstanding options or warrants could cause substantial dilution to holders of common stock and
could negatively affect the terms on which we could obtain equity financing. Any substantial sale the sale of these shares in the market or sales
of shares pursuant to Rule 144 or pursuant to any resale prospectus could cause the market price of our common stock to decline.
We may issue preferred stock in the future, and the terms of the preferred stock may reduce the value of your common stock.
We are authorized to issue up to 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series. Our Board of Directors may determine the
terms of future preferred stock offerings without further action by our stockholders. If we issue preferred stock, it could affect your rights or
reduce the value of your common stock. In particular, specific rights granted to future holders of preferred stock could be used to restrict our
ability to merge with or sell our assets to a third party. Preferred stock terms may include voting rights, preferences as to dividends and
liquidation, conversion and redemption rights and sinking fund provisions.
The payment of dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors.
The declaration and amount of future dividends, if any, will be determined by our Board of Directors and will depend on our financial
condition, earnings, capital requirements, financial covenants, regulatory constraints, industry practice and other factors our Board deems
relevant.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Our corporate executive office is located at 13771 Danielson Street, Suite L, Poway, California . We occupy approximately 9,650 square
feet of improved office, laboratory, assembly and warehouse space, pursuant to a lease terminating in August 2015. The gross monthly base rent
is approximately $7,070 increasing approximately 3.5% per annum subject to certain other future adjustments. We believe these facilities are
adequate for our office and assembly needs for the foreseeable future.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
On August 8, 2013, James Harrison, Jr., a purported shareholder of the Company, filed a class action lawsuit in the Superior Court
California, County of San Diego, under the caption Harrison v. Parametric Sound Corp. , naming the Company, the Company’s directors, Paris
Acquisition Corp. and VTB Holdings, Inc. ("Turtle Beach") as defendants. Several other substantially similar shareholder class action
complaints were filed in the same court in August 2013. In August and September 2013, several substantially similar shareholder class action
complaints were filed in the Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County, Nevada. All complaints related to the same events and transactions
regarding the proposed merger, allege breaches of fiduciary duty and aiding and abetting breaches of fiduciary duty in connection therewith,
sought class action status, and demanded an order enjoining the proposed merger and unspecified reforms, actions and disclosures. On
September 10, 2013, the California Superior Court consolidated all related cases before it under the caption In re Parametric Sound Corp.
Shareholder Litigation , Case No. 37-2013-00061953-CU-BT-CTL. On September 23, 2013, the Nevada District Court consolidated all related
cases before it under the caption In re Parametric Sound Corp. Shareholders’ Litigation , Lead Case No. A-13-686890-B, Dep’t XI. Following
our filing of the preliminary proxy statement on November 4, 2013: on November 14, 2013, an amended complaint was filed in the consolidated
action pending in Nevada; and on November 18, 2013, an amended complaint was filed in the consolidated action pending in California. These
amended complaints reiterate the same claims and seek the same relief as asserted and sought in the original complaints. On November 20, 2013,
Shana Vasek, a purported shareholder of the Company, filed a class action lawsuit in the United States District Court for the District of Nevada,
under the caption Vasek v. Parametric Sound Corp. , Case No. 2:13-cv-02148-JAD-GWF, naming the same defendants, asserting the
substantially the same allegations and seeking substantially the same relief as asserted and sought the above-referenced consolidated action
pending in Nevada state court. In addition to asserting substantially the same claims for breach of fiduciary duty and aiding and abetting as
asserted in the above-referenced consolidated action pending in Nevada state court, the plaintiff in the federal court action asserts a claim for
violations of Sections 14(a) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and SEC Rule 14a-9.
The lawsuits are in their early stages; and, therefore, we are unable to predict the outcome of the lawsuits and the possible loss or range of
loss, if any, associated with their resolution or any potential effect the lawsuits may have on our operations or the pending merger. Depending
on the outcome or resolution of these lawsuits, they could have a material effect on our operations, including our financial condition, results of
operations, or cash flows. No amounts have been accrued related to these lawsuits as of September 30, 2013.
We may at times in the future become involved in other litigation in the ordinary course of business. We will also, from time to time,
when appropriate in management’s estimation, record adequate reserves in our financial statements for pending litigation. Litigation is expensive
and is subject to inherent uncertainties, and an adverse result in any such matters could adversely impact our operating results or financial
condition. Additionally, any additional litigation to which we may become subject could also require significant involvement of our senior
management and may divert management’s attention from our business and operations.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not Applicable.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Information
Our common stock, $0.001 par value, was first listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market on March 22, 2012 under the symbol “PAMT.”
Before being listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market, our common stock was quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board. Quotations on the OTCBB
commenced on October 4, 2010, and the first trading of our common stock occurred on October 5, 2010. Trading in our common stock has often
been sporadic, volatile and limited. The following table sets forth, for the quarterly periods through March 31, 2012 (second quarter of fiscal
2012), the reported high and low bid prices for our common stock giving effect to the 1-for-5 reverse stock split effected on March 21, 2012 .
Bid prices represent inter-dealer quotations without adjustment for markups, markdowns or commissions and may not represent actual
transactions. The information for the third and fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 and for fiscal 2013 sets forth the high and low reported sales prices
for our common stock as reported on The NASDAQ Capital Market.
High
Fiscal year ended September 30, 2012
First quarter*
Second quarter*
Third quarter
Fourth quarter
Fiscal year ended September 30, 2013
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

Low

$
$
$
$

3.27
5.70
9.85
11.74

$
$
$
$

0.55
0.00
3.86
6.22

$
$
$
$

7.39
20.25
22.39
17.90

$
$
$
$

3.49
7.10
14.52
10.57

* Reported bid prices. Other quarters reflect sales prices.
Holders
We had 7,218,400 shares issued and outstanding held by 968 holders of record of our common stock at November 22, 2013. This figure
does not include an estimate of the indeterminate number of beneficial holders whose shares may be held of record by brokerage firms and
clearing agencies.
Dividends
We have never paid a cash dividend on our common stock or preferred stock and do not expect to pay dividends in the foreseeable future.
Equity Compensation Plan Information
On September 27, 2010 the Company adopted the 2010 Stock Option Plan (the “2010 Plan”). The 2010 Plan authorized the grant of
options to purchase up to 600,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to directors, officers, employees and consultants. On December 29,
2011 the Company’s Board of Directors adopted, and stockholders subsequently approved, the 2012 Stock Option Plan (the “2012 Plan”)
providing the Board of Directors with authority to grant options to purchase up to 253,000 of the shares of common stock remaining available
for issuance under the 2010 Plan and up to an additional 600,000 shares of common stock. The 2012 Plan replaced the 2010 Plan but awards
previously granted under the 2010 Plan remain outstanding in accordance with their terms. Any outstanding awards under the 2010 Plan that
expire or terminate, other than through exercise or share settlement, will also become eligible for grant under the 2012 Plan. In August 2012, the
Company’s Board of Directors approved, and stockholders subsequently approved, an amendment to the 2012 Plan, authorizing an additional
500,000 shares of common stock for issuance under the 2012 Plan. At September 30, 2013 there were 195,500 shares available to grant under
the 2012 Plan, as amended.
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The following table sets forth information as of September 30, 2013, with respect to compensation plans (including individual
compensation arrangements) under which our equity securities are authorized for issuance, aggregated as follows:

Number of
securities to be
issued upon
exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights
(a)
1,322,854
25,500(1)
1,348,354

Plan Category
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders
Total

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights
(b)
$
5.43
$
9.25
$
5.51

Number of
securities remaining
available for future
issuance under
equity
compensation plans
(excluding
securities reflected
in column (a))
(c)
195,500
–
195,500

(1) Represents inducement options granted in connection with employment.
On October 30, 2013 the Board of Directors adopted the Parametric Sound Corporation 2013 Stock-Based Incentive Compensation Plan
(“2013 Plan”), which will only become effective when and only when (i) the stockholders have approved the 2013 Plan, (ii) the stockholders
have approved the merger proposal with Turtle Beach and (iii) the merger has been consummated. The total number of shares of common stock
that are being authorized for grant under the proposed 2013 Plan is 2,250,000 shares.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
No securities were sold within the past two years that were not registered under the Securities Act and not previously reported.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
None.
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
As a Smaller Reporting Company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act and in Item 10(f)(1) of Regulation S-K, we are electing
scaled disclosure reporting obligations and therefore are not required to provide the information requested by this Item.
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
You should read the following discussion in conjunction with the financial statements and other financial information included elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. The following discussion may contain forward-looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates and beliefs.
Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed in these forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to
these differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed below and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, particularly in “Risk
Factors”.
Overview
We are a technology company with a substantial body of intellectual property focused on delivering novel audio solutions. Our HSS
technology pioneered the practical application of parametric acoustic technology for generating sound along a directional ultrasonic column.
After our September 2010 spin-off from LRAD Corporation, we completed development of a new product line (HSS-3000) and in July 2011
commenced sales of our HSS-3000 audio systems. The HSS-3000 product line delivers directed audio solutions to customers primarily for
commercial use including digital signage, kiosk and related applications that benefit from focused sound targeted to specific locations. Our
principal markets are North America, Europe and Asia. We are targeting our technology for new uses in consumer markets including computers,
video gaming, televisions and home audio along with other commercial markets including casino gaming and cinema. We are also researching
and developing health applications for persons with hearing loss.
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We are seeking to expand into new markets through both product sales and licensing. Our licensing strategy is to identify large or highgrowth markets, develop needed technology solutions and features, and work with established industry participants and OEMs to make products
incorporating our technologies widely available to consumers. To date, we have not received any revenue from licensing activities.
Recent Developments
Agreement and Plan of Merger
On August 5, 2013, we entered into a merger agreement with Turtle Beach as more fully described in Note 3, Pending Merger with Turtle
Beach , of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-K. Although we will be the legal acquirer, the merger will be
accounted for as a “reverse acquisition” pursuant to which Turtle Beach will be considered the acquiring entity for accounting purposes in
accordance with GAAP. As such, Turtle Beach will allocate the total purchase consideration to our tangible and identifiable intangible assets and
liabilities based on their respective fair values at the date of completion of the merger. Turtle Beach’s historical results of operations will replace
our historical results of operations for all periods prior to the merger. After completion of the merger, the results of operations of the combined
companies will be included in our (Parametric’s) financial statements, which will also reflect the Series B Preferred Stock of Turtle Beach that
will remain outstanding after the merger.
The consummation of the merger is subject to a number of conditions and failure to complete the merger could negatively impact our
business, financial condition or results of operations. See Item 1A – Risk Factors commencing on page 18.
Sale of Common Stock
After the end of our fiscal year, in November 2013 we obtained $5.1 million of gross proceeds from the registered direct sale of common
stock pursuant to our “shelf” registration statement. We believe the stock sale satisfies a closing condition under the merger agreement requiring
us to raise a minimum of $5 million.
Additional Business Development Information
During the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2013, we expended approximately $1,280,000 of business transaction costs consisting
primarily of legal, accounting and investment banking fees and expenses related to reviewing strategic opportunities and preparing for the
merger transaction describe above. We expect to incur additional costs related to the merger during the first quarter of our fiscal year ending
September 30, 2014 and until its closing or the termination of the merger agreement. See “Risk Factors” of this report for more information.
We believe we are experiencing increased acceptance of our HSS-3000 commercial products and positive response to our licensing
initiative. We believe we have a solid technology and product foundation, and we are targeting new markets and applications for business
growth. We also believe we have strong commercial, consumer and health care market opportunities worldwide. Based on success of
commercial pilot installations in 2013, during the fourth quarter we began appointing leading audio visual commercial integrators as part of an
expanded distribution strategy. We expect increased product sales during fiscal 2014 as a result of expanded distribution channels and a growth
in direct sales. We also anticipate future results from our licensing initiative.
During 2012 we identified health care as an additional target market for HSS applications as a result of consumer preference surveys
indicating that persons with normal and impaired hearing reported greater clarity of sound from HSS compared to standard speakers. In May
2013, we announced results from clinical testing that confirmed preference testing outcomes with more than 70% of persons with hearing loss
preferring the clarity of HSS, with many reporting dramatic improvement in hearing and clarity. We are developing product designs, continuing
research in this area and in November 2013 filed a pre-market notification with the FDA seeking clearance to sell our HSS product as an overthe-counter medical device for the hearing impaired.
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We are unable to predict the level of future product sales in our current or new markets, the timing of future licensing revenues, if any, nor
the timing or likelihood of any FDA clearance. We are also unable to predict the acceptance of our technology or resulting products by
consumers as we target new commercial, consumer and healthcare markets through product sales or licensing.
We face significant challenges in growing our business in existing and targeted markets. We will need additional financial resources
assuming the merger is not completed and we expect we will need to continue to innovate new applications for our sound technology, develop
new products to meet customer requirements and identify and develop new markets for our products and planned licensing activities.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, which we refer
to as U.S. GAAP, requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, and
related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to valuation of
accounts receivable and inventory, warranty liabilities, impairment of intangible assets, contingencies, the grant date fair value of stock options
and warrants, share-based compensation expense, valuation of acquired intangible assets and valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets.
We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual
results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
Some of our accounting policies require higher degrees of judgment than others in their application. These include revenue recognition,
warranty liabilities, impairments, share-based compensation and valuation of acquired intangible assets . We believe the following critical
accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our financial statements:
Revenue Recognition and Product Costs
Product sales to customers, including resellers, are recognized in the periods that products are shipped to customers (FOB shipping point)
or received by customers (FOB destination), when the fee is fixed or determinable, when collection of resulting receivables is probable and there
are no remaining obligations on our part. Our customers do not have the right to return product unless the product is found to be defective.
Product costs include direct manufacturing costs and allocated overhead that require estimates to allocate various costs to product results.
Our strategy is to derive licensing revenues primarily from royalties paid by licensees of our intellectual property rights, including patents,
trademarks, and know-how. Revenues generated from license agreements are recognized in the period earned, provided that amounts are fixed or
determinable and collectability is reasonably assured. Deferred revenue is reported for amounts that are expected to be recognized as revenue
including upfront license fees, but for which not all revenue recognition criteria have been met.
Warranty Liabilities
We establish a warranty reserve based on anticipated warranty claims at the time product revenue is recognized. This reserve requires us
to make estimates regarding the amount and costs of warranty repairs we expect to make over a period of time. Factors affecting warranty
reserve levels include the number of units sold, anticipated cost of warranty repairs, and anticipated rates of warranty claims. If actual results
differ significantly from our estimates, cost of sales and our results of operations could be materially impacted.
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Impairments
Our inventory is comprised of raw materials, assemblies and finished products. We must periodically make judgments and estimates
regarding the future utility and carrying value of our inventory. The carrying value of our inventory is periodically reviewed and impairments, if
any, are recognized when the expected future benefit from our inventory is less than its carrying value.
Intangible assets consist of purchased technology, patents, pending patents and trademarks that are amortized over their estimated useful
lives. We make judgments and estimates regarding the future utility and carrying value of intangible assets, and such assets are periodically
reviewed and impairments, if any, are recognized when the expected future benefit to be derived from an individual intangible asset is less than
its carrying value.
Share-based Compensation
We account for share-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 718, “
Compensation—Stock Compensation ” (“ASC 718”) and ASC 505-50, Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employees (“ASC 505-50”) requiring the
measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all share-based payment awards based on estimated grant or measurement date fair
values. ASC 718 ASC 505-50 require the use of subjective assumptions, including expected stock price volatility, forfeitures and the estimated
term of each award. If actual results differ significantly from our estimates, stock-based compensation expense and our results of operations
could be materially impacted.
Acquired Intangible Assets
We account for acquired intangible technology in accordance with ASC 350-30-30, Intangible – Goodwill and Other - General
Intangibles Other than Goodwill - Initial Measurement , and ASC 805-50-30, Business Combinations – Related Issues – Initial Measurement ,
which requires that intangible assets acquired through a transaction that is not a business combination be measured based on the cash
consideration paid plus either the fair value of the non-cash consideration given or the fair value of the assets acquired, whichever is more clearly
evident.
Deferred Tax Assets
We have provided a full valuation reserve related to our deferred tax assets. In the future, if sufficient evidence of our ability to generate
sufficient future taxable income in certain tax jurisdictions becomes apparent, we may be required to reduce our valuation allowances, resulting
in income tax benefits in our statement of operations. We evaluate quarterly the realizability of the deferred tax assets and assess the need for a
valuation allowance. Utilizing the net operating loss carry forwards in future years could be substantially limited due to restrictions imposed
under federal and state laws upon a change in ownership or control.
Segment and Related Information
We operate as a single reportable segment on an enterprise-wide basis. We generate revenue by selling our technology-based products and
expect future licensing revenues from such technology.
Results of Operations
Comparison of Results of Operations for the Years Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012
Revenues
Revenues of $545,905 for the year ended September 30, 2013 represent a 146% increase over the prior year and consisted of sales to
commercial customers. Sales during 2013 varied quarter to quarter as we focused on larger multi-outlet customers conducting pilot sales and
limited rollouts to outlets. Revenues from two customers accounted for 43% and 24% of total revenues.
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We invested significant sales and marketing resources to build a pipeline of directed audio opportunities, develop new customers and
expand our distribution. We are pursuing new customers and channel distribution for our HSS-3000 product line, focusing on larger volume
applications for the digital signage, kiosk and related applications. We are also pursuing business development activities related to other
commercial and consumer applications of our technology. While we expect sales growth in 2014, sales from quarter to quarter may still vary and
may be impacted by our reliance on a limited number of customers. We are unable to predict the level of future product sales or the timing of
future licensing revenues, if any.
In June 2012, we formed a wholly-owned subsidiary, PSC Licensing Corp. to engage in technology licensing activities. In July 2012, we
signed our first technology licensing agreement that provided for an initial prototype development term and a possible manufacturing term.
Coincident with the merger agreement, we terminated the license in August 2013, prior to any manufacturing term. We did not earn or report any
revenues from the license.
We had no significant backlog at September 30, 2013.
Gross Profit
Gross profit for the year ended September 30, 2013 was $270,573 (48% of total revenues) compared to $113,507 (49% of total revenues)
for the year ended September 30, 2012. The margin in each respective period was positively impacted from usage of parts valued at $49,585
and $14,972, respectively, that had inventory obsolescence and excess parts allowances recorded in prior periods. The margin for each respective
period was negatively impacted by $9,633 and $9,563 for parts deemed obsolete due to model changes. We continue to develop and implement
volume pricing and production strategies, product updates and changes, including raw material and component changes that may impact
margins. With such product updates and changes we have limited warranty cost experience and estimated future warranty costs can impact our
gross margins. Due to our limited sales and manufacturing history, we do not believe that historical gross profit margins should be relied upon as
an indicator of future gross profit margins.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended September 30, 2013 were $4,602,344, including non-cash share based
compensation expenses of $1,727,542. This compares to $3,247,698, including $1,420,708 of non-cash share based compensation expenses,
during the prior year. We expect to report significant amounts of non-cash share based compensation expense in future periods from vesting of
existing option grants and the possibility of new grants.
Other major cost categories for the year ended September 30, 2013 included compensation and consulting-related costs of $1,509,000
(excluding non-cash share based compensation expenses ), travel and related costs of $232,000, professional fees of $429,000, public company
costs of $382,000, trade show and promotion expenses of $129,000 and occupancy costs of $83,000. Our staffing increased from five persons at
the beginning of fiscal 2012 to sixteen persons at September 30, 2013 resulting in a $475,000 increase in compensation costs between periods.
Our travel related costs increased $121,000 primarily related to increased sales and business development activities. Professional fees increased
$125,000 primarily as a result of increased legal fees related to our HHI subsidiary and expanded corporate activity and the incurrence of
$23,000 preparing for the audit of our internal controls. Public company costs increased $130,000 primarily as a result of the engagement of a
corporate public relations firm and increased insurance and filing costs.
We expect selling, general and administrative costs to continue are comparable levels in early fiscal 2014 pending the merger whereupon
the nature of combined operations will be dramatically different given the larger size of Turtle Beach compared to us.
Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses for the year ended September 30, 2013 were $2,056,364, compared to $1,340,054 for the year ended
September 30, 2012. These research and development expenses included non-cash share based compensation expenses of $378,831 and
$266,201, respectively.
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Major cost categories for the year ended September 30, 2013 included compensation costs of $855,000 (excluding non-cash share based
compensation expenses ), consulting and leased employee costs of $160,000, $104,000 of technical and testing costs associated with our HHI
subsidiary, $241,000 of patent costs and patent, technology and fixed asset amortization and depreciation costs, $201,000 of prototype and
related testing and development costs and $100,000 of occupancy costs.
We added research and development personnel during the year ended September 30, 2013 and personnel and consulting costs increased
$413,000 compared to the prior year. We incurred $104,000 for HHI costs related to health product and FDA development activities with no
comparable costs in the prior year. Patent costs and patent, technology and fixed asset amortization and depreciation costs increased by $45,000
compared to the prior year as a result of purchased technology amortization and increased patent filings and related research. Occupancy costs
increased $28,000 due to expanded space and additional personnel.
We expect research and development costs to continue are comparable levels in early fiscal 2014 pending the merger whereupon the
nature of combined operations will be dramatically different given the larger size of Turtle Beach compared to us.
Business Transaction Expenses
During the last six months of our fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, we incurred $1,280,000 of business transaction costs consisting
primarily of legal, accounting and investment banking fees and expenses related to reviewing strategic opportunities and negotiating and
preparing for the merger with Turtle Beach. No such costs were incurred in the prior year. We expect to incur substantial additional mergerrelated costs in the first quarter of fiscal 2014 but the timing and amounts could vary depending on future events, some not in our control. We
may be required to pay to Turtle Beach a termination fee of $1 million if the merger agreement is terminated by us or otherwise under certain
circumstances, some outside of our control.
Net Loss
The net loss for the year ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 was $7,670,424 and $4,462,182, respectively. The most recent year’s loss
included $2,106,373 of non-cash share-based compensation expenses compared to $1,686,909 for the prior year.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview
At September 30, 2013 we had cash and cash equivalents of $1,597,879 and our current assets exceeded our current liabilities by
$1,510,960. We obtained net proceeds of $1,357,087 from the exercise of stock purchase warrants and stock options during the year ended
September 30, 2013. In November 2013, we obtained $5.1 million of gross proceeds from registered direct sale of common stock. Other than
cash and cash equivalents (including the proceeds obtained in November 2013), accounts receivable and inventory, we have no available sources
of additional liquidity at this time.
Cash Flows
Operating Activities
During the year ended September 30, 2013, net cash used in operating activities was $4,967,225. The net loss of $7,670,424 was reduced
by net non-cash expenses of $2,369,125. Other major items using operating cash included a $138,082 increase in accounts receivable, a
$228,638 increase in inventory and a $16,235 increase in prepaid expenses and other assets. Major items providing operating cash included a
$727,128 increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
For the prior year ended September 30, 2012 cash used in operating activities was $2,752,165 resulting primarily from the net loss of
$4,462,182 reduced by non-cash expenses of $1,870,817.
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Investing Activities
We used cash of $35,501 for property and equipment purchases and $260,096 for patent costs during the year ended September 30, 2013.
We used cash of $108,785 for property and equipment purchases and $295,096 for patent costs during the year ended September 30, 2012. In
June 2012, we paid $250,000 to Syzygy Licensing, LLC (“Syzygy”), a related party, which amount represents the cash portion of the
consideration we paid to Syzygy in connection with the assignment agreement with Syzygy entered into in December 2011.
We have no material commitments for future capital expenditures but expect to continue to incur patent costs in the future.
Financing Activities
During the year ended September 30, 2013 we obtained $1,357,087 from the exercise of stock purchase warrants and stock options and
used $24,033 to reduce our capital lease obligation. During the prior year, we obtained $8.0 million net proceeds from a secondary public
offering and $192,338 from the exercise of stock options.
Non-cash Activities
In December 2011 we purchased technology from Syzygy in exchange for 300,000 shares of our common stock valued at $975,000 and
an obligation to pay $250,000, which we paid in June 2012. In addition, we satisfied $140,000 of deferred officer compensation liability by
issuing 31,111 shares of our common stock. We also issued warrants to purchase 205,339 shares of our common stock to the underwriter in our
secondary public offering, which warrants were valued at $622,729.
Capital Requirements
We have sustained recurring losses and negative cash flows from operations. Our recent business operations have been funded primarily
from products sales and proceeds from equity financings. Our future capital requirements, cash flows and results of operations could be affected
by and will depend on many factors some of which are currently unknown to us, including:
•

the timing, cost and successful completion of the merger ;

•

the success, progress, timing and costs of our business development efforts to obtain licensing arrangements and the our efforts to
evaluate possible strategic alternatives with respect to our Company and our technology;

•

our ability to obtain value from our current products and technologies and our ability to sell or license new products and technologies
and the costs and expenses of such activities;

•

the perceived, potential and actual commercial success of our products;

•

our operating expenses;

•

the progress, timing, cost and results of our regulatory efforts related to hearing applications of its technology;

•

the costs of preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining and enforcing patent claims and other intellectual property rights;

•

the emergence of competing products and technologies, and other adverse market developments; and

•

the resolution of the pending shareholder litigation and any amount we may be required to pay as deductible or in excess of our
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance.

42

Assuming the merger is completed, we expect our cash and cash equivalents, including the proceeds from the November 2013 sale of
common stock, to meet our liquidity requirements through the anticipated closing of the merger and the resulting combined company is expected
to have sufficient resources to finance operations for the next year. If the merger is not completed, we expect our cash resources to decrease as
we continue to use cash to pay merger related transaction costs and fund operations. Accordingly, we will need to reevaluate our strategic
alternatives, including pursuing other strategic transactions, but such alternatives may be impaired by a merger termination. We will also need to
evaluate the scope of our operations. Given current plans management believes that our existing working capital resources and product revenues
will be sufficient to meet operating requirements over the next year. This estimate may prove incorrect or the Company, nonetheless, may
choose to raise additional financing. Potential sources of future funds include proceeds from the exercise of outstanding options and warrants, or
new debt or equity financing. Should we seek to acquire additional funds through equity or debt financing arrangements there is no assurance
that any financing will be available on terms acceptable to us, or at all. If we raise additional funds by issuing equity securities, our stockholders
may experience dilution. Debt financing, if available, may involve covenants restricting our operations or our ability to incur additional debt.
If we do not complete the merger and if adequate funds are not available in the future or are not available on acceptable terms, we may
need to reduce our operating costs which could have a material adverse effect on our financial position and results of operations. Other than the
uncertainties regarding the costs of the proposed merger, we are not aware of any trends or potential events that are likely to adversely impact
our short-term liquidity.
Contractual Obligations
Other than aggregate facility and office lease payments of approximately $11,000 per month, capital lease payments of $3,600 per month,
certain bonus payments of approximately $703,000 due only upon closing of the merger and our employment agreement with our Executive
Chairman, we have no material contractual obligations. As more fully described in Note 3 “ Pending Merger with Turtle Beach ” of our Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-K , upon termination of the merger agreement, in specified circumstances, we may be
required to pay to Turtle Beach a termination fee of $1,000,000 and/or enter into a license agreement with Turtle Beach with respect to certain of
our intellectual property.
Effects of Inflation
We do not believe that inflation has had a material impact on our business, revenues or operating results during the periods presented.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
There have been no recent accounting pronouncements or changes in accounting pronouncements during the year ended September 30,
2013, or subsequently thereto, that we believe are of potential significance to our consolidated financial statements.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
As a Smaller Reporting Company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act and in Item 10(f)(1) of Regulation S-K, we are electing
scaled disclosure reporting obligations and therefore are not required to provide the information requested by this Item.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The financial statements required by this item are set forth as a separate section of this Form 10-K. See Item 15(a) for a listing of financial
statements provided in the section titled “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data: The financial statements begin on page F-1 following
page 60 of this Form 10-K.
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
There have been no disagreements or any reportable events requiring disclosure under Item 304(b) of Regulation S-K.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS & PROCEDURES
We are required to maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that material information related to us, including our
consolidated subsidiaries, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC rules and forms.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures.
Disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13(a)-15(e) and 15(d)-15(e)) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Exchange Act”) are designed to ensure that (1) information required to be disclosed in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms; and (2) that such information is
accumulated and communicated to management, including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosures. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures,
including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of controls and procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure
controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives.
As of the end of the period covered by the report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our
Executive Chairman (our principal executive officer, or PEO) and our Chief Financial Officer (our principal financial officer, or PFO), of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon that evaluation, the PEO and PFO concluded
that our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Exchange Act, were effective at the reasonable assurance level.
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our PEO and PFO,
we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2012 based on the guidelines
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(“COSO”). Our internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States. Based on this evaluation, management has concluded that the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of September 30, 2013.
Our independent registered public accounting firm, Squar, Milner, Peterson, Miranda and Williamson, LLP, has issued a report, which
appears as page F-3 of this Form 10-K, on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting.
Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls
Our management, including the PEO and PFO, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over
financial reporting will prevent or detect all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives will be met. The design of a control system must reflect the fact that there
are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Further, because of the inherent limitations in all
control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all
control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that
judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Controls can also be
circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the controls. The design
of any system of controls is based in part on certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any
design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Projections of any evaluation of controls effectiveness to
future periods are subject to risks. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions of deterioration in the degree of
compliance with policies or procedures.
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Changes In Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013 we expanded the role of contract personnel to assist in the review and verification of financial
reporting information in the quarterly and year-end closing processes. No other change in our internal controls over financial reporting occurred
during our last fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None
PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The following table sets forth the names and ages of all of our directors and executive officers as of November 22, 2013. Our officers are
appointed by, and serve at the pleasure of, the Board of Directors.
Name
Kenneth F. Potashner
Elwood G. Norris
James A. Barnes
Todd Savitt
Robert M. Kaplan, Ph.D.
Andrew Wolfe, Ph.D.
James L. Honore

Age
56
75
59
55
77
50
70

Position(s)
Director and Executive Chairman
Director, President and Chief Scientist
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer
Vice President, Sales and Marketing
Director
Director
Director

There are no arrangements or understandings between our company and any other person pursuant to which he was or is to be selected as
a director, executive officer or nominee. Biographical information with respect to our executive officers and directors is provided below. There
are no family relationships between any of our executive officers or directors.
Kenneth F. Potashner was appointed a director in December 2011 and Executive Chairman in March 2012. He has served as Chairman
of Newport Corporation since 2007 after being elected to the Board of Directors in 1998. From May 2003 to the present, he has been an
independent investor in and advisor to technology companies. From 1996 to May 2003, he was Chairman of the Board of Directors of Maxwell
Technologies, Inc., a manufacturer of ultracapacitors, microelectronics and high voltage capacitors, and he also served as President and Chief
Executive Officer from 1996 to October 1998. From November 1998 to August 2002, he was President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
of SONICblue Incorporated (formerly S3 Incorporated), a supplier of digital media appliances and services. He was Executive Vice President
and General Manager of Disk Drive Operations for Conner Peripherals, a manufacturer of storage systems, from 1994 to 1996. From 1991 to
1994, he was Vice President, Worldwide Product Engineering for Quantum Corporation, a manufacturer of disk drives. From 1981 to 1991, he
held various engineering management positions with Digital Equipment Corporation, a manufacturer of computers and peripherals, culminating
with the position of Vice President of Worldwide Product Engineering in 1991. Mr. Potashner also serves on the boards of directors of several
private companies. Mr. Potashner received his bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering at Lafayette College in 1979 and a masters’ degree in
electrical engineering from Southern Methodist University in 1981. We believe Mr. Potashner brings extensive experience in the management
and operation of technology companies qualifying him to guide our business strategy in an increasingly complex business environment.
Elwood G. Norris was appointed as Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer following our incorporation on June
2, 2010. At the spin-off on September 27, 2010 he was appointed as Chief Executive Officer and President. He resigned from the positions of
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer concurrent with the appointment of Mr. Potashner as our Executive Chairman in March
2012. He was a director of LRAD Corporation from August 1980 to June 2010. He served as Chairman of LRAD Corporation’s Board of
Directors, an executive position, in which he served in a technical advisory role and acted as a product spokesman from September 2000 to April
2009. From 1988 to November 1999, he was a director and Chairman of e.Digital Corporation, a public company engaged in electronic product
development, licensing and sales. During that period, he also held various other executive officer positions at e.Digital. From August 1989 to
October 1999, he served as director and held various executive officer positions with Patriot Scientific Corporation, a public company engaged
in intellectual property licensing. He is an inventor of more than 50 U.S. patents, primarily in the fields of electrical and acoustical engineering,
and is a frequent speaker on innovation to corporations and government organizations. He is the inventor of our HSS technology. Mr. Norris and
Mr. Barnes own Syzygy Licensing LLC, a private technology invention and licensing company, but he has no employment or management
relationship with Syzygy. Mr. Norris expends minimal time on Syzygy matters . Mr. Norris brings to our company demonstrated product
innovation ability and years of public company executive experience. He also brings continuity to our board and through his prior tenure at
LRAD Corporation possesses deep historic knowledge of our business and our technology, as its original inventor.
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James A. Barnes co-founded the Company and was appointed Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary at the spin-off on
September 27, 2010. Starting in January 2010, he was active with Mr. Norris in initiating our organization and the spin-off transaction. He has
been President of Sunrise Capital, Inc., a private venture capital and consulting firm since 1984. He participated in the recapitalization of LRAD
Corporation and the founding of e.Digital Corporation, Patriot Scientific Corporation and other technology companies. Since 1999, he has been
Manager of Syzygy Licensing LLC, a private technology invention and licensing company he owns with Mr. Norris. He previously practiced as
a certified public accountant and management consultant with Ernst & Ernst (1976-1977), Touche Ross & Co. (1977-1980) and as a principal in
J. McDonald & Co. Ltd., Phoenix, Arizona (1980-1984). He graduated from the University of Nebraska with a B.A. Degree in Business
Administration in 1976 and is a certified public accountant (inactive). He is an owner and serves as managing member of Syzygy, spends
minimal time on Syzygy matters and is a full-time employee of our company.
Todd Savitt joined our company in July 2013 and was appointed as an executive officer on October 1, 2013 as Vice President, Sales and
Marketing. Mr. Savitt has nearly thirty years of experience in senior management positions focused on sales and marketing in the technology
sector. Prior to joining our company, Mr. Savitt served as Vice President, Business Development and Marketing of Mendtronix, Inc. from
February 2012 to July 2013. From February 2005 to July 2011, Mr. Savitt served as Vice President, Business Development of Smartdraw
Software, LLC. Mr. Savitt has also served in senior management positions with ContentScan, Inc., BinaryLabs, Inc., First Virtual Holdings, Inc.
and Proxima Corporation. Mr. Savitt obtained a B.S. in Psychology from Occidental College in 1980 and an M.S. in Industrial Psychology from
California State University, Long Beach in 1982.
Robert M. Kaplan, MBA, Ph.D. was appointed a director in May 2011. He is a retired business executive with extensive experience in the
financial and retail sectors. Dr. Kaplan remains active as a director of a family-owned Canadian-based mortgage lending firm and as Managing
Director of Beacon Consulting Group, a private firm specializing in assisting and investing in early stage entrepreneurial entities, that he founded
in 1997. Prior business activities include 12 years as a senior financial executive in the investment brokerage industry. He was a founding partner
of McCan Franchises Ltd., the original Canadian franchisee of McDonalds Corp. From 2003 to 2009, he was a director of Jet Gold Corp., a
public Canadian resource exploration company. Most recently in 2010, Dr. Kaplan was a Visiting Professor of Business at The University of
Warsaw where he assisted in establishing a program in Entrepreneurship. Other prior visiting professorships include the European School of
Economics in Italy and The University of Canterbury, N.Z. In 2010 he was recognized with a European Union Distinguished Scholar Award. Dr.
Kaplan earned an MBA from Harvard University in 1961 and a Ph.D. in Business Economics from Michigan State University in 1967. Dr.
Kaplan’s extensive management, marketing, investment and financial expertise and international business knowledge provides valuable
guidance to our management and board.
Andrew Wolfe, Ph.D ., was appointed a director in February 2012. He founded Wolfe Consulting in 2002 and serves as a technology and
intellectual property consultant in the consumer electronics, computer, and semiconductor industries. He works with Global 500 corporations
and technology startups in developing product strategy, new product technology, and intellectual property strategy. He also testifies and serves
as a consulting expert for intellectual property (IP) and other technology-related litigation matters. Dr. Wolfe was Chief Technology Officer for
SONICblue, Inc. (formerly S3, Inc.) from 1999 to 2002 and also served as Senior Vice President of Business Development from 2001-2002. He
served as a Consulting Professor at Stanford University from 1999 to 2002 and an Assistant Professor at Princeton University from 1991 to
1997. Dr. Wolfe obtained a B.S.E.E. in Electrical Engineering and Computer Science from The John Hopkins University in 1985 and an M.S. in
Electrical and Computer Engineering in 1987 and a Ph.D. in Computer Engineering in 1992 both from Carnegie Mellon University. We believe
Dr. Wolfe’s extensive IP and licensing experience qualifies him for service on the Board of Directors.
James L. Honore was appointed a director in March 2012. He joined Columbia Pictures in 1988 as Vice President of post-production
after previously serving as director of post production for Home Box Office Pictures and DeLaurentiis Entertainment Group. In 1993 he was
promoted to Executive Vice President post-production for Sony Pictures Entertainment including its Columbia Pictures and TriStar Pictures
units. He was also responsible for final post-production quality of all picture and sound for Columbia TriStar Motion Picture Companies, Screen
Gems and Stage 6 Productions and feature films acquired by Columbia TriStar Motion Picture Companies, Columbia TriStar Home Video and
Sony Pictures Classics. At Sony Pictures he was responsible for completion of pictures budgeted at over $1.5 billion per year and supervised
post-production for hundreds of major films including Casino Royale and other Bond movies, Spider-Man series, DaVinci Code, Bugsy, A Few
Good Men, Men in Black series and many more. Mr. Honore retired from Sony Pictures in December 2011. Mr. Honore’s extensive Hollywood
experience, knowledge of modern sound and visual effect technologies and his many relationships with executives, artists and innovators from
all aspects of the motion picture industry qualifies him for service on our Board of Directors.
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Subject to a director’s earlier death, resignation, disqualification or removal, each director who is elected by our stockholders to our board
of directors shall serve until his or her successor is duly elected and qualified. Any director elected by our board of directors to fill a vacancy
shall hold office for the remainder of the full term of the director for which the vacancy was created or occurred and until such director’s
successor shall have been elected and qualified.
Audit Committee
We have a separately designated standing Audit Committee, currently consisting of Dr. Kaplan, Mr. Honore and Dr. Wolfe. Our board of
directors has determined that each of Dr. Kaplan, Mr. Honore and Dr. Wolfe is an “independent director” as such term is defined in the
NASDAQ Listing Rules and that Dr. Kaplan qualifies as an “Audit Committee Financial Expert,” as defined by Item 407(d)(5) of Regulation SK.
Compensation Committee
Effective July 1, 2013, we adopted a Compensation Committee Charter and formed a Compensation Committee, currently consisting of
Dr. Kaplan, Mr. Honore and Dr. Wolfe. Until February 2012, our entire board of directors and our executive officers participated in deliberations
concerning executive officer compensation. Commencing in February 2012, compensation determinations with respect to our executive officers
were made solely by the independent members of our Board of Directors in separate meetings, such as during executive sessions of independent
directors.
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Policy applicable to all our employees, including our directors and executive
officers. We will provide any person, without charge, a copy of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Policy upon written request to our
Chief Financial Officer, Parametric Sound Corporation, 13771 Danielson Street, Suite L, Poway, California 92064. We also post on our website
a copy of or Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Policy at www.parametricsound.com.
Stockholder Recommendations for Director Nominations
We have no nominating committee of the Board of Directors and no formal procedure for director nominations. Accordingly, there has
been no change in the procedures by which security holders may recommend nominees to our board of directors since our formation.
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance
Based solely on a review of copies of such reports furnished to our Company and representation that no other reports were required during
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, we believe that all persons subject to the reporting requirements pursuant to Section 16(a) filed the
required reports on a timely basis with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Compensation of our Named Executive Officers
Our named executive officers for fiscal 2013, which consist of our principal executive officer and the two other most highly compensated
executive officers, were Kenneth F. Potashner, Elwood G. Norris and James A. Barnes. The following tables and narratives address and explain
the compensation provided to our named executive officers in fiscal 2013. All figures below reflect our 1-for-5 reverse stock split which was
effected on March 21, 2012.
Summary Compensation Table
The following table sets forth certain summary information with respect to the total compensation paid to the named executive officers
during our fiscal years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012:
Name and Principal Position

Year

Salary

Bonus (3)

Option
Awards (4)

All Other
Compensation

Total

Kenneth F. Potashner,
Executive Chairman (PEO)

2013
2012

$
$

350,000(1) $
204,167(1)

29,531
–

$ 251,312(5)
$ 1,308,189(6) $

–
$ 630,843
127,000(9) $ 1,639,356

Elwood G. Norris, President
(former Chief Executive Officer)

2013
2012

$
$

162,000(2) $
141,000(2)

11,391
–

$

195,465(7)
–

–
–

$
$

368,856
141,000

James A. Barnes, CFO,
Treasurer and Secretary (PFO)

2013
2012

$
$

162,000(2) $
126,000(2)

11,391
–

$

153,579(8)
–

–
–

$
$

326,970
126,000

(1) Mr. Potashner became an employee of Parametric and was appointed to serve as our Executive Chairman in March 2012. In
connection with his appointment as our Executive Chairman, effective March 2012 the annual base salary of Mr. Potashner is
$350,000.
(2) From November 2010 through March 2012, we accrued monthly payments of $10,000 for Mr. Norris (our Chief Executive Officer
from June 2010 until March 2012) and of $7,500 for Mr. Barnes (payable to Sunrise Capital, Inc., a company wholly-owned by Mr.
Barnes) for their services as executive officers pursuant to arrangements agreed to in November 2010. These amounts were deferred
and accrued without interest through the date of Parametric’s March 2012 secondary offering. As of April 2012, the annual base
salaries for Messrs. Norris and Barnes were each increased to $162,000. In connection with Parametric’s March 2012 secondary
offering, on March 27, 2012 a total of $80,000 of deferred base salary for Mr. Norris and $60,000 of deferred base salary for Mr.
Barnes was paid by Parametric in shares of our common stock at the offering price of $4.50 per share (17,778 and 13,333 shares
issued to each of Messrs. Norris and Barnes, respectively) with the balance of $100,000 of deferred base salary for Mr. Norris and the
balance of $75,000 of deferred base salary for Mr. Barnes paid by Parametric in cash payments in March 2012.
(3) Represents bonuses paid in March 2013 for 2012 bonuses pursuant to the 2012 Cash Bonus Plan.
(4) Represents the aggregate grant date fair value, as determined under Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 718, Stock Compensation, of all option awards granted to the named executive officers during
fiscal 2012. Fair value is calculated as of the grant date using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model and market price at grant. The
determination of the fair value of share-based payment awards made on the date of grant is affected by our stock price as well as
assumptions regarding a number of complex and subjective variables. Our assumptions for option grants in 2012 in determining fair
value are described in Note 9 to our audited financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2012. Our assumptions for option
grants in 2013 include volatility of 88% (2012 - 91%), risk free interest rate of 0.41% (2012 – 1.00%), expected lives of 3.06 years
(2012 – 4.76 years), dividends and forfeitures of 0% for both years. The grant and expiration dates, exercise prices and vesting terms
of the options are described in footnotes (1) through (8) to the “Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End” table below.
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(5) Amount for 2013 is the fair value of 45,000 options granted in February 2013. Excludes any value for options on 50 shares of
Parametric’s subsidiary HHI subject to vesting conditions, as amended, not currently considered probable. The fair value of these
options on the grant date, assuming all performance conditions were achieved, was $26,503. These options terminate upon closing of
the merger with Turtle Beach.
(6) Amounts for 2012 include $22,131 as the fair value of 10,000 options granted for his service as a director in December 2011 and
$1,286,058 as the fair value of 410,000 options originally granted for his service as a consultant in December 2011 with the reported
value recomputed on assumptions including the then current market price in March 2012 upon Mr. Potashner’s change in status from
a consultant to an employee. Excludes any value for 175,000 options granted in April 2012 subject to performance vesting conditions
not currently considered probable. The fair value of these 175,000 options on the grant date, assuming all performance conditions
were achieved, was $540,773. These options become vested pursuant to a change of control provision upon closing of the merger
with Turtle Beach.
(7) Amount for 2013 is the fair value of 35,000 options granted in February 2013.
(8) Amount for 2013 is the fair value of 27,500 options granted in February 2013.
(9) During fiscal 2012, Mr. Potashner was paid $2,000 for his services as a director prior to providing services to Parametric as an
employee and $125,000 as a consulting bonus for his services as a consultant through the date of Parametric’s March 2012 secondary
offering and prior to his employment as our Executive Chairman.
We do not have any annuity, retirement, pension or other arrangements for our executive officers or any employees. No named executive
officer received a long-term incentive plan payout in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013.
Employment Agreement with Kenneth F. Potashner
In April 2012, we entered into a five-year employment agreement with Kenneth F. Potashner as Executive Chairman. Upon expiration of
the initial five-year term, the agreement automatically renews for additional one-year terms unless noticed by either party. Under the
employment agreement, Mr. Potashner’s current annual salary is $350,000 subject to annual reviews and increases as approved by the Board of
Directors and the Compensation Committee, if any. Mr. Potashner is eligible to participate in any benefits and other incentives generally
available to other executives. Mr. Potashner is eligible to earn an annual performance-based bonus of up to 60% of his base salary then in effect,
subject to the achievement by Mr. Potashner and Parametric of performance criteria for each bonus year as so designated by the Board of
Directors. The bonus will be determined in accordance with Parametric’s bonus plan then in effect. Under the terms of the employment
agreement, we may be obligated to pay to Mr. Potashner severance equal to one year of his annual base salary plus target bonus if his
employment is terminated without cause or if he resigns for good reason. The definition of cause means (i) engagement in illegal, dishonest or
fraudulent conduct or in any act of moral turpitude; (ii) engagement in willful misconduct or gross negligence that has had a material adverse
effect on our reputation or business, (iii) engagement in any activity in competition with Parametric in a material manner (excluding a less than
5% investment in any public company), and (iv) commencement of employment with another company without the prior consent of the Board of
Directors. The definition of good reason means that without the prior consent of Mr. Potashner (i) there is a material reduction in base salary
then in effect, except those reductions generally affecting other similarly situated employees; (ii) a material adverse effect or reduction in
benefits under any benefit plan, except those changes generally affecting similarly situated employees; (iii) a material breach of employment
agreement terms by Parametric; or (iv) the relocation more than 100 miles from San Diego, California, and provided that, in each case, subject to
a 30 day cure period.
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Concurrent with the execution of this agreement, we granted Mr. Potashner a nonstatutory stock option under our 2012 Plan to purchase
up to 175,000 shares of common stock, with an exercise price of $4.50 per share and which shall vest upon achievement of performance targets
established by the Board of Directors or upon a change of control. Additionally, we modified the vesting of a previously awarded stock option
under our 2012 Plan to Mr. Potashner in December 2011 in connection with him providing services to Parametric as a consultant to purchase up
to 410,000 shares at an exercise price of $3.25 per common share. At original grant the option vested as follows: 10% at grant, with the balance
over eight calendar quarters commencing March 31, 2012. The modification resulted in 195,000 shares being vested at April 3, 2012, 195,000
shares to then vest equally over eight calendar quarters that commenced March 31, 2012 and 20,000 shares that vested in August 2012 upon
achievement of performance approved by the Board of Directors. All unvested options vest on a change of control. The effect of the
modification was an increase in 132,250 shares being vested as of April 3, 2012 versus prior to the modification. There was no change to the
term or exercise price of the option.
Mr. Potashner is entitled to full vesting of any unvested stock options upon the occurrence of a change of control.
No other executive officer had any employment agreement as of September 30, 2013 or currently has one.
Cash Bonus Plan
No bonuses were paid in fiscal 2012 to any of our named executive officers. In March 2013, we paid bonuses to each named executive
officer as described in the “Summary Compensation Table” above. These payments represented payments under the 2012 cash bonus plan
covering the period April 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012.
On February 21, 2013 we adopted a cash bonus plan for the period January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013, pursuant to which each of our
executive officers and certain other officers, consultants and employees designated by the Board of Directors are eligible to receive a target
bonus equal to a percentage of the executive officer’s or other individual’s annualized base compensation if applicable performance objectives
are met. The performance objectives are based 25% upon Parametric achieving a revenue performance target, 25% upon Parametric achieving
certain licensing targets, 25% based upon Parametric achieving certain technology development targets and 25% upon Parametric or its licensees
or partners achieving certain consumer product launch targets and accordingly participants may receive bonuses ranging from none up to the
maximum bonus. The performance objectives include both objective and subjective determinations to be made by the Board of Directors. The
maximum bonus percentage for each participant (including Messrs. Norris and Barnes) is 50% of his or her annual base compensation, except
for our Executive Chairman (Mr. Potashner) whose maximum bonus percentage is 60% of his annual base compensation. All payments of
earned bonuses will be deferred if certain cash generation targets are not met. Bonuses, if any, will be determined by January 30, 2014 and paid
by March 15, 2014. Each participant must be employed as of January 1, 2014 in order to receive a bonus unless otherwise provided in such
participant’s employment agreement, offer letter or other agreement. No amount was accrued at September 30, 2013 under the performance
targets of the cash bonus plan.
In August and October 2013, in connection with the proposed merger with Turtle Beach, and as authorized under the cash bonus plan, the
Board of Directors approved, for its three executive officers, the closing of the merger as a performance objective eligible for maximum bonus
payouts for 2013 aggregating $453,000. No amount was accrued pursuant to this arrangement at September 30, 2013 pending consummation of
the merger transaction.
On October 30, 2013, the Board of Directors adopted the Parametric Sound Corporation Annual Incentive Bonus Plan (“Incentive Bonus
Plan”) that will become effective when, and only when, (i) the stockholders have approved the Incentive Bonus Plan, (ii) the stockholders have
approved the merger proposal with Turtle Beach and (iii) the merger has been consummated. The proposed Incentive Bonus Plan will permit
incentive compensation bonus awards to be structured to qualify as “performance-based” compensation under Section 162(m) of the Code.
Other Payments
Syzygy Licensing, LLC (“Syzygy”) an entity controlled by Messrs. Norris and Barnes, was entitled to receive a royalty in consideration
of technology licensed until termination of the license in December 2011. These payments are not considered executive compensation. During
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 aggregate royalties accrued were $3,835 and for the period from October 1, 2011 to December 31,
2011 aggregate royalties were $3,193. These royalties, in the aggregate amount of $7,028 were paid in April 2012 and no further royalties
pursuant to this agreement have been earned or are payable.
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Stock Option Plans
On September 27, 2010, the Board of Directors adopted the 2010 Stock Option Plan (the “2010 Plan”). The 2010 Plan authorized the
grant of options to purchase up to 600,000 shares of our common stock to directors, officers, employees and consultants.
On December 29, 2011, the Board of Directors adopted, and stockholders subsequently approved on February 15, 2012, the 2012 Stock
Option Plan (the “2012 Plan”) providing our Board of Directors with authority to grant options to purchase up to 253,000 of the shares of
common stock remaining available for issuance under the 2010 Plan and up to an additional 600,000 shares of common stock. The 2012 Plan
replaced the 2010 Plan but awards previously granted under the 2010 Plan remain outstanding in accordance with their terms. Any outstanding
awards under the 2010 Plan that expire or terminate, other than through exercise or share settlement, will also become eligible for grant under the
2012 Plan. In August 2012, our Board of Directors approved, and on February 21, 2013 our stockholders approved, an amendment to the 2012
Plan, providing additional 500,000 shares of common stock for option issuance. At September 30, 2013, a total of 195,500 shares were available
for grant under the 2012 Plan, as amended.
The 2012 Plan is administered by our Board of Directors, or by any committee that we may in the future form and to which our Board of
Directors may delegate the authority to perform such functions (in either case, the “Administrator”). Our Board of Directors will appoint and
remove members of the committee in its discretion in accordance with applicable laws. In the event that we establish such a committee and it is
required to comply with Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act and Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code or the Code, the committee will,
in our Board of Directors’ discretion, be comprised solely of “non-employee directors” within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 and “outside directors”
within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Administrator may delegate non-discretionary
administrative duties to such Company employees as it deems proper and our Board of Directors, in its absolute discretion, may at any time and
from time to time exercise any and all rights and duties of the Administrator under the 2012 Plan.
Subject to the other provisions of the 2012 Plan, the Administrator has the authority, in its discretion, to: (a) grant options; (b) determine
the fair market value of the common stock subject to options; (c) determine the exercise price of options granted; (d) determine the persons to
whom, and the time or times at which, options will be granted, and the number of shares subject to each option; (e) interpret the 2012 Plan; (f)
prescribe, amend and rescind rules and regulations relating to the 2012 Plan; (g) determine the terms and provisions of each option granted
(which need not be identical), including but not limited to, the time or times at which options will be exercisable; (h) with the consent of the
optionee, modify or amend any option; (i) with the consent of the optionee, defer the exercise date of any option; (j) authorize any person to
execute on our behalf any instrument evidencing the grant of an option; and (k) make all other determinations deemed necessary or advisable for
the administration of the 2012 Plan.
Under the 2012 Plan every person who at the date of grant of an option is an employee of the company or any subsidiary is eligible to
receive non qualified stock options (“NQSOs”) or incentive stock options (“ISOs”) as defined under Section 422 of the Code. Every person who
at the date of grant is a consultant to, or non-employee director of, the company or any of subsidiary is eligible to receive NQSOs under the 2012
Plan. The Administrator, in its sole discretion, will fix the term of each option, provided that the maximum term of an option will be ten years.
ISOs granted to a 10% stockholder will expire not more than five years after the date of grant. The 2012 Plan provides for the earlier expiration
of options in the event of certain terminations of employment of the optionee.
To the extent required by applicable laws, rules and regulations, the exercise price of an NQSO will be not less than 100% of the fair
market value of the stock subject to the option on the date of grant and the exercise price of a NQSO granted to any person who owns, directly or
by attribution under the Code (currently Section 424(d)), stock possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of
stock of the company or any subsidiary (a “10% Stockholder”) will in no event be less than 110% of the fair market value of the stock covered
by the option at the time the option is granted. The exercise price of an ISO will be determined in accordance with the applicable provisions of
the Code and will in no event be less than the fair market value of the stock covered by the option at the time the option is granted. The exercise
price of an ISO granted to any 10% stockholder will in no event be less than 110% of the fair market value of the stock covered by the option at
the time the option is granted.
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In the event of any proposed dissolution or liquidation, to the extent not previously exercised, all options will terminate immediately prior
to the consummation of such proposed action; provided, however, that the Administrator, in the exercise of its sole discretion, may permit
exercise of any options prior to their termination, even if such options were not otherwise exercisable. In the event we merge or consolidate with
another company in which we do not survive, or in the event of a sale of all or substantially all of our assets in which our stockholders receive
securities of the acquiring entity or an affiliate thereof, all options will be assumed or equivalent options will be substituted by the successor
corporation (or other entity) or a parent or subsidiary of such successor corporation (or other entity); provided, however, that if such successor
does not agree to assume the options or to substitute equivalent options therefor, the Administrator, in the exercise of its sole discretion, may
permit the exercise of any of the options prior to consummation of such event, even if such options were not otherwise exercisable.
Our Board of Directors may at any time amend, alter, suspend or discontinue the 2012 Plan. Without the consent of an optionee, no
amendment, alteration, suspension or discontinuance may adversely affect outstanding options except to conform the 2012 Plan and ISOs
granted under the 2012 Plan to the requirements of federal or other tax laws relating to ISOs. The 2012 Plan will terminate within ten years from
the date of its adoption by our Board of Directors.
In February 2013, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary HHI adopted an equity incentive plan under which it may grant options to
purchase up to 250 shares of its common stock to HHI employees, directors and consultants. HHI has 1,000 shares of common stock issued and
outstanding.
On October 30, 2013 the Board of Directors adopted the Parametric Sound Corporation 2013 Stock-Based Incentive Compensation Plan
(“2013 Plan”), which will only become effective when and only when (i) the stockholders have approved the 2013 Plan, (ii) the stockholders
have approved the merger proposal with Turtle Beach and (iii) the merger has been consummated. The total number of shares of common stock
that are being authorized for grant under the proposed 2013 Plan is 2,250,000 shares.
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End
The following table shows the number of shares of our common stock covered by stock options held by the named executive officers as of
September 30, 2013:

Name
Kenneth F. Potashner

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options
Exercisable

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options
Unexercisable

–
16,875(2)
10,000(3)
360,625(4)
–

–
28,125(2)
–
24,375(4)
–

Elwood G. Norris

13,125(6)
75,000(7)

21,875(6)
–

James A. Barnes

10,313(8)
110,000(9)

17,187(8)
–

Equity
Incentive Plan
Awards:
Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Unearned
Options
50(1)
–
–
–
175,000(5)

Option
Exercise Price

Option
Expiration
Date

$
$
$
$
$

1,000.00
9.95
3.25
3.25
4.50

3/5/2018
2/21/2018
12/29/2016
12/29/2016
4/3/2017

–
–

$
$

10.95
1.65

2/21/2018
10/8/2015

–
–

$
$

9.95
1.50

2/21/2018
10/8/2015

(1) This option - as amended and restated on August 5, 2013 related to the proposed merger with Turtle Beach - was granted under the
2013 Equity Incentive Plan of HHI, with a per share exercise price equal to the fair market value of one of the shares of HHI common
stock on the date of grant. A total of 37.5 shares have both time-based and performance-based vesting. Also 3.125 shares vest each
calendar quarter commencing June 30, 2013 over twelve calendar quarters, but are subject to an HHI financing condition. The
balance of 12.5 shares are milestone performance based but also subject to the HHI financing condition. The options terminate upon
closing of the merger with Turtle Beach.
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(2) This time-based option was granted under the 2012 Plan on February 21, 2013, with a per share exercise price equal to the fair market
value of one of our shares of common stock on the date of grant . The vesting commencement date was March 31, 2013 and the
option vests as follows: (i) 5,625 shares vested on the vesting commencement date and (ii) an additional 5,625 shares vest each fiscal
quarter end following the vesting commencement date, subject to continued service with Parametric.
(3) This time-based option was granted under the 2012 Plan on December 29, 2011, with a per share exercise price equal to the fair
market value of one of our shares of common stock on the date of grant . The vesting commencement date was December 31, 2011
and the option vests as follows: (i) 1,250 shares vested on the vesting commencement date and (ii) an additional 1,250 shares vest
each fiscal quarter end following the vesting commencement date, subject to continued service with Parametric.
(4) This time-based option was granted under the 2012 Plan on December 29, 2011, with a per share exercise price equal to the fair
market value of one of our shares of common stock on the date of grant . On April 3, 2012 the vesting for this option was modified
from 10% of the total shares subject to the option at grant and the balance over two years (each calendar quarter) to a new vesting
schedule of 10% at grant (41,000 shares vested), 154,000 shares vested on April 3, 2012, 20,000 shares to vest upon achievement of
performance targets established by the Board of Directors (which targets were achieved and vested in August 2012) and the
remaining 195,000 shares vesting quarterly over eight calendar quarters commencing March 31, 2012 , subject to continued service
with Parametric. Mr. Potashner exercised 25,000 of these options in February 2013.
(5) This performance-based option was granted under the 2012 Plan on April 3, 2012 with a per share exercise price equal to the fair
market value of our shares of common stock on the date of grant . T he vesting commencement date was at grant and this option vests
anytime during the option term as follows: 60,000 shares based upon a quarterly revenue goal; 55,000 shares upon achievement of a
quarterly profit; 60,000 shares upon achieving licensing performance targets; or otherwise vesting as approved by the Board of
Directors. The option also vests on a change of control.
(6) This time-based option was granted under the 2012 Plan on February 21, 2013, with a per share exercise price equal to the fair market
value of one of our shares of common stock on the date of grant . The vesting commencement date was March 31, 2013 and the
option vests as follows: (i) 4,375 shares vested on the vesting commencement date and (ii) an additional 4,375 shares vest each fiscal
quarter end following the vesting commencement date, subject to continued service with Parametric. On August 2, 2013 Parametric
made a modification to accelerate the vesting of these options in full upon a change of control followed by such executive’s departure
from the company under certain circumstances thereafter (“double trigger” vesting).
(7) This option was granted under the 2010 Plan on October 8, 2010, with a per share exercise price equal to 110% of the fair market
value of one of our shares of common stock on the date of grant. The vesting was quarterly with the commencement date of
December 31, 2010 and are fully vested.
(8) This time-based option was granted under the 2012 Plan on February 21, 2013, with a per share exercise price equal to the fair market
value of one of our shares of common stock on the date of grant . The commencement date was March 31, 2013 and the option vests
as follows: (i) 3,437.5 shares vested on the vesting commencement date and (ii) an additional 3.437.5 shares vest each fiscal quarter
end following the vesting commencement date, subject to continued service with Parametric. On August 2, 2013 Parametric made a
modification to vest these options in full upon a change of control followed by such executive’s departure from Parametric under
certain circumstances thereafter (“double trigger” vesting).
(9) This option was granted under the 2010 Plan on October 8, 2010, with a per share exercise price equal to the fair market value of one
of our shares of common stock on the date of grant. The vesting was quarterly with the commencement date of December 31, 2010
and are fully vested.
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Potential Payments Upon Termination, Death, Disability, or Retirement
Under our employment agreement with Mr. Potashner, in the event that Mr. Potashner’s employment is terminated by us for any reason
other than cause, or if he resigns for good reason, he will be entitled to severance equal to one year’s salary plus any prorated target bonus
payable, as described more fully above in “Employment Agreement”. Mr. Potashner’s current annual salary is $350,000. In addition, Mr.
Potashner is entitled to full vesting of any unvested stock options upon the occurrence of a change of control.
On August 2, 2013, Parametric made a modification to vest stock options held by Mr. Norris and Mr. Barnes in full upon a change of
control followed by such executive’s departure from Parametric under certain circumstances thereafter (“double trigger” vesting).
Director Compensation
Each of our non-employee directors was paid a fee of $3,000 per quarter served (whether serving for the whole or partial quarter), payable
quarterly in arrears. No additional amounts are payable for committee participation. In addition, non-employee directors receive equity
compensation grants as consideration for board and committee service from time to time. There is no established policy as to the frequency or
amount of equity compensation grants for non-employee directors. Directors who are also one of our employees, such as Mr. Potashner and Mr.
Norris, do not and will not receive any compensation for their services as a director while providing service as an employee. In the case of
Messrs. Potashner and Norris, who are named executive officers of Parametric for fiscal 2012 and 2013, their compensation for fiscal 2012 and
2013 is reported in the Summary Compensation Table above.
The following table sets forth the compensation paid to our non-employee directors for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013:
Fee Earned or
Paid in Cash

Option
Awards (1)(2)

All Other
Compensation

Seth Putterman (3)

$

12,000

$

27,924

$

Robert M. Kaplan

$

12,000

$

Andrew Wolfe

$

12,000

James L. Honore

$

12,000

Name

Total

202,775(3) $

242,699

27,924

–

$

39,924

$

27,924

–

$

39,924

$

27,924

–

$

39,924

(1) Represents the aggregate grant date fair value, as determined under FASB ASC Topic 718, Stock Compensation, of all option awards
granted to the directors during fiscal 2013. Fair value is calculated as of the grant date using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model.
The determination of the fair value of share-based payment awards made on the date of grant is affected by our stock price as well as
assumptions regarding a number of complex and subjective variables. Our assumptions in determining fair value include volatility of
88%, risk free interest rate of 0.41%, expected lives of 3.06 years, dividends and forfeitures of 0%.
(2) At September 30, 2013, each of our current directors had options outstanding exercisable for 15,000 shares of common stock. Each of
these options were granted under either the 2010 Plan or the 2012 Plan and vest as follows: 12.5% of the total shares subject to the
option vests on the last day of the quarter in which the grant date occurs and an additional 12.5% vests at the end of each calendar
quarter thereafter. The number of shares under each option, the exercise price and the grant and expiration dates for each option are as
follows:
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Name

Grant Date

Number of
Outstanding
Shares as of
September 30,
2013 Subject
to Option

2/21/2013
5/7/2011
1/13/2012
2/21/2013
5/7/2011
1/13/2012
2/21/2013
2/16/2012
2/21/2013
3/5/2012

5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
10,000
5,000
10,000

Seth Putterman
Robert M. Kaplan
Andrew Wolfe
James L. Honore

Exercise Price
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

9.95
3.30
4.55
9.95
3.30
4.55
9.95
3.90
9.95
4.25

Expiration
Date
2/21/2018
5/7/2016
1/13/2017
2/21/2018
5/7/2016
1/13/2017
2/21/2018
2/16/2017
2/21/2018
3/5/2017

(3) Dr. Putterman resigned as a director on November 21, 2013. All other compensation represents non-director service consulting fees
of $40,000 paid to Dr. Putterman in 2013 for technical services regarding our HSS technology and the grant date fair value of 25,000
options granted in September 2012 for such services but only effective upon shareholder approval of increased shares under the 2012
plan on February 21, 2013. These options were valued at $162,775 on the effective grant date of February 21, 2013 (the assumptions
in determining fair value included volatility of 88%, risk free interest rate of 0.41%, expected lives of option term, dividends and
forfeitures of 0%) but are revalued each reporting period.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
The following ownership information with respect to our common stock is set forth, as of November 22, 2013, with respect to (i) each
stockholder known by us to be beneficial owners of more than 5% of our outstanding common stock, (ii) each of our current directors, (iii) each
of the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table in Item 11 above and (iv) all current directors and executive officers as a
group (seven persons). Beneficial ownership is determined under the rules of the SEC and generally includes voting or investment power over
securities. In accordance with the SEC rules, shares of Parametric common stock that are subject to options or warrants that are currently
exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of the record date are considered outstanding and beneficially owned by the person holding the options
or warrants for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of that person, but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of
computing the percentage ownership of any other person. Other than as set forth below, we are not aware of any other stockholder who may be
deemed to be a beneficial owner of more than 5% of our common stock. The address for all directors and officers is 13771 Danielson Street, Ste.
L, Poway, California 92064.
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner
5% Stockholders:
FRM LLC
82 Devonshire Street
Boston, Massachusetts 02109
James E. Besser and Manchester Management Company, LLC
131 Charles Street, 1 st Floor
Boston, Massachusetts 02114
VTB Holdings, Inc.
100 Summit Lake Drive, Suite 100
Valhalla, New York 10594
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Amount and Nature of
Beneficial Ownership

Percent of Class

599,068(1)

8.3%

483,811(2)

6.7%

1,313,520(3)

18.2%

Amount and Nature of
Beneficial Ownership
364,286(4)

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner
Hodges SmallCap Fund
2905 Maple Avenue
Dallas, Texas 75201

Percent of Class
5.0%

Directors and Officers:
Elwood G. Norris
James A. Barnes
Kenneth F. Potashner
Robert M. Kaplan
Andrew Wolfe
James L. Honore

1,103,770(5)
446,000(6)
417,500(7)
41,076(8)
12,500(9)
12,500(10)

15.1%
6.1%
5.5%
*
*
*

All directors and executive officers as a group (7 persons)

2,055,596(11)

25.9%

*

less than 1%.
(1) Beneficial ownership by FRM LLC is based on the information provided by the stockholders as reported in the Schedule 13G filed
with the SEC on February 14, 2013. A wholly-owned subsidiary of FRM LLC, Fidelity Management & Research Company is an
investment advisor and under the Investment Advisors Act of 1940 is deemed to beneficially own 599,068 shares as a result of acting
as investment advisor to various investment companies.
(2) Beneficial ownership by Mr. Bresser and Manchester Management Company, LLC is based on information provided by the
stockholder as reported in a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 8, 2013. Consists of 135,000 shares as to which sole
voting and dispositive power is held by Mr. Bresser and 348,811 shares as to which shared voting and dispositive power is held by
Mr. Bresser and by Manchester Management Company, LLC.
(3) Beneficial ownership by VTB Holdings, Inc. (“VTBH”) is based on the information provided by the stockholders as reported in a
Schedule 13D filed with the SEC. VTBH is deemed to have shared voting power with respect to the shares beneficially owned by
certain members of Parametric’s management team due to the proxy granted to VTBH in the voting agreements entered into with
certain members of Parametric management and entities controlled by them in connection with the merger transaction described in
this proxy statement.
(4) Beneficial ownership is based on information provided by the stockholder in a Subscription Agreement dated November 12, 2013.
(5) Includes 453,864 shares held by a family trust for which Mr. Norris serves as trustee, 4,500 held by EGN Holdings LLC and 180,083
held by Mt. Savage Products LLC both for which Mr. Norris is manager, and 284,825 shares representing Mr. Norris’ pecuniary
interest in shares held by Syzygy. Also includes options currently exercisable and those exercisable within 60 days on an aggregate of
92,500 shares. By virtue of the voting agreement entered into with VTBH, VTBH is deemed to share the power to vote the securities
beneficially owned by Mr. Norris.
(6) Consists of 17,733 shares held by Sunrise Capital, Inc., 67,000 shares held by Sunrise Management, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan, 63,000
shares held by Palermo Trust, 153,367 shares representing Mr. Barnes’ pecuniary interest in shares held by Syzygy, 600 shares held
by a personal retirement plan and 550 shares held by a personal retirement plan of his spouse. Mr. Barnes is President of Sunrise
Capital, Inc. and Trustee of Sunrise Management, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan, the Palermo Trust and his personal retirement plan. He is
also the managing member of Syzygy. Also includes 20,000 warrants held by Palermo Trust and options currently exercisable and
those exercisable within 60 days on an aggregate of 123,750 shares. He disclaims any beneficial interest in the 550 shares held in his
spouse’s personal retirement plan. By virtue of the voting agreement entered into with VTBH, VTBH is deemed to share the power to
vote the securities beneficially owned by Mr. Barnes.
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(7) Includes options currently exercisable and those exercisable within 60 days on an aggregate of 417,500 shares. By virtue of the voting
agreement entered into with VTBH, VTBH is deemed to share the power to vote the securities beneficially owned by Mr. Potashner.
(8) Includes options currently exercisable and those exercisable within 60 days on an aggregate of 12,500 shares.
(9) Includes options currently exercisable and those exercisable within 60 days on an aggregate of 12,500 shares.
(10) Includes options currently exercisable and those exercisable within 60 days on an aggregate of 12,500 shares.
(11) Includes options and warrants currently exercisable and those exercisable within 60 days on an aggregate of 710,000 shares.
With respect to arrangements the operation of which may at a subsequent date result in a change of control of Parametric, as contemplated
by Item 403(c) of Regulation S-K, we have entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger with Turtle Beach dated August 5, 2013. The issuance
of shares pursuant to the merger contemplated by such agreement would result in a change of control of our company. See Part I, Item 1
(Business) for more information.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS, RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The charter of the Audit Committee requires it to review and monitor all related party transactions – generally those transactions which
may require disclosure under Item 404 of Regulation S-K or otherwise involve our directors and officers and entities controlled by them – which
may be entered into by Parametric. There is not a formal standard to be applied by the Audit Committee in reviewing and approving related party
transactions.
On December 29, 2011, we entered into an Assignment Agreement (“Assignment”) with Syzygy Licensing, LLC (“Syzygy”) pursuant to
which we acquired all technology and intellectual property covered by the License and Royalty Agreement (“License”) dated September 27,
2010, previously entered into between Syzygy and us. The Assignment terminated the License and all future royalty obligations owed by us to
Syzygy thereunder. Pending patent applications comprising part of the intellectual property were also assigned to us. Syzygy is owned by the
Company’s President and Chief Scientist, Elwood G. Norris (65%), and by the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary,
James A. Barnes (35%).
Under the terms of the Assignment, we issued 300,000 shares of our common stock to Syzygy (valued at $975,000 based on the closing
price of the common stock of $3.25 on the trading day immediately prior to signing the Assigment) and in June 2012 paid $250,000 to Syzygy.
We incurred $3,834 as royalties pursuant to the License during the year ended September 30, 2011. We incurred $3,194 of royalties for the three
months ended December 31, 2011 prior to termination of the License and owed Syzygy an aggregate of $7,028 in royalties, which was paid in
April 2012.
Prior to termination of the License we were obligated to reimburse Syzygy’s costs, in filing for, prosecuting and maintaining the licensed
patents in the United States. We incurred and capitalized $2,852 and $28,237 related to such licensed patents during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2012 (prior to termination) and 2011, respectively.
On December 29, 2011, we appointed Kenneth F. Potashner as a director and granted him an option to purchase up to 10,000 shares
exercisable at $3.25 per share and entered into a consulting and advisory arrangement with him and granted him an option to purchase up to
410,000 shares exercisable at $3.25 per share, each grant subject to vesting and other conditions. On March 5, 2012, we appointed Mr. Potashner
as our Executive Chairman and agreed to the terms on which the Company and Mr. Potashner would enter into a compensation agreement after
completion of our secondary stock offering. In April 2012, following the March completion of the secondary offering, we entered into a fiveyear employment agreement with Mr. Potashner as Executive Chairman with a base salary of $350,000 and Mr. Potashner participates in any
benefits and other incentives generally available to other executives. Mr. Potashner is eligible to earn an annual performance-based bonus of up
to 60% of his base salary then in effect, subject to the achievement by Mr. Potashner and the company of performance criteria for each bonus
year as so designated by the Board of Directors. The bonus will be determined in accordance with the Company’s bonus plan if then in effect.
Under the terms of the employment agreement, we may be obligated to pay to Mr. Potashner severance equal to one year of his annual base
salary plus targeted bonus if his employment is terminated without cause. We also granted him additional incentive compensation consisting of
an option to purchase up to 175,000 shares of common stock exercisable at $4.50 per share until April 3, 2017 vesting upon achievement of
performance targets established by the Board of Directors. In connection with this employment option grant, the vesting of the option granted to
him in December 2011 to purchase 410,000 shares at an exercise price of $3.25 per share was modified such that 195,000 shares were vested as
of April 3, 2012, 195,000 shares will vest equally over eight calendar quarters that commenced March 31, 2012 with the balance of 20,000
shares becoming vested in August 2012 upon achievement of performance approved by the Board of Directors.

57

On December 29, 2011 Mr. Norris exercised stock options at $1.65 per common shares and acquired 75,000 shares for a cash payment to
the company of $123,570 realizing a $120,000 value based on the market price at the exercise date. On December 29, 2011 Mr. Barnes exercised
stock options at $1.50 per common shares and acquired 20,000 shares for a cash payment to the company of $30,000 realizing a $35,000 value
based on the market price at the exercise date.
In April 2012, we paid Mr. Potashner $125,000 for consulting services from December 2011 through his April 2012 employment.
On May 1, 2012 we adopted a cash bonus plan for the period April 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012, pursuant to which each of our
executive officers and certain other officers, consultants and employees designated by the Board of Directors are eligible to receive a target
bonus equal to a percentage of the executive officer’s or other individual’s annualized base compensation if applicable performance objectives
are met. On February 21, 2013 we adopted a cash bonus plan for the period January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013, pursuant to which each of
our executive officers and certain other consultants and employees designated by the Board of Directors are eligible to receive a target bonus
equal to a percentage of the executive officer’s or other individual’s annualized base compensation if applicable performance objectives are met.
In August and October 2013, in connection with the proposed merger with Turtle Beach, and as authorized under the cash bonus plan, the Board
of Directors approved, for its three executive officers, the closing of the merger as a performance objective eligible for maximum bonus payouts
for 2013 aggregating $453,000. See Part III, Item 11: (Executive Compensation) for more information.
During fiscal 2013, former director Seth Putterman was paid consulting fees for non-director technology consulting services of $40,000.
He was also granted 25,000 options in September 2012 for such services but these options only became effective and exercisable upon
shareholder approval of increased shares under the 2012 Plan on February 21, 2013. These options have an exercise price of $10.24 per share
and vest quarterly over three years subject to continued service and other conditions of the 2012 Plan. The options were valued at $162,775 on
the effective grant date of February 21, 2013. See Part III, Item 11: (Executive Compensation) for more information.
On February 12, 2013 and February 15, 2013, Mr. Potashner exercised stock options at $3.25 per common shares and acquired a total of
25,000 shares for a cash payment to the company of $81,250 realizing a $169,342 value based on the market price at the exercise date.
In February 2013, HHI adopted an equity incentive plan under which it may grant options to purchase up to 250 shares of its common
stock to HHI employees, directors and consultants. HHI has 1,000 shares of common stock issued and outstanding. On March 5, 2013, HHI
granted to Mr. Potashner an option, with a five year term, to purchase 50 shares of HHI common stock at an exercise price of $1,000 per share.
This option grant was subject to a combination of performance and time-based vesting, and also contains certain anti-dilution adjustment rights
(which generally allow the option holder to maintain his percentage ownership during a three-year period), as well as repurchase rights and first
refusal rights in favor of HHI. This option was amended and restated on August 5, 2013 related to the proposed merger with Turtle Beach such
that 37.5 shares are both time and performance based vesting 3.125 shares per calendar quarter commencing June 30, 2013 over twelve calendar
quarters, but are subject to an HHI financing condition (at least $3 million of new equity financing from third parties). The balance of 12.5 shares
are milestone performance based but also subject to the HHI financing condition. The option terminates upon closing of the merger with Turtle
Beach. The fair value of the option on the grant date, assuming all performance conditions were achieved, was $26,503.
Director Independence
Our common stock is currently listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “PAMT,” and therefore, our determination of
the independence of directors is made using the definition of “independent director” contained in The NASDAQ Capital Market Listing Rules.
On the basis of information solicited from each director, the board has determined that each of Dr. Kaplan, Mr. Wolfe and Mr. Honore has no
material relationship with the company and is an independent director within the meaning of such rules. Messrs. Potashner and Norris are not
independent directors because they are employees of Parametric. In making these determinations, the Board of Directors evaluated responses to a
questionnaire completed by each director regarding relationships and possible conflicts of interest between each director, the company and
management. In its review of director independence, the board considered all commercial, industrial, banking, consulting, legal, accounting,
charitable, and familial relationships any director may have with the company or management.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
The following table presents fees billed by Squar, Milner, Peterson, Miranda & Williamson, LLP for professional services rendered for
the fiscal years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012:

Audit fees (1)
Audit related fees (2)
Tax fees (3)
All other fees (4)
Total

$

$

Fiscal
2013
108,181
18,289
4,611
10,630
141,711

$

$

Fiscal
2012
81,732
44,547
4,410
–
130,689

(1) Audit fees include fees and expenses for professional services rendered in connection with the audit of our financial statements for
those years, reviews of the interim financial statements that are normally provided by the independent registered public accounting
firm in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.
(2) Audit related fees consist of fees billed for assurance related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or
review of our financial statements and are not reported under “Audit Fees.” Included in audit related fees are fees and expenses
related to reviews of registration statements and SEC filings other than Forms 10-K and 10-Q.
(3) Tax fees include the aggregate fees billed during the fiscal year indicated for professional services for tax compliance, tax advice and
tax planning.
(4) All other fees consist of fees for products and services other than the services reported above. No such fees were billed by Squar,
Milner, Peterson, Miranda & Williamson, LLP for fiscal 2012.
Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures
All audit and non-audit services are pre-approved by the Audit Committee, which considers, among other things, the possible effect of the
performance of such services on the registered public accounting firm’s independence. The Audit Committee pre-approves the annual
engagement of the principal independent registered public accounting firm, including the performance of the annual audit and quarterly reviews
for the subsequent fiscal year, and pre-approves specific engagements for tax services performed by such firm. The Audit Committee has also
established pre-approval policies and procedures for certain enumerated audit and audit related services performed pursuant to the annual
engagement agreement, including such firm’s attendance at and participation at Board and committee meetings; services of such firm associated
with SEC registration statements, periodic reports and other documents filed with the SEC or other documents issued in connection with
securities offerings, such as comfort letters and consents; such firm’s assistance in responding to any SEC comment letters; and consultations
with such firm as to the accounting or disclosure treatment of transactions or events and/or the actual or potential impact of final or proposed
rules, standards or interpretations by the SEC, Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB), Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB), or other regulatory or standard-setting bodies. The Audit Committee is informed of each service performed pursuant to its pre-approval
policies and procedures.
The Audit Committee has considered the role of Squar, Milner, Peterson, Miranda & Williamson, LLP in providing services to us for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 and has concluded that such services are compatible with such firm’s independence.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a)

The following documents are included as a part of this report:
(1)

(2)

Financial Statements.
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

F-2

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2013 and 2012

F-4

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

F-5

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

F-6

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

F-7

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

F-8

Financial Statement Schedules.
All schedules have been omitted because the information is not applicable, is not material or because the information
required is included in the financial statements or the notes thereto.

(3)

Index to Exhibits.
The exhibits listed on the accompanying index to exhibits immediately following the financial statements are filed as
part of, or hereby incorporated by reference into, this Form 10-K.
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PARAMETRIC SOUND CORPORATION
INDEX
Page
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements:
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

F-2

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2013 and 2012

F-4

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

F-5

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

F-6

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

F-7

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

F-8

F- 1

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Parametric Sound Corporation:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Parametric Sound Corporation and Subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Company”) as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for
each of the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Parametric
Sound Corporation and Subsidiaries as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
As discussed in Notes 1 and 3 to the consolidated financial statements, in August 2013 the Company entered into a merger agreement with VTB
Holdings, Inc. (“Turtle Beach”) pursuant to which, upon completion of the merger, security holders (including optionees) of Turtle Beach would
own approximately 80% of the Company’s common stock on a fully-diluted basis. In conjunction with the planned merger, the Company
completed an equity financing transaction in November 2013 in which it received net proceeds of approximately $5.08 million, as discussed in
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, As discussed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, litigation relating to the
planned merger was filed against the Company, for which the Company is unable to predict the outcome or possible loss or range of loss, if any,
or the impact on the planned merger.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2013, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and our report dated November 26, 2013 expressed
an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
/s/ SQUAR, MILNER, PETERSON, MIRANDA & WILLIAMSON, LLP
San Diego, California
November 26, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Parametric Sound Corporation
We have audited Parametric Sound Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2013, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
Parametric Sound Corporation’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on
our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (b) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, Parametric Sound Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2013, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Parametric Sound Corporation as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years then ended, and our report dated November 26, 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion.
/s/ SQUAR, MILNER, PETERSON, MIRANDA & WILLIAMSON, LLP
San Diego, CA
November 26, 2013
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Parametric Sound Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets
September 30,
2013
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Total assets

$

$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Capital lease obligation - current portion
Total current liabilities

$

Capital lease obligation - long term
Total liabilities

2012

1,597,879
177,453
723,420
95,932
2,594,684
219,369
1,451,298
4,265,351

$

862,522
183,716
37,486
1,083,724

$

$

5,527,647
39,371
443,704
62,828
6,073,550
176,912
1,314,861
7,565,323

173,337
139,875
–
313,212

94,611
1,178,335

–
313,212

–

–

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, authorized 1,000,000 shares, none issued and outstanding
Common stock, $0.001 par value, authorized 50,000,000 shares, 6,835,321 and 6,408,151
shares issued and outstanding, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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6,835
17,383,196
(14,303,015)
3,087,016
4,265,351

$

6,408
13,878,294
(6,632,591)
7,252,111
7,565,323

Parametric Sound Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended September 30,
2013
2012
Revenues:
Product sales
Other revenue
Total revenues
Cost of revenues
Gross profit

$

Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Research and development
Business transaction
Total operating expenses
Loss from operations
Other income (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Other

545,905
16,997
562,902
292,329
270,573

$

222,016
11,633
233,649
120,142
113,507

4,602,344
2,056,364
1,280,273
7,938,981
(7,668,408)

3,247,698
1,340,054
–
4,587,752
(4,474,245)

$

15,027
–
(2,964)
12,063
(4,462,182)

$

(0.85)

Net loss

$

8,508
(4,559)
(5,965)
(2,016)
(7,670,424)

Net loss per basic and diluted common share (1)
Weighted average common shares used to compute net loss per basic and diluted common
share (1)

$

(1.16)
6,587,337

5,258,020

(1) Net loss per share and weighted average common shares outstanding for all periods reflect the 1-for-5 reverse stock split that was effective
March 21, 2012 (see Note 1).
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

F- 5

Parametric Sound Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

Balance at September 30, 2011
Common shares issued upon exercise of
stock options
Common shares issued for assignment
of patents and intellectual property
from related party
Issuance of common shares at $4.50 per
share and underwriter warrants in
secondary public offering, net of
issuance costs of $1,863,442
Common shares issued to officers for
deferred compensation
Share-based compensation expense
Net loss for the period
Balance at September 30, 2012
Common shares issued upon exercise of
stock options for cash
Common shares issued upon cashless
exercise of stock options
Common shares issued upon exercise of
warrants for cash
Common shares issued upon cashless
exercise of warrants
Warrants issued to vendor for services
Share-based compensation expense
Net loss for the period
Balance at September 30, 2013

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
3,903,784
$
3,904

Additional
Paid-In
Capital
$
2,886,960

Accumulated
Deficit
$
(2,170,409)

Total
Stockholders'
Equity
$
720,455

119,856

120

192,218

–

192,338

300,000

300

974,700

–

975,000

2,053,400

2,053

7,997,538

–

7,999,591

31,111
–
–
6,408,151

31
–
–
6,408

139,969
1,686,909
–
13,878,294

$

$

$

–
–
(4,462,182)
(6,632,591)

$

140,000
1,686,909
(4,462,182)
7,252,111

61,521

61

232,026

–

232,087

96

–

–

–

–

300,000

300

1,124,700

–

1,125,000

65,553
–
–
–
6,835,321

66
–
–
–
6,835

$

$

(66)
25,000
2,123,242
–
17,383,196

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$

–
–
–
(7,670,424)
(14,303,015)

$

–
25,000
2,123,242
(7,670,424)
3,087,016

Parametric Sound Corporation
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended September 30,
2013
2012
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Warranty provision
Non-cash inventory reserve
Share-based compensation
Warrants issued for services
Non-cash research and development supplies
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Inventories
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred officer compensation
Warranty settlements
Net cash used in operating activities

$

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures for property and equipment
Patent costs paid
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants
Offering costs paid
Proceeds from exercise of warrants
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Payments on capital lease obligation
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

$

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Information:
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Common stock issued for technology purchased from related party
Equipment acquired with capital lease
Deferred officer compensation paid in common shares
Issuance costs relating to warrants issued to underwriter

$

(4,462,182)

256,670
15,997
(51,078)
2,106,373
25,000
16,163

180,900
10,612
(7,604)
1,686,909
–
–

(138,082)
(16,235)
(228,638)
689,185
37,943
–
(10,099)
(4,967,225)

(39,371)
2,143
(162,832)
9,147
122,417
(84,400)
(7,904)
(2,752,165)

(35,501)
(260,096)
(295,597)

(108,785)
(295,096)
(403,881)

–
–
1,125,000
232,087
(24,033)
1,333,054

9,240,304
(1,240,713)
–
192,338
–
8,191,929

(3,929,768)
5,527,647
1,597,879

5,035,883
491,764
5,527,647

$

$

4,559
800

$

–
800

$

–
139,967
–
–

$

975,000
–
140,000
622,729

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(7,670,424)

Parametric Sound Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization and Business Description
Parametric Sound Corporation (“Parametric” or the “Company”) is a technology company focused on delivering novel audio solutions
through its HyperSound® or “HSS®” technology platform, that pioneered the practical application of parametric acoustic technology for
generating audible sound along a directional ultrasonic column. The creation of sound using the Company’s technology also creates a unique
sound image distinct from traditional audio systems. In addition to its commercial product business, the Company is targeting its technology for
new uses in consumer markets including computers, video gaming, televisions and home audio along with other commercial markets including
casino gaming and cinema. The Company is also researching and developing health applications for persons with hearing loss.
The Company was incorporated in Nevada on June 2, 2010 as a new, wholly owned subsidiary of LRAD Corporation in order to effect
the 100% separation and spin-off of the HSS business (the “Spin-Off”) . On September 27, 2010, the Spin-Off was completed and the Company
became a stand-alone, independent, publicly traded company. In June 2012, the Company formed PSC Licensing Corp. (“PSC”) and in October
2012 formed HyperSound Health, Inc. (“HHI”), both as wholly owned subsidiaries. The Company’s corporate headquarters are located in
Poway, California. Principal markets for the Company’s products are North America, Europe and Asia.
On August 5, 2013, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with VTB Holdings, Inc.
(“Turtle Beach”). The Merger Agreement provides, that upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Merger Agreement, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company will merge with and into Turtle Beach resulting in Turtle Beach becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Merger”). At the effective time of the Merger, the Company will issue shares of common stock to the former Turtle Beach
stockholders which, together with options to purchase shares of Turtle Beach common stock that will be converted into options to purchase
shares of the Company’s common stock (and will be assumed by the Company at the effective time of the Merger), will represent approximately
80% of the Company’s common stock on a fully-diluted basis after the Merger, subject to adjustment pursuant to the Merger Agreement. Certain
redeemable, non-convertible preferred stock of Turtle Beach with a stated value of $12,000,000, plus dividends accrued but unpaid thereon, as
well as certain phantom stock units of Turtle Beach, will remain outstanding following the Merger and will not be exchanged for Company
common stock. The Merger and related transactions are more fully described in Note 3, “Pending Merger with Turtle Beach.”
Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”). The consolidated financial statements include the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries, PSC
and HHI. Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Where necessary, the prior year’s information has been
reclassified to conform to the fiscal 2013 statement presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on previously reported results of
operations or accumulated deficit.
On March 21, 2012, the Company completed a 1-for-5 reverse split of its common stock. All common stock share and per share
information in the accompanying interim condensed consolidated financial statements and notes thereto have been adjusted to reflect
retrospective application of the reverse stock split, except for par value per share and the number of authorized shares, which were not affected
by the reverse stock split.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions (e.g., valuation of inventory, valuation of intangible assets, warranty reserve, the grant
date fair value of stock options and warrants, share-based compensation expense and valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets ) that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could materially differ from those estimates.
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Parametric Sound Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Loss Per Share
Basic loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding
during the period. Diluted net loss per common share reflects the potential dilution of securities that could share in the earnings of an entity. The
Company’s losses for the periods presented cause the inclusion of potential common stock instruments outstanding to be antidilutive. Stock
options and warrants exercisable into a total of 1,485,699 and 1,693,839 shares of common stock were outstanding at September 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively. These securities are not included in the computation of diluted net loss per common share for the periods presented, as their
inclusion would be antidilutive due to losses incurred by the Company. Previously reported share and earnings per share amounts have been
restated to reflect the 1-for-5 reverse stock split effected in March 2012.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts of cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair values due to the
short maturity of these instruments. The fair value of warrants issued in March and April 2012 were estimated using a Black-Scholes valuation
model (see Note 10).
The Company does not have any financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
Concentrations of Credit Risk
The Company sells its products to a number of geographically diverse customers. At September 30, 2013, accounts receivable from three
customers accounted for 62%, 13% and 11% of total accounts receivable. At September 30, 2012 accounts receivable from one customer
accounted for 98% of total accounts receivable.
Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, when purchased, to be cash
equivalents.
Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The Company’s policy is to evaluate the collectability of accounts receivable based on an assessment of the collectability of specific
customer accounts and then record an allowance for doubtful accounts to reduce the receivables to an amount that management reasonably
estimates will be collected. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts recorded at September 30, 2012 or 2013. Accounts that are deemed
uncollectible will be written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. If a major customer’s creditworthiness deteriorates, or actual
defaults exceed our historical experience, such estimates could change and impact our reported financial results.
Contract Manufacturers
The Company uses contract manufacturers for production of certain components and sub-assemblies. The Company may provide parts
and components to such parties from time to time but recognizes no revenue or markup on such transactions. The Company performs assembly
of products in-house using components and sub-assemblies from a variety of contract manufacturers and suppliers.
Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost of substantially all of the Company’s inventory is determined
by the weighted average cost method . Inventory is comprised of raw materials, assemblies and finished products intended for sale to customers .
The Company evaluates the need for reserves for excess and obsolete inventories determined primarily based upon estimates of future demand
for the Company’s products. At September 30, 2013 and 2012, the reserve for obsolescence included certain raw materials obtained at the SpinOff, some of which are being used to produce the Company’s products.
Property, Equipment and Depreciation
Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation on property and equipment is computed over the estimated useful lives of two to
three years using the straight-line method. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the life of the lease. Upon retirement or disposition of
property and equipment, the related cost and accumulated depreciation is removed and a gain or loss is recorded based on the difference between
proceeds received, if any, and the carrying value of the asset on the date of retirement or disposition.
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Parametric Sound Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Intangible Assets
Patents, licenses, purchased technology and trademarks are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. Intangible assets acquired
through a transaction that is not a business combination are measured based on the cash consideration paid plus either the fair value of the noncash consideration given or the fair value of the assets acquired, whichever is more clearly evident. Legal costs incurred to file, renew, or extend
the term of recognized intangible assets are capitalized.
Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which have been estimated to be 15 years for patents, licenses, purchased
technology and trademarks protecting the Company’s products. The Company amortizes certain patents acquired in the Spin-Off, classified as
defensive patents, over a weighted average of three years. The carrying value of intangibles is periodically reviewed and impairments, if any, are
recognized when the expected future benefit to be derived from an individual intangible asset is less than its carrying value.
Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue when (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) all obligations have been substantially
performed pursuant to the terms of sale or agreement, (iii) amounts are fixed or determinable and (iv) collectability of amounts is reasonably
assured. During fiscal 2012, the Company began pursuing licensing of its patents and technologies but has recognized no licensing revenues
through September 30, 2013.
Product Sales
Revenues derived from product sales to customers, including resellers and system integrators, are recognized in the periods that
products are shipped to customers (FOB shipping point) or when product is received by the customer (FOB destination), when the fee is
fixed and determinable, when collection of resulting receivables is probable and there are no remaining obligations on the part of the
Company. Most revenues to resellers and system integrators are based on commitments from the end user or stocking for identified
projects; as a result, resellers and system integrators generally carry minimal inventory. The Company’s customers do not have the right
to return product unless the product is found to be defective.
Licensing
The Company’s strategy is to derive licensing revenues primarily from royalties paid by licensees of the Company’s intellectual
property rights, including patents, trademarks and know-how. Revenues generated from license agreements are recognized in the period
earned, provided that amounts are fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured. Deferred revenue is reported for amounts
that are expected to be recognized as revenue including upfront license fees, but for which not all revenue recognition criteria have been
met.
Shipping and Handling Costs
Shipping and handling costs are included in cost of revenues. The amount of shipping and handling costs invoiced to customers is
included in revenue. Shipping and handling costs were $9,480 and $11,233 for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.
Research and Development Costs
Research and development expenses include costs and expenses associated with the development of the Company’s technology and the
design and development of new products, including initial nonrecurring engineering and product verification charges. Research and development
is expensed as incurred.
Business Transaction
For the year ended September 30, 2013, the Company incurred $1,280,273 of business transaction costs related to reviewing strategic
opportunities and preparing for the merger with Turtle Beach consisting of legal, investment bank, accounting and related costs and expenses.
Warranty Reserves
The Company warrants its products to be free from defects in materials and workmanship for a period of one year from the date of
purchase. The warranty is generally a limited warranty. The Company currently provides direct warranty service. The Company establishes a
warranty reserve based on anticipated warranty claims at the time revenue from product sales is recognized. Factors affecting warranty reserve
levels include the number of units sold and anticipated cost of warranty repairs and anticipated rates of warranty claims. The Company evaluates
the adequacy of the provision for warranty costs each reporting period.
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Parametric Sound Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Classification and Valuation of Warrants
The Company accounts for warrants as either equity or liabilities based upon the characteristics and provisions of each particular
instrument. Warrants valued and classified as equity are recorded as additional paid-in capital based on the issue date fair value and no further
adjustment to valuation is made. Warrants that do not qualify for equity classification are recorded as derivative liabilities based on the issue date
fair value and are subject to adjustment to fair value at each reporting period. As of September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company has no warrants
or other derivative financial instruments that require separate accounting as liabilities and periodic revaluation.
Income Taxes
The Company accounts for its income taxes under the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on temporary differences between financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities and net operating loss and credit
carry-forwards using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. Valuation allowances are
established when it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.
Financial statement effects of a tax position are initially recognized when it is more likely than not, based on the technical merits, that the
position would be sustained upon examination. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than not recognition threshold is initially and
subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has a more likely than not likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement
with a taxing authority. The Company recognizes potential accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as income tax
expense.
Comprehensive Loss
Comprehensive loss consists of net loss and other gains and losses affecting stockholders’ equity that under GAAP, are excluded from
reported net loss. There were no differences between net loss and comprehensive loss for any of the periods presented.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
Long-lived assets and identifiable finite-lived intangibles held for use are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the sum of undiscounted expected future cash flows is less than the
carrying amount of the asset or if changes in facts and circumstances indicate, an impairment loss is recognized and measured using the asset’s
fair value.
Share-Based Compensation
The Company measures employee share-based compensation awards using a fair-value method and records related compensation expense
for all awards that are expected to vest over the requisite service period.
Share-Based Payments for Goods and Services
Stock options, stock awards or warrants issued to non-employees who are not directors of the Company are recorded at the fair value of
the consideration received, when more reliably measurable, or the fair value of the equity instruments issued at the measurement date. Nonemployee options are periodically revalued as the options vest so the cost ultimately recognized is equivalent to the fair value on the date
performance is complete with such expense recognized over the related service period on a graded vesting method.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
The Company does not expect the adoption of any recent accounting pronouncements to have a material effect on the Company’s
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
Subsequent Events
Management has evaluated events subsequent to September 30, 2013 through the date the accompanying consolidated financial
statements were filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission for transactions and other events that may require adjustment of and/or
disclosure in such financial statements.
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Parametric Sound Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
2. LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
The Company has sustained recurring losses and negative cash flows from operations. The Company’s recent business operations have
been funded primarily from products sales, proceeds from sales of common stock and proceeds from the exercise of warrants and options. As of
September 30, 2013, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $1.6 million and a working capital balance of approximately
$1.5 million. Subsequent to September 30, 2013, in November 2013, the Company obtained net proceeds of approximately $5.08 million from
the registered direct sale of common stock pursuant to the Company’s “shelf” registration statement as more fully described in Note 15.
Assuming the merger is completed, the Company expects its cash including the proceeds from the November 2013 sale of common stock,
to meet its liquidity requirements through the anticipated closing of the Merger and the resulting combined company is expected to have
sufficient resources to finance operations for the next year. The Company believes the stock sale satisfies a closing condition under the Merger
Agreement requiring Parametric to raise a minimum of $5 million as described in Note 3. If the Merger is not completed, the Company believes
that existing working capital resources and product revenues will be sufficient to meet operating requirements based on current plans over the
next year. Under this scenario, the Company expects its cash and cash equivalents to decrease as it continues to pay merger related transaction
costs and fund operating and working capital requirements. Accordingly, the Company may need to reevaluate its strategic alternatives,
including pursuing other strategic transactions, but such alternatives may be negatively impacted in the event that the Merger is terminated.
Under this scenario, the Company may also need to evaluate the scope of its operations, and make reductions as considered necessary based on
current levels of revenues.
The Company’s future capital requirements will depend upon numerous factors, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

the timing, cost and successful completion of the Merger;
the success, progress, timing and costs of the Company’s business development efforts to obtain licensing arrangements and the
Company’s efforts to evaluate possible strategic alternatives with respect to the Company and its technology;
the Company’s ability to obtain value from its current products and technologies and its ability to sell or license new products and
technologies and the costs and expenses of such activities;
the perceived, potential and actual commercial success of the Company’s products;
the Company’s operating expenses;
the progress, timing, cost and results of the Company’s regulatory efforts related to hearing applications of its technology;
the costs of preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining and enforcing patent claims and other intellectual property rights;
the emergence of competing products and technologies, and other adverse market developments; and
the resolution of existing shareholder litigation discussed in Note 12 and any amount the Company may be required to pay in
connection with this litigation.

In the event the Company would require additional working capital to fund operations or otherwise elect to raise additional funds,
management may seek to acquire any such additional funds through equity or debt financing arrangements. There is no assurance that any
financing transaction will be available on terms acceptable to the Company, or at all. If the Company raises additional funds by issuing equity
securities, the Company’s stockholders may experience dilution. Debt financing, if available, may involve covenants restricting the Company’s
operations or its ability to incur additional debt.
If the Company does not complete the Merger and if adequate funds are not available in the future or are not available on acceptable
terms, the Company may need to reduce its operating costs which may have a material adverse effect on its financial position and results of
operations.
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Parametric Sound Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
3. PENDING MERGER WITH TURTLE BEACH
Agreement and Plan of Merger
On August 5, 2013, the Company entered into the Merger Agreement with Turtle Beach. The Merger Agreement provides that upon the
terms and subject to the conditions of the Merger Agreement, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company will merge with and into Turtle Beach
resulting in Turtle Beach becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Merger”). At the effective time of the Merger, the
Company will issue shares of common stock to the former Turtle Beach stockholders which, together with options to purchase shares of Turtle
Beach common stock that will be converted into options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock (and will be assumed by the
Company at the effective time of the Merger), will represent approximately 80% of the Company’s common stock on a fully-diluted basis after
the Merger, subject to adjustment pursuant to the Merger Agreement. Certain redeemable, non-convertible preferred stock of Turtle Beach with a
stated value of $12,000,000, plus dividends accrued but unpaid thereon, as well as certain phantom stock units of Turtle Beach, will remain
outstanding following the Merger and will not be exchanged for Company common stock.
The Merger Agreement requires the Company to cause, as of the effective time of the Merger, the size of the Company’s Board of
Directors to consist of a total nine members, initially to be comprised of five individuals identified by Turtle Beach and two individuals
identified by the Company, and two vacancies.
The Merger is intended to qualify as a “reorganization” within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended.
Although the Company will be the legal acquirer, the Merger will be accounted for as a “reverse acquisition” pursuant to which Turtle
Beach will be considered the acquiring entity for accounting purposes in accordance GAAP. As such, Turtle Beach will allocate the total
purchase consideration to Parametric’s tangible and identifiable intangible assets and liabilities based on their respective fair values at the date of
completion of the Merger. Turtle Beach’s historical results of operations will replace Parametric’s historical results of operations for all periods
prior to the Merger. After completion of the Merger, the results of operations of the combined companies will be included in Parametric’s
financial statements, which will also reflect the Series B Preferred Stock of Turtle Beach that will remain outstanding after the Merger.
The consummation of the Merger is subject to a number of conditions, including, but not limited to, (i) adoption and approval of the
Merger Agreement and the Merger by Company’s stockholders as required by NASDAQ rules, (ii) the approval of the continued listing
application by NASDAQ, (iii) the completion of a qualifying capital raising transaction through the incurrence of debt or the issuance of equity
by the Company, with net proceeds of at least $5 million, and (iv) certain other closing conditions. The Company believes the $5.1 million stock
sale completed in November 2013 (see Note 15) satisfies the capital raising closing condition under the Merger Agreement. The number of
shares of common stock to be issued pursuant to the Merger is subject to adjustment as described in the Merger Agreement depending upon the
amount of qualifying equity proceeds (up to a maximum of $15 million), obtained by the Company prior to closing of the Merger.
Each of the Company and Turtle Beach have made customary representations, warranties and covenants in the Merger Agreement
including, among others, covenants that: (i) each party will conduct its business in the ordinary course consistent with past practice during the
interim period between the execution of the Merger Agreement and the consummation of the Merger; (ii) each party will not engage in certain
kinds of transactions or take certain actions during such period, (iii) the Company will convene and hold a meeting of its stockholders for the
purpose of considering the adoption and approval of the Merger Agreement, and (iv) the transactions contemplated thereby and the Board of
dDrectors of the Company will recommend, subject to certain exceptions, that its stockholders adopt and approve the Merger Agreement and the
Merger. Other than for a period of 30 days that followed the signing of the Merger Agreement, the Company has agreed not to solicit proposals
relating to alternative business combinations or enter into discussions or an agreement concerning any proposals for alternative business
combinations, subject to fiduciary duty exceptions in the event of the Company’s receipt of a “superior proposal.”
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The Merger Agreement contains certain termination rights in favor of each of the Company and Turtle Beach under specified
circumstances. Upon termination in specified circumstances, some of which may be outside of the Company’s control (including, but not limited
to, in the event that the Board of Directors of the Company changes its recommendation that its stockholders approve the principal terms of the
Merger Agreement and the Merger, or elects to pursue a superior proposal from a third party), (i) the Company may be required to pay to Turtle
Beach a termination fee of $1,000,000 and/or enter into a license agreement with Turtle Beach with respect to certain Company intellectual
property for use in console audio products on an exclusive basis and computer audio products on a non-exclusive basis, or (ii) Turtle Beach may
be required to pay the Company a termination fee of $1,000,000. Either party may terminate the Merger Agreement if the Merger has not
occurred on or prior to February 28, 2014.
Stockholder Agreement
Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, on August 5, 2013, the Company, Turtle Beach and certain stockholders of
Turtle Beach (the “Turtle Beach Stockholders”) entered into a Stockholder Agreement (the “Stockholder Agreement”) pursuant to which the
Turtle Beach Stockholders agreed to certain restrictions and other provisions with respect to the Turtle Beach capital stock currently held by
them and the shares of Company common stock that will be issued to them pursuant to the Merger Agreement (collectively, the “Merger
Shares”).
Under the Stockholder Agreement, (i) the Turtle Beach Stockholders have agreed to a lock-up whereby they will not sell or otherwise
transfer the Merger Shares for a period of six months following the closing of the Merger, subject to certain exceptions, and (ii) the Turtle Beach
Stockholders also agreed to execute a written consent of stockholders in favor of the Merger concurrent with the execution of the Stockholder
Agreement.
Pursuant to the Stockholder Agreement, from and after the closing of the Merger, the Turtle Beach Stockholders are entitled to certain
registration rights covering the Merger Shares, including customary piggyback registration rights for all Turtle Beach Stockholders and demand
registration rights for SG VTB Holdings, LLC (“SG VTB”).
Pursuant to the Stockholder Agreement, the Turtle Beach Stockholders have also agreed, effective as of the closing of the Merger, to the
formation of a group (the “Stockholder Group”) for purposes of Section 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The
Turtle Beach Stockholders provided these block voting covenants to have the Company qualify as a “controlled company” under NASDAQ
rules following the closing of the Merger.
The Turtle Beach Stockholders have also agreed, effective from and after the closing of the Merger, to vote their Merger Shares to ensure
that SG VTB has the right to designate seven directors to Parametric’s Board of Directors (including the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and two independent directors) so long as SG VTB and its affiliates collectively beneficially own at least 10% of the outstanding
capital stock of the Company.
Voting Agreements
Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, on August 5, 2013, the Company and Turtle Beach entered into Shareholder
Agreements and Irrevocable Proxies (collectively, the “Voting Agreements”) with Kenneth Potashner, the Company’s Executive Chairman,
James A. Barnes, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer, and Elwood G. Norris, the Company’s President and Chief
Science Officer, as well as certain entities over which they exercise voting and/or investment control (collectively, the “Management
Stockholders”).
Under the Voting Agreements, (i) the Management Stockholders are subject to a lock-up restriction whereby they have agreed not to sell
or otherwise transfer the shares of Company common stock beneficially owned by them for a period of time commencing on the date of the
agreement and ending six months following the closing of the Merger, subject to certain exceptions, and (ii) the Management Stockholders have
agreed to vote their currently held shares in favor of the Merger Agreement and the Merger. The shares subject to the Voting Agreements
represented approximately 19.2% of the outstanding shares of Company common stock as of August 5, 2013, the date of the Merger Agreement.
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4. INVENTORIES, NET
Inventories, net consist of the following:
At September 30,
Finished goods
Work in process
Raw materials

$

Reserve for obsolescence
$

2013
260,646
43,494
479,963
784,103
(60,683)
723,420

$

$

2012
143,430
11,735
400,300
555,465
(111,761)
443,704

The Company relies on one supplier for film used in its HSS products. The Company’s ability to manufacture its HSS product could be
adversely affected if it were to lose a sole source supplier and was unable to find an alternative supplier.
The reserve for obsolescence was reduced by $60,711 and $25,020 for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively,
through the use of legacy HSS parts and components obtained in connection with the Spin-Off and used in the production of HSS-3000 products
and prototypes. The Company increased the reserve during the year ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 by $9,633 and $17,416, respectively,
for parts deemed obsolete due to model changes. The Company may continue to incur non-cash inventory reserve reductions through the use of
reserved legacy HSS parts obtained in connection with the Spin-Off and will continue to evaluate inventory for excess or obsolete components.
5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Property and equipment, net consist of the following:
At September 30,
Equipment
Research equipment under capital lease
Tooling
Furniture and office equipment
Leasehold improvements

$

Accumulated depreciation
$

2013
195,438
139,967
125,433
75,950
17,934
554,722
(335,353)
219,369

$

$

2012
180,519
–
124,299
58,170
16,266
379,254
(202,342)
176,912

Depreciation expense was $133,011 and $77,125 for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
Intangible assets, net consist of the following:
At September 30,
Purchased technology
Patents
Defensive patents
Licenses and trademarks

$

Accumulated amortization
$

2013
1,225,000
452,040
190,213
18,548
1,885,801
(434,503)
1,451,298

$

$

2012
1,225,000
201,745
183,498
15,462
1,625,705
(310,844)
1,314,861

Purchased technology consists of patent applications and intellectual property acquired from a related party (see Note 13) in December
2011.

F- 15

Parametric Sound Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Aggregate amortization expense for the Company’s intangible assets was $123,659 and $103,775 during the years ended September 30,
2013 and 2012, respectively.
The following table shows the estimated amortization expense for intangible assets for each of the five succeeding fiscal years and
thereafter:
Estimated Amortization Expense Years Ending September 30,
2014
$
2015
2016
2017
2018
Thereafter

127,839
122,514
113,880
106,413
105,497
875,155

7. ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities consist of the following:
2013

At September 30,
Payroll and related
Warranty reserve
Customer deposits
Accrued patent and research costs
Deferred rent
Other

$

2012

68,292
10,140
682
83,088
17,661
3,853
183,716

$

$

$

93,806
4,242
2,187
32,566
3,975
3,099
139,875

Details of the estimated warranty liability are as follows:
2013

Years Ended September 30,
Beginning balance
Warranty provision
Warranty settlements
Ending balance

$

2012

4,242
15,997
(10,099)
10,140

$

$

$

1,534
10,612
(7,904)
4,242

8. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION
The capital lease obligation is for research equipment (see Note 5). Amortization of the asset under the capital lease is included in
depreciation and amortization expense and the accumulated amortization was $31,515 at September 30, 2013.
Future minimum lease payments for each year of the capital lease are as follows:
Total
2014
2015
2016
2017
Total payments
Less amount representing interest
Present value of minimum payments
Less current portion

$

$
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42,888
42,888
42,888
14,295
142,959
(10,862)
132,097
(37,486)
94,611
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9. INCOME TAXES
The Company recorded no income tax expense in 2013 or 2012 due to losses incurred. The Company generated federal tax net operating
loss carryforwards related to expenditures incurred after the Spin-Off including costs incurred after incorporation and paid after the Spin-Off. At
September 30, 2013, the Company had a federal and state net operating loss carryforward of approximately $9.3 million that will expire
beginning in 20 3 1 unless previously utilized. Internal Revenue Code Section 382 limits net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards if an
ownership change of more than fifty percent of the value of the stock in a loss corporation occurs within a three-year period. Any future equity
issuances or significant ownership changes, including the Merger, could result in Section 382 limits. Accordingly, the ability to utilize net
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards could be restricted in the future.
The provision for income taxes consists of the following:
2013

Years Ended September 30,
Current tax benefit
Deferred tax benefit
Change in valuation allowance
Income tax benefit (provision)

$

$

–
2,327,000
(2,327,000)
–

2012
$

$

–
1,758,000
(1,758,000)
–

A reconciliation of income taxes at the federal statutory rate of 34% to the effective tax rate for the years ended September 30, 2013 and
2012 is as follows:
Years Ended September 30,
Income taxes benefit computed at federal statutory rate
State income taxes, net of federal effect
Permanent differences and other
Change in valuation allowance
Income tax benefit (provision)

$

$

2013
2,608,000
460,000
(741,000)
(2,327,000)
–

$

$

2012
1,517,000
268,000
(27,000)
(1,758,000)
–

The Company did not benefit from any of the carryforward tax attributes from periods prior to the Spin-Off including net operating loss
carryforwards. In assessing the possible realization of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future
taxable income during the periods in which those differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax
liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. In making this assessment, management does
not believe that it is more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefits of the net deferred tax assets as of September 30, 2013.
Accordingly, a valuation allowance has been established to offset the deferred tax assets as realization of such assets is uncertain. The
components of the net deferred tax assets are as follows:
2013

At September 30,
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating losses
Inventory reserve
Research tax credits
Stock-based and deferred compensation
Accruals and other

$

Deferred tax liabilities:
Amortization, depreciation and other
Net deferred tax assets
Less valuation allowance
Net deferred taxes after valuation allowance

$

F- 17

3,720,000
339,000
19,000
1,094,000
38,000
5,210,000
78,000
78,000
5,132,000
(5,132,000)
–

2012
$

$

1,805,000
382,000
19,000
683,000
53,000
2,942,000
137,000
137,000
2,805,000
(2,805,000)
–
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The Company recognizes windfall tax benefits associated with the exercise of stock options directly to stockholders’ equity only when
realized. Accordingly, deferred tax assets are not recognized for net operating loss carryforwards resulting from windfall tax benefits occurring
from September 27, 2010 onward. At September 30, 2013, deferred tax assets do not include excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation
of approximately $176,000.
The Company adopted ASC 740-10-25, Income Taxes—Recognition (formerly FIN 48), as of the date of incorporation. As of the date of
the adoption, the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits and there were no material changes during the years ended September 30, 2013 and
2012. Due to the existence of the valuation allowance, future changes in the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits will not impact its effective
tax rate. The Company’s practice is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. Upon adoption of
ASC 740-10-25, the Company did not record any interest or penalties. The Company is subject to income tax in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and
the state of California. All years since the Company’s 2010 organization remain subject to examination but there are currently no ongoing exams
in any taxing jurisdiction.
10. CAPITAL STOCK
Common Stock
The Company is authorized to issue 50,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.001 par value. At September 30, 2013 and 2012, the
Company had 6,835,321 and 6,408,151 shares issued and outstanding, respectively. All common stock share and per share information herein
have been adjusted to reflect the retrospective application of the 1-for-5 reverse stock split effected March 21,2012, except for par value per
share and the number of authorized shares, which were not affected by the reverse stock split.
Preferred Stock
The Company is authorized to issue 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.001 par value. The Company is authorized under its certificate
of incorporation and bylaws to issue the shares of preferred stock without any further action by the stockholders. The Board of Directors has the
authority to divide any and all shares of preferred stock into series and to fix and determine the relative rights and preferences of the preferred
stock, such as the designation of series and the number of shares constituting such series, dividend rights, redemption and sinking fund
provisions, liquidation and dissolution preferences, conversion or exchange rights and voting rights, if any. Issuance of preferred stock by the
Board of Directors could result in such shares having dividend and/or liquidation preferences senior to the rights of the holders of common stock
and could dilute the voting rights of the holders of common stock.
Secondary Public Offering
During March and April 2012, the Company completed a secondary public offering of 2,053,400 shares of common stock, at a price of
$4.50 per share, for gross proceeds of $9.24 million. The net proceeds of the offering after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions
and offering expenses was $8.0 million. In connection with the offering, the Company granted the underwriter warrants to purchase 205,339
shares of common stock at an exercise price of $5.625 per share. These warrants expire on March 21, 2017. The estimated fair value of these
warrants was $622,729, as determined using the Black-Scholes methodology (assuming estimated volatility of 91% and 90%, risk-free interest
rate of 0.89% and 0.87%, expected dividend yield of 0.0%). This amount was recorded as both an increase to additional paid in capital and as a
non-cash issuance cost of the financing transaction.
Summary of Stock Purchase Warrants
The following table summarizes information on warrant activity during the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2013:

Shares purchasable under outstanding warrants at October 1, 2011
Stock purchase warrants issued
Stock purchase warrants exercised
Shares purchasable under outstanding warrants at September 30, 2012
Stock purchase warrants issued
Stock purchase warrants exercised
Shares purchasable under outstanding warrants at September 30, 2013
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Number
320,000
205,339
–
525,339
4,200
(392,194)
137,345

Average Purchase
Price Per Share
$
3.75
$
5.625
$
$
$
$

4.48
8.72
4.19
5.45
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In June 2013, the Company issued 4,200 warrants exercisable for five years at $8.72 per share to a corporate vendor as payment for a
$25,000 obligation.
During the year ended September 30, 2013, a total of 92,194 warrants were converted pursuant to cashless net exercise features, resulting
in the issuance of 65,553 shares of common stock, and warrants to purchase 300,000 shares of common stock were exercised for cash resulting
in proceeds of $1,125,000. Subsequent to September 30, 2013 a total of 26,471 warrants were converted pursuant to cashless net exercise,
resulting in the issuance of 16,793 shares of common stock.
The Company has outstanding share warrants as of September 30, 2013 as follows:
Description
Stock Purchase Warrants (1)
Stock Purchase Warrants
Stock Purchase Warrants

Number of
Common Shares
20,000
113,145
4,200

$
$
$

Exercise Price
Per Share
3.75
5.625
8.720

Expiration Date
February 22, 2016
March 21, 2017
June 30, 2018

(1) warrants held by an entity affiliated with the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary, James A. Barnes .
11. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
On September 27, 2010, the Company adopted its 2010 Stock Option Plan (the “2010 Plan”). The 2010 Plan authorized the grant of
options to purchase up to 600,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to directors, officers, employees and consultants. On December 29,
2011, the Company adopted, and stockholders subsequently approved, the 2012 Stock Option Plan (the “2012 Plan”) providing the Board of
Directors with authority to grant options to purchase up to 253,000 of the shares of common stock remaining available for issuance under the
2010 Plan and up to an additional 600,000 shares of common stock. Upon adoption of the 2012 Plan, no further awards could be granted under
the 2010 Plan; awards previously granted under the 2010 Plan remain outstanding in accordance with their terms. Any outstanding awards under
the 2010 Plan that expire or terminate, other than through exercise or share settlement, will also become eligible for grant under the 2012 Plan. In
August 2012, the Company’s Board of Directors approved, and stockholders subsequently approved, an amendment to the 2012 Plan,
authorizing an additional 500,000 shares of common stock for issuance under the 2012 Plan (“2012 Plan Amendment”). At September 30, 2013,
a total of 195,500 shares were available for grant under the 2012 Plan, as amended.
At September 30, 2013, the Company had outstanding options to purchase up to 25,500 shares of the Company’s common stock that were
granted outside of the 2012 Plan as an inducement grant in accordance with NASDAQ rules.
The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the estimated fair value of each option as of its grant date or any
revaluation date, and the grant date fair value is recognized as non-cash based compensation expense over the expected vesting term of options.
The inputs to the Black-Scholes option-pricing model are subjective and generally require significant analysis and judgment to develop. The
following table sets forth the significant weighted-average assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model and the calculation of stock-based
compensation cost (annualized percentages):
Years Ended September 30,
Volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Forfeiture rate
Dividend yield
Expected life in years
Weighted average fair value of options granted
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2013
87%
0.47%
4.10%
0.00%
3.28
$7.40

2012
90%
0.92%
1.10%
0.00%
4.61
$3.68

Parametric Sound Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s common stock over the period commensurate with the expected
life of the options. The risk-free interest rate is based on rates published by the Federal Reserve Board. The dividend yield of zero is based on the
fact that the Company has never paid cash dividends and has no present intention to pay cash dividends. The Company has a small number of
option grants and limited exercise history. Accordingly, for all new option grants the Company has applied the simplified method prescribed by
SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin 110, Share-Based Payment: Certain Assumptions Used in Valuation Methods - Expected Term , to estimate
expected life (computed as vesting term plus contractual term divided by two). The estimated forfeiture rate was estimated by class of employee.
Forfeitures are estimated at the time of the grant and revised in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates, or if the
Company updates its estimated forfeiture rate. Such amounts, if any, will be recorded as a cumulative adjustment in the period in which the
estimate is changed.
The Company recorded share-based compensation in its statements of operations for the relevant periods as follows:
Years Ended September 30,
Selling, general and administrative
Research and development

2013
1,727,542
378,831
2,106,373

$
$

$
$

2012
1,420,708
266,201
1,686,909

As of September 30, 2013, total estimated compensation cost relating to stock options granted but not yet vested was $1,657,603. This
cost is expected to be recognized over the weighted average period of 1.4 years.
The following table summarizes stock option activity for the period:
Number
of Shares

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

Fiscal 2012:
Outstanding October 1, 2011
Granted
Canceled/expired
Exercised
Outstanding September 30, 2012

347,000
1,054,000
(112,500)
(120,000)
1,168,500

$
$
$
$
$

1.80
4.40
4.20
1.61
3.93

Fiscal 2013:
Outstanding October 1, 2012
Granted
Canceled/expired
Exercised
Outstanding September 30, 2013 (1)
Exercisable September 30, 2013

1,168,500
305,500
(64,000)
(61,646)
1,348,354
871,897

$
$
$
$
$
$

3.93
12.23
10.55
3.77
5.51
3.98

Aggregate
Intrinsic Value (2)

$
$

9,867,480
7,516,630

(1) Options outstanding are exercisable at prices ranging from $1.50 to $16.92 and expire in 2015 to 2018.
(2) Aggregate intrinsic value is based on the closing price of our common stock on September 30, 2013 of $12.53.
The total intrinsic value of options exercised during fiscal 2013 was $480,682. Cash received from the exercise of stock options for the
year ended September 30, 2013 was $232,087.
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at September 30, 2013:

Range of
exercise prices
$1.50-$3.00
$3.01-$4.00
$4.01-$5.00
$5.01-$10.00
$10.01-$16.92

Number
outstanding at
September 30, 2013
193,500
512,354
268,500
208,000
166,000

Number
exercisable at
September 30, 2013
193,500
474,355
79,813
82,564
41,665

Weighted
Average exercise
price
$1.59
$3.26
$4.50
$9.05
$14.18

Weighted
average remaining
contractual life
2.0
3.2
3.4
4.1
4.6

Weighted average
Exercise price of
options exercisable
at September 30,
2013
$1.59
$3.26
$4.49
$8.74
$12.76

Options of Subsidiary
In February 2013, HHI adopted an equity incentive plan under which it may grant options to purchase up to 250 shares of its common
stock to HHI employees, directors and consultants. HHI has 1,000 shares of common stock issued and outstanding. In February and March 2013,
HHI granted to consultants and employees options, with a five year term, to purchase 140 shares of HHI common stock at an exercise price of
$1,000 per share including an option to purchase 50 shares of HHI common stock granted to the Company’s Executive Chairman (who also
serves as the President of HHI). These option grants are subject to a combination of performance and time-based vesting, and also contain
certain anti-dilution adjustment rights (which generally allow the option holders to maintain their percentage ownership in HHI during a threeyear period from the date of the original option grant), as well as repurchase rights and first refusal rights in favor of HHI. At September 30,
2013 options to purchase 13.75 shares issued to consultants had vested and were exercisable.
The Company used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to determine the estimated fair value of each option using a weighted average
volatility of 72%, a weighted average risk-free interest rate of 0.68%, and expected terms of 3-5 years. The Company recorded $10,108 as option
expense related to the HHI options for the period ended September 30, 2013 which expense is included in the consolidated share-based
compensation expenses summarized above.
In August 2013, in connection with the Merger (see Note 3), previously granted options on 100 shares (including the 50 shares held by the
Company’s Executive Chairman) were amended to narrow certain performance vesting conditions and to provide that the options on such 100
shares terminate upon the closing of the merger or a specified alternative acquisition. No expense was recorded for these options, as they were
not considered probable of vesting at September 30, 2013.
12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Bank and Other Cash Equivalent Deposits in Excess of FDIC Insurance Limits
The Company maintains cash and cash equivalent accounts with Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) insured financial
institutions. The FDIC insures certain of the Company’s accounts up to $250,000. The Company’s exposure for amounts in excess of FDIC
insured limits at September 30, 2013 was approximately $1.3 million. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.
Facility Lease
Commencing May 18, 2012 the Company leased approximately 6,800 square feet (increased to 9,650 square feet in July 2013) of
improved office, laboratory, assembly and warehouse space in Poway, California for a period terminating in August 2015. The gross monthly
base rent is approximately $7,070 increasing approximately 3.5% per annum subject to other certain future adjustments.
The Company has no other operating leases and the remaining future annual minimum lease payment obligation under the foregoing
facility lease is $78,415 and $80,505 for the years ending September 30, 2014 and 2015, respectively.
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Employment Agreement
In April 2012 the Company entered into a five-year employment agreement with Kenneth F. Potashner as Executive Chairman. Under the
terms of the employment agreement, the Company may be obligated to pay to Mr. Potashner severance equal to one year of his annual base
salary plus targeted bonus if his employment is terminated without cause.
Bonus Plan
On February 21, 2013, the Company adopted a cash bonus plan for the period January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013, pursuant to which
each of the Company’s executive officers and certain other officers and consultants designated by the Board of Directors are eligible to receive a
target bonus equal to a percentage of the executive officer’s or other individual’s annualized base compensation if applicable performance
objectives were met. The performance objectives are based 25% upon the Company achieving certain revenue performance targets, 25% upon
the Company achieving certain licensing targets, 25% based upon the Company achieving certain technology development targets and 25% upon
the Company or its licensees or partners achieving certain new product launch targets. The performance objectives include both objective
determinations and subjective determinations to be made by the Board of Directors. The maximum bonus percentage for each participant is 50%
of his annual base compensation, except for the Company’s Executive Chairman whose maximum bonus percentage is 60% of his annual base
compensation. The Company accrued no bonus expense at September 30, 2013.
In August 2013, in connection with the Merger (see Note 3), and as authorized under the cash bonus plan, the Board of Directors
approved, for its three executive officers, the closing of the Merger as a stand-alone performance objective eligible for the maximum bonus
payout for 2013 aggregating $453,000. The Company is also obligated to a consultant for a payment of $250,000 only upon closing which
includes a bonus for business development activities in 2013. No amount was accrued pursuant to these arrangements at September 30, 2013
pending consummation of the Merger.
Pending Merger
As more fully described in Note 3 “ Pending Merger with Turtle Beach ”, upon termination of the Merger Agreement in specified
circumstances, the Company may be required to pay to Turtle Beach a termination fee of $1,000,000 and/or enter into a license agreement with
Turtle Beach with respect to certain Company intellectual property.
Shareholder Litigation
On August 8, 2013, James Harrison, Jr., a purported shareholder of the Company, filed a class action lawsuit in the Superior Court
California, County of San Diego, under the caption Harrison v. Parametric Sound Corp. , naming the Company, the Company’s directors, Paris
Acquisition Corp. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Turtle Beach as defendants. Several other substantially similar shareholder
class action complaints were filed in the same court in August 2013. In August and September 2013, several substantially similar shareholder
class action complaints were filed in the Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County, Nevada. All complaints related to the same events and
transactions regarding the Merger, allege breaches of fiduciary duty and aiding and abetting breaches of fiduciary duty in connection therewith,
sought class action status, and demanded an order enjoining the proposed Merger and unspecified reforms, actions and disclosures. On
September 10, 2013, the California Superior Court consolidated all related cases before it under the caption In re Parametric Sound Corp.
Shareholder Litigation , Case No. 37-2013-00061953-CU-BT-CTL. On September 23, 2013, the Nevada District Court consolidated all related
cases before it under the caption In re Parametric Sound Corp. Shareholders’ Litigation , Lead Case No. A-13-686890-B, Dep’t XI. Following
the Company’s filing of a preliminary proxy statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on November 4, 2013, amended
consolidated complaints were filed on November 14, 2013 in the consolidated action pending in Nevada and on November 19, 2013 in the
consolidated action pending in California. These amended complaints reiterate the same claims and seeks the same relief as asserted and sought
in the original complaints. On November 20, 2013, Shana Vasek, a purported shareholder of the Company, filed a class action lawsuit in the
United States District Court for the District of Nevada, under the caption Vasek v. Parametric Sound Corp. , Case No. 2:13-cv-02148-JADGWF, naming the same defendants, asserting substantially the same allegations and seeking substantially the same relief as asserted and sought
in the above-referenced consolidated action pending in Nevada state court. In addition to asserting substantially the same claims for breach of
fiduciary duty and aiding and abetting as asserted in the above-referenced consolidated action pending in Nevada state court, the plaintiff in the
federal court action asserts a claim for violations of Sections 14(a) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and SEC Rule 14a-9.
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The Company is unable to predict the outcome of the lawsuits and the possible loss or range of loss, if any, associated with their
resolution or any potential effect the lawsuits may have on the Company’s operations or the pending merger. Depending on the outcome or
resolution of these lawsuits, they could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s operations, including its financial condition, results of
operations, or cash flows. Except for legal fees incurred through September 30, 2013 totaling approximately $108,000, no amounts have been
recorded or accrued related to these lawsuits as of September 30, 2013.
Guarantees and Indemnifications
Our officers and directors are indemnified as to personal liability as provided by the Nevada Revised Statutes, the Company’s articles of
incorporation and bylaws and by indemnification agreements with the Company. The Company may also undertake indemnification obligations
in the ordinary course of business related to its products and the issuance of securities with customers, investors, vendors and business parties.
The Company is unable to estimate with any reasonable accuracy the liability that may be incurred pursuant to any such indemnification
obligations now or in the future. Because of the uncertainty surrounding these circumstances, the Company’s current or future indemnification
obligations could range from immaterial to having a material adverse impact on its financial position and its ability to continue in the ordinary
course of business. The Company has no liabilities recorded for such indemnities.
13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
On December 29, 2011, the Company entered into an Assignment Agreement (“Assignment”) with Syzygy Licensing, LLC (“Syzygy”),
pursuant to which the Company acquired all technology and intellectual property covered by the License and Royalty Agreement (“License”)
dated September 27, 2010 previously entered into between the parties. The Assignment terminated the License and all future royalty obligations
owed by the Company to Syzygy thereunder. Pending patent applications comprising part of the intellectual property were also assigned to the
Company. Syzygy is owned by the Company’s President, Elwood G. Norris (65%), and by the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer
and Secretary, James A. Barnes (35%).
Under the terms of the Assignment, the Company issued 300,000 shares of its common stock to Syzygy (valued at $975,000 based on the
closing price of the common stock of $3.25) and in June 2012 paid $250,000 to Syzygy. The Company valued the technology in accordance with
ASC 350-30-30, Intangible - Goodwill and Other - General Intangibles Other than Goodwill - Initial Measurement , and ASC 805-50-30,
Business Combinations – Related Issues – Initial Measurement , which requires that intangible assets acquired through a transaction that is not a
business combination be measured based on the cash consideration paid plus either the fair value of the non-cash consideration given or the fair
value of the assets acquired, whichever is more clearly evident. As the Company had only recently begun selling products based on the acquired
technology and intellectual property in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, management determined that the fair value of the common stock issued
was more clearly evident, and accordingly, recorded the acquired intangible assets at the aggregate amount of $1,225,000. The Company
incurred $3,194 of royalties for the three months ended December 31, 2011 prior to termination of the License and owed Syzygy an aggregate of
$7,028 in royalties, which was paid in April 2012. The Company incurred $3,834 as royalties pursuant to License during the year ended
September 30, 2011.
Prior to termination of the License, the Company was obligated to reimburse Syzygy’s costs in filing for, prosecuting and maintaining the
licensed patents in the United States. The Company incurred and capitalized $2,852 and $28,237 related to such licensed patents during the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2012 (prior to termination) and 2011, respectively.
In April 2013, the Company granted an exclusive, worldwide, royalty-bearing license to use certain HSS-related intellectual property to
its wholly-owned subsidiary HHI. In July 2013, the Company entered into an amended and restated license agreement with HHI to narrow the
scope of the license such that the intellectual property and technology licensed thereunder may be used by HHI solely for, and in connection
with, the use, testing, manufacture, marketing, sale, offering for sale, commercialization, distribution and servicing of products in the medical
device field and no longer for the “personal sound amplification product” field, as initially provided. The license term runs until the expiration of
the last patent owned or licensed. HHI is required to pay royalties to the Company of (i) 15% of all cash and non-cash revenues from any source,
including net sales, of the licensed products and (ii) 30% of all cash and non-cash consideration received by HHI from third party license
agreements, joint ventures and co-development agreements. If the amount of royalties is less than $1,000,000 before the earlier to occur of (i)
April 4, 2017 and (ii) HHI’s procurement of aggregate equity based financing of $20,000,000, then HHI must pay the Company $1,000,000 in
royalties; and if the amount of royalties is less than $500,000 in any year following the fourth year of the term, then HHI must pay $500,000 in
royalties for each such year.
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On September 6, 2012, director Seth Putterman, was granted a stock option to purchase 25,000 shares of common stock for a period of
five years from shares under the 2012 Plan Amendment, exercisable at $10.24 per share vesting over three years and subject to continued
service, for future non-director technical consulting and advisory services. Any options vesting were not exercisable prior to stockholder
approval of the 2012 Plan Amendment and if not so approved by August 17, 2013 the entire option grant was by its terms null and void. The
2012 Plan Amendment was approved by stockholders on February 21, 2013. The options, vesting over three years, were valued at $162,775 on
the effective grant date of February 21, 2013 based on the market price of $9.95 per common share. During the years ended September 30, 2013
and 2012, Dr. Putterman was also paid cash consulting fees for non-director consulting services of $40,000 and $16,666, respectively.
See Notes 10, 11 and 12 for additional related party transactions and information.
14. MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major Customers
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, revenues from two customers accounted for 43% and 24% of total revenues. No other
single customer represented more than 10% of total revenues. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, revenues from three customers
accounted for 30%, 16% and 16% of total revenues. No other single customer represented more than 10% of total revenues.
Suppliers
The Company has a number of components and sub-assemblies produced by outside suppliers, some of which are sourced from a single
supplier, which can magnify the risk of shortages and decrease the Company’s ability to negotiate with suppliers on the basis of price. In
particular, the Company depends on its HSS piezo-film supplier to provide expertise and materials used in the Company’s proprietary HSS
emitters. If supplier shortages occur, or quality problems arise, then production schedules could be significantly delayed or costs significantly
increased, which could in turn have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operation and cash flows.
At September 30, 2013, the Company was committed for approximately $14,000 for future inventory deliveries that are generally subject
to modification or rescheduling in the normal course of business.
Segment and Related Information
The Company operates as a single reportable segment on an enterprise-wide basis. The Company generates revenue by selling its
technology-based products and expects future licensing revenues from such technology.
The following table summarizes revenues by geographic region. Revenues are attributed to countries based on customer location.
Years Ended September 30,
United States
Europe
Asia
Other
Total

$

$
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2013
326,429
137,110
63,435
35,928
562,902

2012
$

$

91,124
37,048
83,337
22,140
233,649

Parametric Sound Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On October 30, 2013, the Board of Directors adopted the Parametric Sound Corporation 2013 Stock-Based Incentive Compensation Plan
(“2013 Plan”), which will only become effective when and only when (i) the stockholders have approved the 2013 Plan, (ii) the stockholders
have approved the Merger and related transactions and (iii) the Merger has been consummated. The total number of shares of common stock that
are being authorized for grant under the proposed 2013 Plan is 2,250,000 shares.
Also on October 30, 2013 the Company adopted the Parametric Sound Corporation Annual Incentive Bonus Plan (“Incentive Bonus
Plan”) that will become effective when, and only when, (i) the stockholders have approved the Incentive Bonus Plan, (ii) the stockholders have
approved the Merger and related transactions and (iii) the Merger has been consummated. The proposed Incentive Bonus Plan will permit
incentive compensation bonus awards to be structured to qualify as “performance-based” compensation under Section 162(m) of the Code.
In November 2013 the Company obtained $5.1 million of gross proceeds ($5.08 million of net proceeds, after estimated expenses) from
the registered direct sale of 364,286 shares of common stock pursuant to the Company’s “shelf” registration statement.
See Note 10 and 12 for additional subsequent event information.
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Number

Description

2.1

Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated September 27 , 2010, by and between LRAD Corporation and Parametric Sound
Corporation. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 on Form 8-K dated October 1, 2010.

2.2

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated August 5, 2013, among Parametric, Merger Sub and Turtle Beach. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 on Form 8-K dated August 5, 2013. (1)

3.1

Articles of Incorporation of Parametric Sound Corporation (Nevada) dated June 2, 2010. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.1 on Form 10 dated June 24, 2010.

3.1.1

Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Parametric Sound Corporation (Nevada), dated March 21, 2012.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 on Form 8-K dated March 26, 2012.

3.2

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Parametric Sound Corporation. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2.1 on Form 10-Q
dated August 8, 2013.

4.1

Form of Common Stock Certificate of Parametric Sound Corporation. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 on Form 10/A
dated July 27, 2010.

4.2

Form of Stock Purchase Warrant, dated September 28, 2010. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 on Form 8-K dated
October 1, 2010.

4.3

Form of Stock Purchase Warrant, dated February 22, 2011. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 on Form 8-K dated
February 24, 2011.

4.4

Form of Underwriter Warrant, dated March 21, 2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 on Form 8-K dated March 26,
2012.

10.1

Tax Sharing Agreement, dated September 27 , 2010, by and between LRAD Corporation and Parametric Sound
Corporation. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 8-K dated October 1, 2010.

10.2

License and Royalty Agreement, dated September 27 , 2010, by and between Syzygy Licensing LLC and Parametric Sound
Corporation. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 on Form 8-K dated October 1, 2010.

10.3

Lease Agreement, dated July 1, 2010, by and between Syzygy Licensing LLC and Davric Corporation, as assumed by
Parametric Sound Corporation as of September 27, 2010. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 on Form 8-K dated October
1, 2010.

10.3.1

Assignment and Assumption of Lease dated September 27, 2010 between Syzygy Licensing LLC and Parametric Sound
Corporation. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3.1 on Form 8-K dated October 1, 2010.

10.4+

Parametric Sound Corporation 2010 Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 on Form 8-K dated October
1, 2010.

10.5+

Form of Stock Option Grant Notice and Stock Option Agreement under the 2010 Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.6 on Form 8-K dated October 1, 2010.

10.6

Form of Indemnification Agreement dated September 27, 2010. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 on Form 8-K dated
October 1, 2010.

10.7

Securities Purchase Agreement dated February 22, 2011. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 8-K dated
February 24, 2011.

10.8

Registration Rights Agreement dated February 22, 2011. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 on Form 8-K dated
February 24, 2011.
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10.9
10.10+

Lease Agreement between Parametric Sound Corporation and Pomerado Leasing No. 9, L.P. executed on May 11, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 on Form 8-K dated May 17, 2011.
Parametric Sound Corporation 2012 Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 8-K dated January
3, 2012.

10.10.1+

Amendment No. 1 to 2012 Stock Option Plan dated August 17, 2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11.1 on Form 10K dated November 28, 2012.

10.10.2+

Amendment No. 2 to 2012 Stock Option Plan dated August 17, 2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 10-Q
dated May 2, 2013.

10.11+

Form of Stock Option Grant Notice and Stock Option Agreement under the 2012 Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 on Form 8-K dated January 3, 2012.

10.12

Assignment Agreement between Parametric Sound Corporation and Syzygy Licensing, LLC dated December 29, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 on Form 8-K dated January 3, 2012.

10.13+

Employment Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2012, by and between Kenneth Potashner and Parametric Sound Corporation.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 8-K dated April 6, 2012.

10.14

Industrial Lease Agreement between Parametric Sound Corporation and Parkway Commerce Center, LLC executed on May 21,
2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 on Form 8-K dated May 25, 2012.

10.14.1

Second Amendment to Industrial Lease Agreement between Parametric Sound Corporation and Parkway Commerce Center,
LLC dated May 30, 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15.1 on Form 10-Q dated August 8, 2013.

10.15+

HyperSound Health, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan effective as of February 17, 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
99.2 on Form 8-K dated March 8, 2013.

10.16+

Incentive Stock Option Agreement between the HyperSound Health, Inc. and Kenneth F. Potashner dated March 5, 2013.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 on Form 8-K dated March 8, 2013.

10.16.1+

Amended and Restated Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement between HyperSound Health, Inc. and Kenneth F. Potashner
dated August 5, 2013.*

10.16.2+

Release of Claims and Other Agreements by Kenneth F. Potashner Related to Amendment and Restatement of Incentive Stock
Option Agreement Between Kenneth F. Potashner and HyperSound Health, Inc. dated August 5, 2013.*

10.17

Stockholder Agreement dated August 5, 2013 among Parametric and the Turtle Beach Stockholders. Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 99.1 on Form 8-K dated August 5, 2013.

10.18.1

Shareholder Agreement and Irrevocable Proxy, by and between VTB Holdings, Inc. and Kenneth Potashner, dated as of August
5, 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 to Form 13D filed by VTB Holdings, Inc. on August 14, 2013.

10.18.2

Shareholder Agreement and Irrevocable Proxy, by and between VTB Holdings, Inc. and James A. Barnes, dated as of August
5, 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Form 13D filed by VTB Holdings, Inc. on August 14, 2013.

10.18.3

Shareholder Agreement and Irrevocable Proxy, by and between VTB Holdings, Inc. and Elwood G. Norris, dated as of August
5, 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 5 to Form 13D filed by VTB Holdings, Inc. on August 14, 2013.

10.18.4

Shareholder Agreement and Irrevocable Proxy, by and between VTB Holdings, Inc. and EGN Holdings LLC, dated as of
August 5, 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6 to Form 13D filed by VTB Holdings, Inc. on August 14, 2013.

10.18.5

Shareholder Agreement and Irrevocable Proxy, by and between VTB Holdings, Inc. and Mt. Savage Productions LLC, dated as
of August 5, 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 7 to Form 13D filed by VTB Holdings, Inc. on August 14, 2013.
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10.18.6

Shareholder Agreement and Irrevocable Proxy, by and between VTB Holdings, Inc. and the Norris Family 1997 Trust, dated as
of August 5, 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 8 to Form 13D filed by VTB Holdings, Inc. on August 14, 2013.

10.18.7

Shareholder Agreement and Irrevocable Proxy, by and between VTB Holdings, Inc. and the Palermo Trust, dated as of August
5, 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 9 to Form 13D filed by VTB Holdings, Inc. on August 14, 2013.

10.18.8

Shareholder Agreement and Irrevocable Proxy, by and between VTB Holdings, Inc. and Sunrise Capital, Inc., dated as of
August 5, 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to Form 13D filed by VTB Holdings, Inc. on August 14, 2013.

10.18.9

Shareholder Agreement and Irrevocable Proxy, by and between VTB Holdings, Inc. and the Sunrise Management, Inc. Profit
Sharing Plan, dated as of August 5, 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 11 to Form 13D filed by VTB Holdings, Inc. on
August 14, 2013.

10.18.10

Shareholder Agreement and Irrevocable Proxy, by and between VTB Holdings, Inc. and Syzygy Licensing LLC, dated as of
August 5, 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 12 to Form 13D filed by VTB Holdings, Inc. on August 14, 2013.

10.19

Stockholder Agreement, by and among the Company and the VTBH Stockholders, dated as of August 5, 2013 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.1 on Form 8-K filed on August 5, 2013).

10.20+

Employment Letter between the Company and Todd Savitt dated July 26, 2013.*

10.21+

Summary of Oral Consulting Agreement between the Company and Seth Putterman effective in May 2012.*

14.1

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics adopted on November 19, 2010. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 on Form 8-K
dated November 23, 2010.

21.1

Subsidiaries of the Parametric Sound Corporation. *

23.1

Consent of Squar, Milner, Peterson, Miranda & Williamson, LLP. *

24.1

Power of attorney (included on signature page hereto).*

31.1

Certification of Kenneth F. Potashner pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 *

31.2

Certification of James A. Barnes pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 *

32.1

Certifications pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. This certification is being furnished solely to accompany this Annual Report
on Form 10-K and is not being filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is not
to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company.*
Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL) Exhibits*

(1)
*
+
**

101.INS

XBRL Instance Document. **

101.SCH

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema. **

101.CAL

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase. **

101.LAB

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase. **

101.PRE

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase. **

101.DEF

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase. **

Certain schedules referenced in this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. The Company will
supplementally furnish a copy of any omitted schedule and/or exhibit to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.
Filed herewith.
Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the Interactive Data Files in Exhibit 101 hereto are deemed not filed or part of a registration
statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purposes of
Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subject to liability under those sections.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Parametric Sound Corporation
By: /s/ KENNETH F. POTASHNER
Executive Chairman
Date: November 26, 2013
POWER OF ATTORNEY
Know all persons by these presents, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Kenneth F. Potashner and James A.
Barnes, and each of them, as his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in
his name, place, and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same,
with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said
attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary
to be done in connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming that all
said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them or their or his substitute or substituted, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Name

Position

Date

/s/ KENNETH F. POTASHNER
Kenneth F. Potashner

Director and Executive Chairman
(Principal Executive Officer)

November 26, 2013

/s/ JAMES A. BARNES
James A. Barnes

Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secretary
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

November 26, 2013

/s/ ELWOOD G. NORRIS
Elwood G. Norris

Director, President and Chief Scientist

November 26, 2013

/s/ ROBERT M. KAPLAN
Robert M. Kaplan

Director

November 26, 2013

/s/ ANDREW WOLFE
Andrew Wolfe

Director

November 26, 2013

/s/ JAMES L. HONORE
James L. Honore

Director

November 26, 2013
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Exhibit 10.16.1
GRANT NO. 2013-3
HYPERSOUND HEALTH, INC.
2013 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
AMENDED AND RESTATED NON-STATUTORY STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
With reference to that certain “Release Agreement” (as defined below) attached hereto as Attachment A , the Company hereby amends
and restates the Option to purchase Shares that was originally granted to the Optionee named below on March 5, 2013, and Optionee agrees to
such amended and restated terms as set forth in this Agreement (as defined below). The terms and conditions of the Option, as amended and
restated, are set forth in this cover sheet, in the attached Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement and in the Plan. This cover sheet is incorporated
into and a part of the attached Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement (together, this “ Agreement ”).
Date of Original Option Grant: March 5, 2013
Date of Amendment and Restatement of Option Grant : August 5, 2013
Name of Optionee: Kenneth F. Potashner
Number of Shares Covered by Option: 50 Shares
Exercise Price per Share: $1,000.00
Fair Market Value of a Share on Date of Option Grant: Equal to or less than $1,000.00
Expiration Date: March 5, 2018. Option will expire earlier as a result of certain events, including Optionee’s Separation From Service, as
provided in this Agreement.
Vesting Schedule: The vesting of this Option is dependent upon the timely satisfaction of the applicable conditions enumerated below which
include both time-based service vesting requirements and also performance or event based requirements. The satisfaction of the below vesting
conditions shall in each case be determined by the Parametric Sound Corporation Board of Directors ( the “Parametric Board”) in its sole and
absolute discretion.
(A) Service Vesting Condition . Subject to all the terms of this Agreement and to your continuous Service through the applicable dates
of vesting, your right to purchase Shares under this Option shall vest as to three-fourths (3/4) of the total number of Shares covered by this
Option, as shown above (or 37 Shares), over 12 calendar quarters based on time of service with 6.25% of the total number of Shares covered by
this Option vesting on June 30, 2013 and an additional 6.25% at the end of each of the next eleven calendar quarters (with the last of such
vesting occurring on March 31, 2016).
(B) FDA Milestone Vesting Condition . Subject to all the terms of this Agreement and to your continuous Service through the date the
FDA Milestone Vesting Condition (as defined below) is achieved, your right to purchase the other 25% of the total number of Shares covered by
this Option (or 13 Shares) shall vest based on performance as follows: 25% of the total number of Shares covered by this Option (or 13 Shares)
shall vest upon FDA market clearance of the first Company owned product (the “FDA Milestone Vesting Condition”) . For avoidance of doubt,
the foregoing vesting may occur before or after the time-based vesting of this Option described in paragraph (A) above.
(C) Financing Vesting Condition . Notwithstanding paragraphs (A) and (B) above, vesting of any of your rights under this Option are
also conditioned upon the Company obtaining new equity financing of at least $3 million from third parties by March 5, 2015 on terms and
conditions satisfactory to the Parametric Board (the “ Financing Vesting Condition ”).

-1-

(D) Merger Termination Vesting Condition . Notwithstanding paragraphs (A), (B) and (C) above, vesting of any of your rights under
this Option are also conditioned upon both (i) the termination of the Agreement and Plan of Merger by and Among Parametric Sound
Corporation, Paris Acquisition Corp. and VTB Holdings, Inc. dated as of August 5, 2013, as it may be amended, (as amended, if applicable,
collectively, the “ Merger Agreement ”) pursuant to Article VII thereof, or any successor provision thereto should the Merger Agreement be
amended, and (ii) the termination of all Alternative Acquisition Agreements (if applicable) as such term is defined in Section 5.5(c) of the
Merger Agreement (collectively, the “ Merger Termination Vesting Condition ”). Optionee acknowledges receipt of a draft of the Merger
Agreement and further acknowledges that he has had ample opportunity to review and understand such Merger Agreement.
(E) Release Agreement Vesting Condition . Notwithstanding paragraphs (A), (B), (C) and (D) above, vesting of any of your rights
under this Option are also conditioned upon your timely execution (and non-revocation) of the Release of Claims attached hereto as “Attachment
A” (the “ Release Agreement ”) in the event that the Merger Termination Vesting Condition is satisfied.
(F) Acceleration of Vesting . If (and only if) the vesting conditions specified in paragraphs (C), (D) and (E) above have each previously
been satisfied, the total number of then unvested Shares subject to this Option (including, for sake of clarity, those subject to the FDA Milestone
Vesting Condition), shall become fully vested upon the occurrence of either of the following: (i) your Service is terminated without Cause by the
Company or (ii) there is a Change in Control during your Service; provided, however, that (A) if the Company or its Parent solicits its
stockholders for Section 280G Approval, then any such acceleration of vesting shall be subject to obtaining Section 280G Approval as necessary
to avoid having a parachute payment within the meaning of Code Section 280G; and (B) a sale of substantially all the assets of, or the exclusive
license of substantially all the technology and technology rights of, the Company shall be deemed to be a Change in Control for purposes of this
Option. For avoidance of doubt, a transaction in which, after the consummation of the transaction, the Company continues to be a direct or
indirect subsidiary of Parametric Sound Corporation or its successors shall not be considered to be a Change in Control.
In all cases, vesting (if any) shall occur on the latest occurrence of the vesting conditions enumerated above and the resulting aggregate
number of vested Shares will be rounded down to the nearest whole number. No Shares subject to this Option will vest after your Service has
terminated for any reason.
(G) Expiration Upon Closing . Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement or otherwise including without limitation
paragraphs (A) through (F) above, this Option shall automatically expire and be terminated in its entirety with no consideration to Optionee upon
the closing (the “ Closing ”) of the merger contemplated by Section 1.2 of the Merger Agreement. For sake of clarity, no vesting of the Option
shall have occurred prior to or at the Closing and no portion of this Option may be exercised prior to or at the Closing, notwithstanding anything
else in this Agreement.
By signing this cover sheet, you agree to all of the terms and conditions described in this Agreement and in the Plan. You are also
acknowledging receipt of this Agreement and a copy of the Plan, a copy of which is also enclosed.
Optionee: /s/ KENNETH F. POTASHNER
(Signature)
Company: /s/ JAMES A. BARNES
(Signature)
Title:

James A. Barnes, Secretary

Attachment
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HYPERSOUND HEALTH, INC.
2013 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
NONSTATUTORY STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
1.

The Plan and
Other Agreements

The text of the Plan is incorporated in this Agreement by reference. Certain capitalized terms
used in this Agreement are defined in the Plan.
This Agreement and the Plan constitute the entire understanding between you and the Company
regarding this Option. Any prior agreements, commitments or negotiations concerning this
Option are superseded.

2.

Nonstatutory Stock Option

This Option is not intended to be an Incentive Stock Option under section 422 of the Code and
will be interpreted accordingly.
This Option is not intended to be deferred compensation under section 409A of the Code and
will be interpreted accordingly.

3.

Vesting

This Option is only exercisable before it expires and only with respect to the vested portion of
the Option. This Option will vest according to the Vesting Schedule described in the cover sheet
of this Agreement.

4.

Term

Your Option will expire in all cases no later than the close of business at Company headquarters
on the Expiration Date, as shown on the cover sheet. Your Option may expire earlier as
described above in the Vesting Schedule section or if your Service terminates, as described in
Sections 5, 6 and 7 below or on the date on which the Option is cancelled (and not substituted or
assumed) pursuant to a Change in Control or merger or acquisition or reorganization or similar
transaction involving the Company. You are solely responsible for determining whether and
when to exercise any vested portion of this Option and also for keeping track of when your
Option expires and when it therefore can no longer be exercised. The Company has no
obligation (and does not intend) to provide you with any further notice of your Option’s
expiration dates. The Company will have no liability to you or to any other person if all or any
portion of your Option is not exercised before it expires for any reason. For avoidance of doubt,
upon any termination or expiration of this Option, the Anti-dilution Right (described in Section
23 below) shall also concurrently terminate and expire.

5.

Termination of Service General

If, while the Option is outstanding, your Service terminates for any reason, other than being
terminated by the Company for Cause or due to your death or Disability, then the unvested
portion of your Option shall be forfeited without consideration and shall immediately expire on
your Termination Date and the vested portion of your Option will expire at the earlier of (i) the
close of business at Company headquarters on the date that is three (3) months after your
Termination Date, (ii) the Expiration Date set forth in the attached cover sheet and further
described in Section 4 above, or (iii) the date on which the Option is cancelled (and not
substituted or assumed) pursuant to a Change in Control or merger or acquisition or
reorganization or similar transaction involving the Company. In no event is the Option
exercisable after the Expiration Date.
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6.

Termination of Service for
Cause

If your Service is terminated by the Company for Cause or if you commit an act(s) of Cause
while this Option is outstanding, as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion, then you
shall immediately forfeit all rights to the unvested portion of your Option without consideration
and such portion of the Option shall immediately expire, and any rights, payments and benefits
with respect to the Option shall be subject to reduction or recoupment in accordance with the
Clawback Policy and the Plan. The vested portion of your Option as of the date of such events
will expire at the earliest of (i) the close of business at Company headquarters on the date that is
one (1) month after your Termination Date, (ii) the Expiration Date set forth in the attached
cover sheet and further described in Section 4 above, and (iii) the date on which the Option is
cancelled (and not substituted or assumed) pursuant to a Change in Control or merger or
acquisition or reorganization or similar transaction involving the Company. In no event is the
Option exercisable after the Expiration Date.

7.

Termination of Service due
to Death or Disability

If your Service terminates because of your death or Disability, then the unvested portion of your
Option shall be forfeited without consideration and shall immediately expire on your
Termination Date and the vested portion of your Option will expire at the earlier of (i) the close
of business at Company headquarters on the date that is six (6) months after your Termination
Date, (ii) the Expiration Date set forth in the attached cover sheet and further described in
Section 4 above, or (iii) the date on which the Option is cancelled (and not substituted or
assumed) pursuant to a Change in Control or merger or acquisition or similar transaction
involving the Company. In no event is the Option exercisable after the Expiration Date. If your
Service terminated due to your death, then your estate may exercise the vested portion of your
Option during the foregoing post-Service exercise period.

8.

Leaves of Absence

For purposes of this Option, your Service does not terminate when you go on a bona fide leave
of absence that was approved by the Company in writing, if the terms of the leave provide for
continued Service crediting, or when continued Service crediting is required by applicable law.
Your Service terminates in any event when the approved leave ends unless you immediately
return to active work.
The Company determines which leaves count for this purpose (along with determining the effect
of a leave of absence on vesting of the Option), and when your Service terminates for all
purposes under the Plan.

9.

Notice of Exercise

When you wish to exercise this Option, you must notify the Company by filing a “Notice of
Exercise” form at the address given on the form. Your notice must specify how many Shares you
wish to purchase. Your notice must also specify how your Shares should be registered (in your
name only or in your and your spouse’s names as community property or as joint tenants with
right of survivorship). The notice can only become effective after it is received by the Company.
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If someone else wants to exercise this Option after your death, that person must prove to the
Company’s satisfaction that he or she is entitled to do so.
10.

Form of Payment

When you submit your notice of exercise, you must include payment of the aggregate Exercise
Price for the Shares you are purchasing. Payment may be made in one (or a combination) of the
following forms:
•

Cash, your personal check, a cashier’s check or a money order.

•

Shares which have already been owned by you for more than six (6) months (or such other
duration of time determined by the Company) and which are surrendered to the Company.
The Fair Market Value of the Shares, determined as of the effective date of the Option
exercise, will be applied to the Exercise Price.

Solely upon an exercise of this Option on the date of a Change in Control, by Net Exercise. In
addition, to the extent approved by the Committee in its discretion, payment of the Exercise
Price may be made by Net Exercise if this Option is exercised on a date other than the date of
Change in Control.
To the extent a public market for the Shares exists as determined by the Company, by Cashless
Exercise through delivery (on a form prescribed by the Company) of an irrevocable direction to a
securities broker to sell Shares and to deliver all or part of the sale proceeds to the Company in
payment of the aggregate Exercise Price.
To the extent approved by the Committee in its discretion and with all terms and conditions
determined by the Committee, payment may be made in another form of legal consideration
acceptable to the Committee. Such other forms may include, without limitation, stock attestation
or a Company provided loan.
11.

Withholding Taxes

You will be solely responsible for payment of any and all applicable taxes associated with this
Option.
You will not be allowed to exercise this Option unless you make acceptable arrangements to pay
any withholding or other taxes that may be due as a result of the Option exercise or sale of
Shares acquired under this Option.
Upon an exercise of this Option on the date of a Change in Control, such withholding taxes may
be settled by Net Exercise.
To the extent a public market for the Shares exists as determined by the Company, such
withholding taxes may be settled by Cashless Exercise through delivery (on a form prescribed by
the Company) of an irrevocable direction to a securities broker to sell Shares and to deliver all or
part of the sale proceeds to the Company in payment of the withholding taxes.
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To the extent approved by the Committee in its discretion and with all terms and conditions
determined by the Committee, payment of withholding taxes may be made in another form of
legal consideration acceptable to the Committee. Such other forms may include, without
limitation, Net Exercise, surrender of Shares previously owned by you, a Company provided
loan, or withholding from other compensation paid to you by the Company.
12.

Restrictions on Exercise and
Resale

By signing this Agreement, you agree not to (i) exercise this Option (“Exercise Prohibition”), or
(ii) sell, transfer, dispose of, pledge, hypothecate, make any short sale of, or otherwise effect a
similar transaction of any Shares acquired under this Option (each a “Sale Prohibition”) at a time
when applicable laws, regulations or Company or underwriter trading policies prohibit the
exercise or disposition of Shares. The Company will not permit you to exercise this Option if the
issuance of Shares at that time would violate any law or regulation. The Company shall have the
right to designate one or more periods of time, each of which generally will not exceed one
hundred eighty (180) days in length (provided however, that such period may be extended in
connection with the Company’s release (or announcement of release) of earnings results or other
material news or events), and to impose an Exercise Prohibition and/or Sale Prohibition, if the
Company determines (in its sole discretion) that such limitation(s) is needed in connection with a
public offering of Shares or to comply with an underwriter’s request or trading policy, or could
in any way facilitate a lessening of any restriction on transfer pursuant to the Securities Act or
any state securities laws with respect to any issuance of securities by the Company, facilitate the
registration or qualification of any securities by the Company under the Securities Act or any
state securities laws, or facilitate the perfection of any exemption from the registration or
qualification requirements of the Securities Act or any applicable state securities laws for the
issuance or transfer of any securities. The Company may issue stop/transfer instructions and/or
appropriately legend any stock certificates issued pursuant to this Option in order to ensure
compliance with the foregoing. Any such Exercise Prohibition shall not alter the vesting
schedule set forth in this Agreement other than to limit the periods during which this Option shall
be exercisable.
If the sale of Shares under the Plan is not registered under the Securities Act, but an exemption is
available which requires an investment or other representation, you shall represent and agree at
the time of exercise that the Shares being acquired upon exercise of this Option are being
acquired for investment, and not with a view to the sale or distribution thereof, and shall make
such other representations as are deemed necessary or appropriate by the Company and its
counsel.
You may also be required, as a condition of exercise of this Option, to enter into any
Stockholders Agreement or other agreements that are applicable to stockholders. In the event of
any conflict in terms between the Stockholders Agreement and this Agreement, the terms of the
Stockholders Agreement shall prevail and govern.
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13.

The Company’s
Right of First Refusal

In the event that you propose to sell, pledge or otherwise transfer to a third party any Shares
acquired under this Agreement, or any interest in such Shares, the Company shall have the
“Right of First Refusal” with respect to all (and not less than all) of such Shares. If you desire to
transfer Shares acquired under this Agreement, you must give a written “Transfer Notice” to the
Company describing fully the proposed transfer, including the number of Shares proposed to be
transferred, the proposed transfer price and the name and address of the proposed transferee.
The Transfer Notice shall be signed both by you and by the proposed new transferee and must
constitute a binding commitment of both parties to the transfer of the Shares. The Company
shall have the right to purchase all, and not less than all, of the Shares on the terms of the
proposal described in the Transfer Notice (subject, however, to any change in such terms
permitted in the next paragraph) by delivery of a notice of exercise of the Right of First Refusal
within thirty (30) days after the date when the Transfer Notice was received by the
Company. The Company’s rights under this subsection shall be freely assignable, in whole or in
part.
If the Company fails to exercise its Right of First Refusal within thirty (30) days after the date
when it received the Transfer Notice, you may, not later than ninety (90) days following receipt
of the Transfer Notice by the Company, conclude a transfer of the Shares subject to the Transfer
Notice on the terms and conditions described in the Transfer Notice. Any proposed transfer on
terms and conditions different from those described in the Transfer Notice, as well as any
subsequent proposed transfer by you, shall again be subject to the Right of First Refusal and
shall require compliance with the procedure described in the paragraph above. If the Company
exercises its Right of First Refusal, the parties shall consummate the sale of the Shares on the
terms set forth in the Transfer Notice within sixty (60) days after the date when the Company
received the Transfer Notice (or within such longer period as may have been specified in the
Transfer Notice); provided, however, that in the event the Transfer Notice provided that payment
for the Shares was to be made in a form other than lawful money paid at the time of transfer, the
Company shall have the option of paying for the Shares with lawful money equal to the present
value of the consideration described in the Transfer Notice.
The Company’s Right of First Refusal shall inure to the benefit of its successors and assigns and
shall be binding upon any transferee of the Shares.
The Company’s Right of First Refusal shall terminate in the event that Shares are listed on an
established stock exchange or are quoted regularly on the OTC Bulletin Board.
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14.

Right of Repurchase

Following your Termination Date after termination of your Service for any reason, the Company
shall have the right to purchase all of those Shares that you have or will acquire under this
Option.
If your Service is terminated by the Company for Cause, and if the Company exercises its right
to purchase such Shares, the purchase price shall be the Fair Market Value of those Shares on the
date of purchase as determined by a mutually agreed third party and shall be paid in cash. The
Company will notify you of its intention to purchase such Shares, and will consummate the
purchase within any time period established by applicable law.
For any other termination of Service, then on the first anniversary date of such termination, the
Company shall have the right to purchase all or a portion of such Shares, and if such right is not
exercised, you shall have the right to require the Company to purchase all or a portion of such
Shares, in each case, at price equal to the Fair Market Value of those Shares on such date as
determined by a mutually agreed third party. If the Company purchases all or a portion of such
Shares, the price shall be paid in cash. If you require the Company to purchase all or a portion of
such Shares, then the price shall be paid in three equal annual installments with the first payment
due within 30 days of such price determination.
The Company’s right of repurchase shall inure to the benefit of its successors and assigns and
shall be binding upon any transferee of the Shares. The Company’s rights under this subsection
shall be freely assignable, in whole or in part. The Company’s right of repurchase shall terminate
in the event that the Shares are listed on an established stock exchange or are quoted regularly on
the OTC Bulletin Board.

15.

Transfer of Option

Prior to your death, only you may exercise this Option. You cannot gift, transfer, assign,
alienate, pledge, hypothecate, attach, sell, or encumber this Option or subject it to any short
position, Call Equivalent Position or Put Equivalent Position. If you attempt to do any of these
things, this Option will immediately become invalid. You may, however, dispose of this Option
in your will or it may be transferred by the laws of descent and distribution. Regardless of any
marital property settlement agreement, the Company is not obligated to honor a notice of
exercise from your spouse, nor is the Company obligated to recognize your spouse’s interest in
your Option in any other way.

16.

Retention Rights

Your Option or this Agreement does not give you the right to be retained by the Company (or
any Parent or any Subsidiaries or Affiliates) in any capacity. The Company (or any Parent and
any Subsidiaries or Affiliates) reserves the right to terminate your Service at any time and for
any reason.
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This Option and the Shares subject to the Option are not intended to constitute or replace any
pension rights or compensation and are not to be considered compensation of a continuing or
recurring nature, or part of your normal or expected compensation, and in no way represent any
portion of your salary, compensation or other remuneration for any purpose, including but not
limited to, calculating any severance, resignation, termination, redundancy, dismissal, end of
service payments, bonuses, long-service awards, pension or retirement benefits or similar
payments.
17.

Stockholder Rights

You, or your estate, shall have no rights as a stockholder of the Company with regard to the
Option until you have been issued the applicable Shares by the Company and have satisfied all
other conditions specified in Section 4(f) of the Plan. No adjustment shall be made for cash or
stock dividends or other rights for which the record date is prior to the date when such applicable
Shares are issued, except as provided in the Plan.

18.

Adjustments

In the event of a stock split, a stock dividend or a similar change in the Company stock, the
number of Shares covered by this Option (rounded down to the nearest whole number) and the
Exercise Price per Share may be adjusted pursuant to the Plan. Your Option shall be subject to
the terms of the agreement of merger, liquidation or reorganization in the event the Company is
subject to such corporate activity.

19.

Legends

All certificates representing the Shares issued under this Award (if any) may, where applicable,
have endorsed thereon the following legends and any other legends the Company determines
appropriate:
“THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN
RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER AND OPTIONS TO PURCHASE SUCH SHARES SET
FORTH IN AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND THE REGISTERED
HOLDER, OR HIS OR HER PREDECESSOR IN INTEREST. A COPY OF SUCH
AGREEMENT IS ON FILE AT THE PRINCIPAL OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AND WILL
BE FURNISHED UPON WRITTEN REQUEST TO THE SECRETARY OF THE COMPANY
BY THE HOLDER OF RECORD OF THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THIS
CERTIFICATE.”
“THE SHARES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND MAY NOT BE SOLD, PLEDGED, OR
OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED WITHOUT AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION THEREOF
UNDER SUCH ACT OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, SATISFACTORY TO THE
COMPANY AND ITS COUNSEL, THAT SUCH REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED.”
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20.

Notice

Any notice to be given or delivered to the Company relating to this Agreement shall be in
writing and addressed to the Company at its principal corporate offices. Any notice to be given
or delivered to you relating to this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed to you at such
address of which you advise the Company in writing. All notices shall be deemed effective upon
personal delivery or upon deposit in the U.S. mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed to the
party to be notified.

21.

Applicable Law

This Agreement will be interpreted and enforced under the laws of the State of Delaware without
reference to the conflicts of law provisions thereof.

22.

Voluntary Participant

You acknowledge that you are voluntarily participating in the Plan.

23.

No Rights to Future Awards
Except as Provided Herein

Your rights, if any, in respect of or in connection with this Option or any other Awards are
derived solely from the discretionary decision of the Company (or any Parent) to permit you to
participate in the Plan and to benefit from a discretionary future Award. By accepting this
Option, you expressly acknowledge that there is no obligation on the part of the Company (or
any Parent) to continue the Plan and/or grant any additional Awards (other than provided in the
following paragraph) to you or benefits in lieu of Options or any other Awards even if Awards
have been granted repeatedly in the past. All decisions with respect to future Awards, if any, will
be at the sole discretion of the Committee.
Subject to the immediately following paragraph, if the Company issues additional equity
securities other than pursuant to the Plan, including securities convertible into or exercisable for
equity securities, during the earlier of (i) three years from the original date of grant of this Option
and (ii) the date the Company receives a second round of equity financing from third parties of
any dollar amount, then it shall grant additional options with comparable vesting and
substantially the same terms (other than the Exercise Price per Share of this Option) to you such
that your percentage ownership in the Company on an as-converted and fully-diluted basis
(excluding all Awards issued pursuant to the Plan) shall remain the same following such
additional equity issuance as was the case immediately prior to such additional equity issuance
(the “ Anti-dilution Right ”). Any options granted pursuant to the Anti-dilution Right will be
granted at an exercise price equal to Fair Market Value at the date of each such issuance of
additional equity securities and otherwise in accordance with the provisions of the Plan.
The Company shall not be required to grant additional options pursuant to the Anti-dilution
Right, and you shall have no right to be granted any such options, to the extent that the number
of Shares that would be subject to the options that would otherwise be required to be granted
pursuant to the Anti-dilution Right, plus the total number of Shares issuable pursuant to all then
outstanding Awards (vested and unvested) would exceed the then remaining available Shares
pursuant to the then existing Plan Share Limit. Subject to the preceding sentence, in the event
that (1) any other Awards granted under the Plan contain a right similar to the Anti-dilution
Right and (2) the Plan Share Limit would be exceeded if you and the holders of such similar
rights were each granted the full number of options pursuant to such rights, the number of
options permitted to be granted up to the Plan Share Limit shall be granted to all those holding
such rights in proportion to the relative number of options that they otherwise would have been
granted were it not for the Plan Share Limit. All determinations regarding the Anti-dilution Right
and adjustments shall be made by the Committee.
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24.

Future Value

The future value of the underlying Shares is unknown and cannot be predicted with certainty. If
the underlying Shares do not increase in value after the Date of Option Grant, the Option will
have little or no value. If you exercise the Option and obtain Shares, the value of the Shares
acquired upon exercise may increase or decrease in value, even below the Exercise Price.

25.

No Advice Regarding Grant

The Company has not provided any tax, legal or financial advice, nor has the Company made
any recommendations regarding your participation in the Plan, or your acquisition or sale of the
underlying Shares. You are hereby advised to consult with your own personal tax, legal and
financial advisors regarding your participation in the Plan before taking any action related to the
Plan.

26.

No Right to Damages

You will have no right to bring a claim or to receive damages if any portion of the Option is
cancelled or expires unexercised. The loss of existing or potential profit in the Option will not
constitute an element of damages in the event of the termination of your Service for any reason,
even if the termination is in violation of an obligation of the Company or a Parent or a Subsidiary
or an Affiliate to you.
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27.

Data Privacy

You hereby explicitly and unambiguously consent to the collection, use and transfer, in
electronic or other form, of your personal data as described in this document by the Company for
the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing your participation in the
Plan. You understand that the Company holds certain personal information about you, including,
but not limited to, name, home address and telephone number, date of birth, social security or
insurance number or other identification number, salary, nationality, job title, any shares of stock
or directorships held in the Company, details of all Awards or any other entitlement to Shares
awarded, cancelled, purchased, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding in your favor for the
purpose of implementing, managing and administering the Plan (“Data”). You understand that
the Data may be transferred to any third parties assisting in the implementation, administration
and management of the Plan, that these recipients may be located in your country or elsewhere
and that the recipient country may have different data privacy laws and protections than your
country. You authorize the recipients to receive, possess, use, retain and transfer the Data, in
electronic or other form, for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing your
participation in the Plan, including any requisite transfer of such Data, as may be required to a
broker or other third party with whom you may elect to deposit any Shares acquired under the
Plan.

By signing the cover sheet of this Agreement, you agree to all of the terms and conditions described above and in the Plan. Any inconsistency
between this Agreement and the Plan shall be resolved by reference to the Plan.

- 12 -

HYPERSOUND HEALTH, INC.
NOTICE OF EXERCISE OF NONSTATUTORY STOCK OPTION BY OPTIONEE
HyperSound Health, Inc.
13771 Danielson Street, Ste. L
Poway, California 92064
Attention: Secretary
Re: Exercise of Nonstatutory Stock Option to Purchase Shares of Company Stock

[PRINT NAME OF OPTIONEE]
Pursuant to the Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement dated ___________________, ______ between HyperSound Health, Inc., a
Delaware corporation, (the “Company”) and me, made pursuant to the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), I hereby request to purchase
_______ Shares (whole number only and must be not less than twenty-five Shares or the remaining number of vested Shares subject to this
Option) of common stock of the Company (the “Shares”), at the exercise price of $__________ per Share. I am hereby making full payment of
the aggregate exercise price by one or more of the following forms of payment in accordance with the whole number percentages that I have
provided below. I further understand and agree that I will timely satisfy any and all applicable tax withholding obligations as a condition of this
Option exercise.
Percentage
of Payment

Form of Payment As Provided In the Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement

________

%

Cash/My Personal Check/Cashier’s Check/Money Order (payable to “HyperSound Health, Inc.”)

________
100%

%

Surrender of vested Shares (Valued At Their Fair Market Value) Owned
By Me For More Than Six (6) Months

Check one:

 The Shares certificate is to be issued and registered in my name only.
 The Shares certificate is to be issued and registered in my name and my spouse’s
name.
[PRINT SPOUSE’S NAME, IF CHECKING SECOND BOX]
Check one (if checked second box above):


Community Property or 

Joint Tenants With Right of Survivorship

I acknowledge that I have received, understand and continue to be bound by all of the terms and conditions set forth in the Plan and in
the Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement.
Dated: __________________

(Optionee’s Signature)

(Spouse’s Signature)**
**Spouse must sign this Notice of Exercise if listed above.

(Full Address)

(Full Address)

* THIS NOTICE OF EXERCISE MAY BE REVISED BY THE COMPANY AT ANY TIME WITHOUT NOTICE.
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ATTACHMENT A
RELEASE OF CLAIMS
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Release of Claims and Other Agreements by Kenneth F. Potashner Related to Amendment and Restatement of Incentive Stock Option
Agreement between Kenneth F. Potashner and HyperSound Health, Inc.
This Release of Claims is made in connection with the Agreement and Plan of Merger by and Among Parametric Sound
Corporation (“ Parametric ”), Paris Acquisition Corp. and VTB Holdings, Inc. of even date herewith, as it may be amended, (as amended if
applicable, the “ Merger Agreement ”). Kenneth F. Potashner (“ Potashner ”) acknowledges receipt of a draft of the Merger Agreement in
advance of this Release of Claims and further acknowledges that he has had ample opportunity to review and understand such Merger
Agreement.
Potashner was granted, on March 5, 2013, options with regard to the purchase of 50 shares of stock in HyperSound Health,
Inc. (“ Potashner HHI Stock Option Agreement ”). The Potashner HHI Stock Option Agreement has been amended and restated as set forth in
the Amended and Restated Incentive Stock Option Agreement of even date herewith (“ Potashner Restated Option Agreement ”). Potashner is
executing this Release of Claims concurrent with his execution of the Potashner Restated Stock Option Agreement. If Potashner revokes or
attempts to revoke this Release of Claims at or before the closing of the Merger Agreement, or, if Parametric consummates an Alternative
Transaction (defined below) and Potashner revokes or attempts to revoke this Release of Claims at or before the closing of the Alternative
Transaction, then Potashner will be fully liable to Parametric for any consequential, indirect, or direct damages suffered by Parametric relating in
any way to Potashner’s revocation of this Release of Claims, including, but not limited to attorneys’ fees and expenses.
In exchange for the payment of $100.00 and other good and valuable consideration, Potashner, on behalf of himself, his
executors, heirs, administrators, and any related or affiliated corporations, partnerships, or entities, including any officers, directors, partners,
employees, shareholders, subsidiaries, agents, representatives, attorneys, assigns, predecessors and successors-in-interest, and all others claiming
by or through Potashner, hereby releases and forever discharges (1) Parametric, a Nevada corporation, and its parents, subsidiaries, related
entities, and affiliates, including but not limited to HyperSound Health, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its parents, subsidiaries, related
entities, and affiliates, and the directors, officers, shareholders, employees, attorneys, agents, assigns, representatives, insurers, predecessors and
successors-in-interest of said corporations and entities, and each of them; and (2) VTB Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“ VTBH ”), and
its parents, subsidiaries, related entities, and affiliates, and the directors, officers, shareholders, employees, attorneys, agents, assigns,
representatives, insurers, predecessors and successors-in-interest of said corporations and entities, and each of them (collectively, the "
Parametric and VTBH Released Parties "), from any and all obligations, liabilities, demands, costs, expenses, damages, claims, actions and
causes of action, of whatever nature, character or description, known or unknown (collectively, “ Potashner Claims ”), that Potashner has or
may have against the Parametric and VTBH Released Parties, or any of them, arising at any time up to and including the date Potashner executes
this Release of Claims, with the exception of (1) claims under Potashner’s Employment Agreement with Parametric dated April 3, 2012, (2)
claims pursuant to directors’ and officers’ indemnification agreements, (3) any rights of indemnification under Parametric’s by-laws or other
corporate formation documents, (4) any statutory claims for age discrimination, (5) counterclaims or cross-claims by Potashner against a director
or officer of Parametric in their individual capacity, if such director or officer initiates litigation against Potashner in his or her individual
capacity in order to assert claims against Potashner for damages suffered by him or her personally, (6) claims pursuant to the Parametric 2012
Stock Option Plan, grants, and agreements, and (7) claims pursuant to Parametric’s directors’ and officers’ insurance policies.
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Without limitation to the forgoing and for sake of clarity, the above release and discharge of Potashner Claims is intended to
include Potashner Claims based upon, related to, or arising from the modification of the Potashner HHI Stock Option Agreement as set forth in
the Potashner Restated Option Agreement.
Furthermore, it is understood and agreed that any and all rights granted to Potashner under California Civil Code Section 1542
are hereby expressly waived. California Civil Code Section 1542 reads as follows:
Section 1542. Certain claims not affected by general release. A general release does not extend to claims
which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of executing the release,
which if known by him or her must have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.
Potashner waives and releases any right or benefit which Potashner has or may have under California Civil Code Section 1542 to the full extent
he may lawfully waive all such rights and benefits and acknowledges and agrees that Potashner shall be considered to be a creditor of the
Parametric and VTBH Released Parties for the purposes of California Civil Code Section 1542. In connection with such waiver and
relinquishment, Potashner acknowledges and is aware that he may hereafter discover claims or facts in addition to or different from those which
he now knows or believes to be true with respect to any and all claims, of whatever nature, character or description, known or unknown,
including but not limited to claims based upon, related to, or arising directly or indirectly from the modification of the Potashner HHI Stock
Option Agreement as set forth in the Potashner Restated Option Agreement, which do now exist, may exist, or heretofore have existed between
Potashner, on the one hand, and the Parametric and VTBH Released Parties, on the other hand. In furtherance of such intention, the releases
given here shall be and remain in effect as full and complete releases of such released items, notwithstanding the discovery or existence of any
such additional or different claims or facts relating thereto.
In exchange for the consideration recited above, Potashner also agrees to execute, at or before the closing of the Merger
Agreement and promptly upon request by Parametric (including a request by the Board of Directors of Parametric) , a Final Release of Claims, a
copy of which is attached hereto as “ Attachment A ” (the “ Final Release of Claims ”). If Potashner fails to sign the Final Release of Claims as
specified above, or signs the Final Release of Claims and then revokes or attempts to revoke it prior to or at the closing of the Merger
Agreement, then Potashner will be fully liable to Parametric for any consequential, indirect, or direct damages suffered by Parametric relating in
any way to Potashner’s failure to sign the Final Release of Claims or his revocation of same, including, but not limited to attorney fees and
expenses.
In exchange for the consideration recited above, Potashner also agrees that, if Parametric consummates a transaction with
another party having entered into an “Alternative Acquisition Agreement” with such party as that term is defined in Section 5.5(c) of the Merger
Agreement (“ Alternative Transaction ”), Potashner will execute, at or before the closing of the Alternative Transaction and promptly upon
request by Parametric (including a request by the Board of Directors of Parametric) , a similar form of release of claims with regard to the party
to the Alternative Transaction (the “ Alternative Transaction Final Release ”) and if Potashner fails to do so, or signs the Alternative
Transaction Final Release and then revokes or attempts to revoke it prior to or at the closing of the Alternative Transaction, then Potashner will
be fully liable to Parametric for any consequential, indirect, or direct damages suffered by Parametric relating in any way to Potashner’s failure
to sign the Alternative Transaction Final Release or his revocation of same, including, but not limited to attorney fees and expenses.
Potashner acknowledges and agrees that he has been provided the opportunity to review this Release of Claims and consult
with counsel of his choice prior to executing it. Potashner acknowledges and agrees that this Release of Claims remains in effect regardless of
whether the Merger Agreement or an Alternative Transaction is signed or closes. Potashner acknowledges and agrees that he will not seek to
revoke, modify, or restrict this Release of Claims.
Dated: 8/5 , 2013

By: /s/ KENNETH F. POTASHNER
Kenneth F. Potashner
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Exhibit 10.16.2
Release of Claims and Other Agreements by Kenneth F. Potashner Related to Amendment and Restatement of Incentive Stock Option
Agreement between Kenneth F. Potashner and HyperSound Health, Inc.
This Release of Claims is made in connection with the Agreement and Plan of Merger by and Among Parametric Sound
Corporation (“ Parametric ”), Paris Acquisition Corp. and VTB Holdings, Inc. of even date herewith, as it may be amended, (as amended if
applicable, the “ Merger Agreement ”). Kenneth F. Potashner (“ Potashner ”) acknowledges receipt of a draft of the Merger Agreement in
advance of this Release of Claims and further acknowledges that he has had ample opportunity to review and understand such Merger
Agreement.
Potashner was granted, on March 5, 2013, options with regard to the purchase of 50 shares of stock in HyperSound Health,
Inc. (“ Potashner HHI Stock Option Agreement ”). The Potashner HHI Stock Option Agreement has been amended and restated as set forth in
the Amended and Restated Incentive Stock Option Agreement of even date herewith (“ Potashner Restated Option Agreement ”). Potashner is
executing this Release of Claims concurrent with his execution of the Potashner Restated Stock Option Agreement. If Potashner revokes or
attempts to revoke this Release of Claims at or before the closing of the Merger Agreement, or, if Parametric consummates an Alternative
Transaction (defined below) and Potashner revokes or attempts to revoke this Release of Claims at or before the closing of the Alternative
Transaction, then Potashner will be fully liable to Parametric for any consequential, indirect, or direct damages suffered by Parametric relating in
any way to Potashner’s revocation of this Release of Claims, including, but not limited to attorneys’ fees and expenses.
In exchange for the payment of $100.00 and other good and valuable consideration, Potashner, on behalf of himself, his
executors, heirs, administrators, and any related or affiliated corporations, partnerships, or entities, including any officers, directors, partners,
employees, shareholders, subsidiaries, agents, representatives, attorneys, assigns, predecessors and successors-in-interest, and all others claiming
by or through Potashner, hereby releases and forever discharges (1) Parametric, a Nevada corporation, and its parents, subsidiaries, related
entities, and affiliates, including but not limited to HyperSound Health, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its parents, subsidiaries, related
entities, and affiliates, and the directors, officers, shareholders, employees, attorneys, agents, assigns, representatives, insurers, predecessors and
successors-in-interest of said corporations and entities, and each of them; and (2) VTB Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“ VTBH ”), and
its parents, subsidiaries, related entities, and affiliates, and the directors, officers, shareholders, employees, attorneys, agents, assigns,
representatives, insurers, predecessors and successors-in-interest of said corporations and entities, and each of them (collectively, the "
Parametric and VTBH Released Parties "), from any and all obligations, liabilities, demands, costs, expenses, damages, claims, actions and
causes of action, of whatever nature, character or description, known or unknown (collectively, “ Potashner Claims ”), that Potashner has or
may have against the Parametric and VTBH Released Parties, or any of them, arising at any time up to and including the date Potashner executes
this Release of Claims, with the exception of (1) claims under Potashner’s Employment Agreement with Parametric dated April 3, 2012, (2)
claims pursuant to directors’ and officers’ indemnification agreements, (3) any rights of indemnification under Parametric’s by-laws or other
corporate formation documents, (4) any statutory claims for age discrimination, (5) counterclaims or cross-claims by Potashner against a director
or officer of Parametric in their individual capacity, if such director or officer initiates litigation against Potashner in his or her individual
capacity in order to assert claims against Potashner for damages suffered by him or her personally, (6) claims pursuant to the Parametric 2012
Stock Option Plan, grants, and agreements, and (7) claims pursuant to Parametric’s directors’ and officers’ insurance policies.
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Without limitation to the forgoing and for sake of clarity, the above release and discharge of Potashner Claims is intended to
include Potashner Claims based upon, related to, or arising from the modification of the Potashner HHI Stock Option Agreement as set forth in
the Potashner Restated Option Agreement.
Furthermore, it is understood and agreed that any and all rights granted to Potashner under California Civil Code Section 1542
are hereby expressly waived. California Civil Code Section 1542 reads as follows:
Section 1542. Certain claims not affected by general release. A general release does not extend to claims
which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of executing the release,
which if known by him or her must have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.
Potashner waives and releases any right or benefit which Potashner has or may have under California Civil Code Section 1542 to the full extent
he may lawfully waive all such rights and benefits and acknowledges and agrees that Potashner shall be considered to be a creditor of the
Parametric and VTBH Released Parties for the purposes of California Civil Code Section 1542. In connection with such waiver and
relinquishment, Potashner acknowledges and is aware that he may hereafter discover claims or facts in addition to or different from those which
he now knows or believes to be true with respect to any and all claims, of whatever nature, character or description, known or unknown,
including but not limited to claims based upon, related to, or arising directly or indirectly from the modification of the Potashner HHI Stock
Option Agreement as set forth in the Potashner Restated Option Agreement, which do now exist, may exist, or heretofore have existed between
Potashner, on the one hand, and the Parametric and VTBH Released Parties, on the other hand. In furtherance of such intention, the releases
given here shall be and remain in effect as full and complete releases of such released items, notwithstanding the discovery or existence of any
such additional or different claims or facts relating thereto.
In exchange for the consideration recited above, Potashner also agrees to execute, at or before the closing of the Merger
Agreement and promptly upon request by Parametric (including a request by the Board of Directors of Parametric) , a Final Release of Claims, a
copy of which is attached hereto as “ Attachment A ” (the “ Final Release of Claims ”). If Potashner fails to sign the Final Release of Claims as
specified above, or signs the Final Release of Claims and then revokes or attempts to revoke it prior to or at the closing of the Merger
Agreement, then Potashner will be fully liable to Parametric for any consequential, indirect, or direct damages suffered by Parametric relating in
any way to Potashner’s failure to sign the Final Release of Claims or his revocation of same, including, but not limited to attorney fees and
expenses.
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In exchange for the consideration recited above, Potashner also agrees that, if Parametric consummates a transaction with
another party having entered into an “Alternative Acquisition Agreement” with such party as that term is defined in Section 5.5(c) of the Merger
Agreement (“ Alternative Transaction ”), Potashner will execute, at or before the closing of the Alternative Transaction and promptly upon
request by Parametric (including a request by the Board of Directors of Parametric) , a similar form of release of claims with regard to the party
to the Alternative Transaction (the “ Alternative Transaction Final Release ”) and if Potashner fails to do so, or signs the Alternative
Transaction Final Release and then revokes or attempts to revoke it prior to or at the closing of the Alternative Transaction, then Potashner will
be fully liable to Parametric for any consequential, indirect, or direct damages suffered by Parametric relating in any way to Potashner’s failure
to sign the Alternative Transaction Final Release or his revocation of same, including, but not limited to attorney fees and expenses.
Potashner acknowledges and agrees that he has been provided the opportunity to review this Release of Claims and consult
with counsel of his choice prior to executing it. Potashner acknowledges and agrees that this Release of Claims remains in effect regardless of
whether the Merger Agreement or an Alternative Transaction is signed or closes. Potashner acknowledges and agrees that he will not seek to
revoke, modify, or restrict this Release of Claims.
Dated: 8/5, 2013

By: /s/ KENNETH F. POTASHNER
Kenneth F. Potashner
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“Attachment A”
Final Release of Claims by Kenneth F. Potashner in Connection with the Agreement and Plan of Merger by and Among Parametric
Sound Corporation, Paris Acquisition Corp. and VTB Holdings, Inc.
This Final Release of Claims is made in connection with the Agreement and Plan of Merger by and Among Parametric Sound
Corporation (“ Parametric ”), Paris Acquisition Corp. and VTB Holdings, Inc. of even date herewith (“the Merger Agreement ”). Kenneth F.
Potashner (“ Potashner ”) acknowledges receipt of the Merger Agreement in advance of this Final Release of Claims and further acknowledges
that he has had ample opportunity to review and understand such Merger Agreement. Potashner is executing this Final Release of Claims at or
before closing of the Merger Agreement. If Potashner revokes or attempts to revoke this Final Release of Claims at or before the closing of the
Merger Agreement, then Potashner will be fully liable to Parametric for any consequential, indirect, or direct damages suffered by Parametric
relating in any way to Potashner’s revocation of this Final Release of Claims, including, but not limited to attorneys’ fees and expenses.
Potashner was granted, on March 5, 2013, options with regard to the purchase of 50 shares of stock in HyperSound Health,
Inc. (“ Potashner HHI Stock Option Agreement ”). The Potashner HHI Stock Option Agreement has been amended and restated as set forth in
the Amended and Restated Incentive Stock Option Agreement (“ Potashner Restated Option Agreement ”) attached hereto as “ Attachment
A .”
In exchange for the payment of $100.00 and other good and valuable consideration, Potashner, on behalf of himself, his
executors, heirs, administrators, and any related or affiliated corporations, partnerships, or entities, including any officers, directors, partners,
employees, shareholders, subsidiaries, agents, representatives, attorneys, assigns, predecessors and successors-in-interest, and all others claiming
by or through Potashner, hereby releases and forever discharges (1) Parametric, a Nevada corporation, and its parents, subsidiaries, related
entities, and affiliates, including but not limited to HyperSound Health, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its parents, subsidiaries, related
entities, and affiliates, and the directors, officers, shareholders, employees, attorneys, agents, assigns, representatives, insurers, predecessors and
successors-in-interest of said corporations and entities, and each of them; and (2) VTB Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“ VTBH ”), and
its parents, subsidiaries, related entities, and affiliates, and the directors, officers, shareholders, employees, attorneys, agents, assigns,
representatives, insurers, predecessors and successors-in-interest of said corporations and entities, and each of them (collectively, the "
Parametric and VTBH Released Parties "), from any and all obligations, liabilities, demands, costs, expenses, damages, claims, actions and
causes of action, of whatever nature, character or description, known or unknown, directly or indirectly based upon, related to, or arising from
the modification of the Potashner HHI Stock Option Agreement as set forth in the Potashner Restated Option Agreement.
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Furthermore, it is understood and agreed that any and all rights granted to Potashner under California Civil Code Section 1542
are hereby expressly waived. California Civil Code Section 1542 reads as follows:
Section 1542. Certain claims not affected by general release. A general release does not extend to claims
which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of executing the release,
which if known by him or her must have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.
Potashner waives and releases any right or benefit which Potashner has or may have under California Civil Code Section 1542 to the full extent
he may lawfully waive all such rights and benefits and acknowledges and agrees that Potashner shall be considered to be a creditor of the
Parametric and VTBH Released Parties for the purposes of California Civil Code Section 1542. In connection with such waiver and
relinquishment, Potashner acknowledges and is aware that he may hereafter discover claims or facts in addition to or different from those which
he now knows or believes to be true with respect to any and all claims of whatever nature, character or description, known or unknown, directly
or indirectly based upon, related to, or arising from the modification of the Potashner HHI Stock Option Agreement as set forth in the Potashner
Restated Option Agreement, which do now exist, may exist, or heretofore have existed between Potashner, on the one hand, and the Parametric
and VTBH Released Parties, on the other hand. In furtherance of such intention, the releases given here shall be and remain in effect as full and
complete releases of such released items, notwithstanding the discovery or existence of any such additional or different claims or facts relating
thereto.
Potashner acknowledges and agrees that he has been provided the opportunity to review this Final Release of Claims and
consult with counsel of his choice prior to executing it. Potashner acknowledges and agrees that this Final Release of Claims remains in effect
regardless of whether the Merger Agreement closes. Potashner acknowledges and agrees that he will not seek to revoke, modify, or restrict this
Final Release of Claims.
Dated: _______________, 2013

By: /s/ KENNETH F. POTASHNER
Kenneth F. Potashner
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“Attachment A”
Potashner Amended and Restated Incentive Stock Option Agreement
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Exhibit 10.20

July 26, 2013
Mr. Todd Savitt
15234 Crestview Court
Poway, CA 92064
Dear Todd:
Parametric Sound Corporation (“Parametric”) is pleased to present you with this employment offer under the following terms and conditions:
Title and Duties:

Vice President – Sales and Marketing with duties to include but not be limited to marketing, sales and
business development related to our commercial audio markets and our licensing business. You will report
to our Executive Chairman. Your duties as discussed will require travel from time to time including
overnite stays.

Proposed Start Date:

July 26, 2013.
Annual Base Salary: This is a full time position and you will be expected to work a minimum of 40 hours
per week on Parametric activities. The full-time annual base compensation rate will be $190,000 and will
paid monthly at the end of each month.
Bonus and Commission: You will join the executive bonus plan with a target bonus of up to 80% of your
base compensation pro-rated for 2013. The bonus will be based: 60% on revenue targets; 20% on company
profit targets; and 20% on milestones targets.

Stock Options:

Management has recommended to the Board of Directors that you be granted stock options to purchase
75,000 shares of common stock. The stock options will be exercisable for five years after grant, subject to
earlier termination. The options will vest quarterly commencing September 30, 2013 over two years. The
option price will be the closing price on the day preceding approval by the Board of Directors which was
July 26, 2013, subject to your acceptance of this offer.
Work Location: Parametric’s office is in Poway, California at 13771 Danielson Street, Suite L, Poway,
California which will be your primary work location.

Mr. Todd Savitt
July 26, 2013
Page 2 of 4
Benefits:

Parametric intends to add benefits in the future including group insurance and when we commence any
such plans then you will be eligible to participate on the same terms as other employees. Parametric
currently has no group insurance plans but is seeking what coverage is available in the current market.
Parametric observes 9 paid holidays per calendar year. Our Personal Days Off (“PDO”) policy is a
combination of vacation and sick days. PDO hours are accrued per pay month once you become a full-time
employee. Your schedule is as follows:
Year 1-4: 10 hours per pay month
Over 4: 13.33 hours per pay month
PDO will max out at 160 hours.

Severance:

In the event the employment with the Company is terminated by the Company without cause (as defined
below) or the employee terminates his employment for Good Reason (as defined below), then the
Company shall provide the employee with the following severance benefits hereunder, as applicable:
a.

The employee shall be entitled to severance pay in the form a single lump sum payment equal to four
to six months of the employee’s annual base salary then in effect. You will receive 4 months
termination pay under this provision for the first nine months of employment and then increased to 6
months at the beginning of month ten.

b.

Employee will receive 1 percent commission based on total revenue generated from the closed
licensing deals generated by the employee for a period of one year after termination.

c.

Notwithstanding any contrary terms of any stock option grants, any outstanding vested stock options
held by the employee at the date of such termination shall continue to be exercisable for a period of up
to three months following such termination, but in no event beyond the maximum permitted expiration
date.
Definitions: For purposes of this agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
Cause: “Cause” shall mean that one or more of the following has occurred:
i.

The employee has been convicted of a felony crime involving fraud, dishonesty or violence.

ii.

The employee has intentionally and willfully engaged in material acts of fraud, dishonesty or
gross misconduct that have a material adverse effect on the Company, unless the employee
believed in good faith that such acts were in the best interests of the Company.

iii.

The employee intentionally and willfully refuses to perform his duties under this agreement after
there has been delivered to the employee a written demand for performance from the Company
which describes the basis for the Company’s belief that the employee has violated his obligation
to perform his duties to the Company.

Mr. Todd Savitt
July 26, 2013
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Good Reason: “Good Reason” for the employee to terminate the employee’s employment hereunder
shall mean the occurrence of any of the following events without the employee’s consent: provided
however, that any resignation by the employee due to any of the following conditions shall only be
deemed for Good Reason if: (i) the employee gives the Company written notice of the intent to
terminate for Good Reason within ninety (90) days following the first occurrence of the conditions(s)
that the employee believes constitutes Good Reason, which notice shall describe such conditions(s);
(ii) the Company fails to remedy, if remediable, such condition(s) within thirty (30) days following
receipt of the written notice of such condition(s) from the employee; and (iii) the employee actually
resigns his employment within the first ninety (90) days after expiration of the written notice.

Change in Control:

i.

A material reduction by the Company of the employee’s base salary or target bonus percentage
as initially set forth herein or as the same may be increased from time to time.

ii.

A material reduction by the Company of the employee’s authority, duties and responsibilities.

iii.

A material breach of this agreement by the Company

The employee shall receive severance rights and acceleration of stock option vesting in the event of a
Change of Control arising after nine months of employment in which the employee is either terminated or
experiences a significant reduction in scope of responsibilities. No such rights shall be effective for any
Change of Control that was announced, being negotiated by management or completed during the first nine
months of employment. All outstanding stock options held by the employee will automatically accelerate
and any outstanding stock options held by the employee as of the date of change in control shall continue
to be exercisable for three (3 months) following such change in control, but in no event beyond the
maximum permitted expiration date of such stock options.
“Change in Control” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following events:
i.

the closing of the sale, transfer or other disposition of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets
or the exclusive license of substantially all of the intellectual property of the Company material to the
business of the Company resulting in the Company being unable to continue its business as in effect
prior to such license; provided, however, that a mortgage, pledge or grant of a security interest to a
bona fide lender shall not by itself constitute a Change of Control.

ii. the consummation of a merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another entity in which
the stockholders of the Company exchange their shares of capital stock of the Company for cash,
stock, property or other consideration (except one in which the stockholders of the Company as
constituted immediately prior to such transaction continue to hold after the transaction at least 70% of
the voting power of the capital stock of the Company or the surviving or acquiring entity or parent
entity of the surviving or acquiring entity).
iii. the closing of the acquisition, in one transaction or a series of related transactions by a person or group
of affiliated persons (other than an underwriter of the Company’s securities), of beneficial ownership
of 30% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the Company.
Product Description

You will work for and report to our Executive Chairman.

Policy Manual:

Additional terms of employment are set forth in our Employee Manual, as may be revised from time to
time.

Mr. Todd Savitt
July 26, 2013
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Further Agreements:

You will be required to sign an Insider Trading Policy document, Mutual Agreement to Arbitrate and a
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. We will require I9 documentation and a Form W-4. You will also be
expected to execute a NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT AND INVENTIONS ASSIGNMENT FOR
PROTECTION OF CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION agreement.

You are entitled to published benefits of the company as they may be so determined including, but not limited to those listed above. Other
employment terms and policies not specified above are subject to change at the discretion of management or the Board of Directors.
If you have any questions please call me at 888-477-2150 Ext 504 or Ken Potashner at Ext 507. Otherwise please sign this offer in the space
provided below signifying that you have read and accept the terms herein and email back or fax to me at 888-NEW-2150. While we
acknowledge your oral acceptance of these terms we would appreciate a written response in the space below.
Let me say that we are looking forward to having a person of your caliber join the team and hope you feel welcome!
Sincerely,
/s/ James A. Barnes
James A. Barnes
Chief Financial Officer
Offer Accepted:
/s/ Todd Savitt
Todd Savitt

Exhibit 10.21
Summary of Oral Contract Between the Company and Seth Putterman
Effective May 2012 the Company agreed to pay director Dr. Seth Putterman a consulting fee for technical advisory services related to its HSS
technology of $10,000 every three months. This arrangement was paid through July 2013 and then suspended until further agreement.

Exhibit 21.1
Subsidiaries of Parametric Sound Corporation
PSC Licensing Corp.
(Incorporated in the State of California)
HyperSound Health, Inc.
(Incorporated in the State of Delaware)
Paris Acquisition Corp.
(Incorporated in the State of Delaware)

Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Parametric Sound Corporation
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements on Form S-3 (File No. 333-188389 and File No. 333-173017)
and Form S-8 (File No. 333-171838, File No. 333-181653 and File No. 333-188390) of our report dated November 26, 2013, relating to our
audits of the consolidated financial statements of Parametric Sound Corporation as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 and for each of the years
then ended, which appear in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Parametric Sound Corporation for the year ended September 30, 2013.
/s/ SQUAR, MILNER, PETERSON, MIRANDA & WILLIAMSON, LLP
San Diego, California
November 26, 2013

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Kenneth F. Potashner, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Parametric Sound Corporation;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
a)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

b)

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 26, 2013
/s/ KENNETH F. POTASHNER
Kenneth F. Potashner
Executive Chairman (Principal Executive Officer)

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, James A. Barnes, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Parametric Sound Corporation;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
a)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

b)

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 26, 2013
/s/ JAMES A. BARNES
James A. Barnes
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary (Principal Financial Officer)

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
Each of the undersigned hereby certifies, in accordance with 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, in his capacity as an officer of Parametric Sound Corporation (the "Company"), that, to his knowledge, the Annual Report of the Company
on Form 10-K for the period ended September 30, 2013, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in such report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operation of the Company.
Dated: November 26, 2013
/s/ KENNETH F. POTASHNER
Kenneth F. Potashner
Executive Chairman (Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: November 26, 2013
/s/ JAMES A. BARNES
James A. Barnes
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary (Principal Financial Officer)

This certification accompanies the Form 10-K to which it relates, is not deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is not to
be incorporated by reference into any filing of Parametric Sound Corporation under the Securities Act of 1934, as amended (whether made
before or after the date of the Form 10-K), irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.

